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EXPLANATORY NOTE

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, Lipid Sciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is
referred to as “we,” “the Company” or “Lipid.” On November 29, 2001, after the completion of our merger
with Lipid Sciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation, we changed our name from NZ Corporation to Lipid
Sciences, Inc. On June 26, 2002, the merged corporation changed its state of incorporation from Arizona to
Delaware. In this report, we refer to our former name, NZ Corporation, as “NZ,” and we refer to the merged
corporation, Lipid Sciences, Inc., as “Pre-Merger Lipid.” Because the merger was treated as a reverse
acquisition, Pre-Merger Lipid was considered the acquiror for accounting and financial reporting purposes.
Accordingly, all financial information prior to 2001 included in this report reflects only Pre-Merger Lipid’s
information. Consequently, we sometimes also refer to Pre-Merger Lipid as “we” or “the Company.” In
addition, all share numbers, purchase prices per share, and exercise prices relating to Pre-Merger Lipid
securities are shown on a post-merger basis after adjusting such numbers and prices to reflect the exchange
ratio in the merger, with the exception of share amounts included in the Statement of Stockholders” Equity for
the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to November 29, 2001, the date of the merger, and common stock,
share, and per share amounts as of December 31, 2000, disclosed in Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.




FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the documents incorporated by reference in this annual
report, contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as “believe,” “‘anticipate,” “expect,” “‘estimate,”

“intend,” “plan,” “project,” “guess,” “will,” “may” and other similar expressions. In addition, any statements

that refer to expectations, projections, plans, objectives, goals, strategies or other characterizations of future
events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of
the date stated and we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, even if experience or future
events make it clear that any expected results expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements will
not be realized. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are
reasonable, these expectations may not prove to be correct or we may not achieve the financial results, savings
or other benefits anticipated in the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of our senior management and involve a number of risks and
uncertainties, some of which may be beyond our control, that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not
necessarily limited to:

< our inability to obtain adequate funds;

o our technology not proving to be safe or effective;

» our inability to obtain regulatory approval of our technology, which is only in the clinical development
stage;

e delay or failure to complete clinical studies;
o our dependence on our license agreement with Aruba International;
 our reliance on collaborations with strategic partners;

o competition in our industry, including the development of new products by others that may provide
alternative or better therapies;

o failure to secure and enforce intellectual property rights;

o risks associated with use of biological and hazardous materials;
o product liability claims;

o economic downturn in the real estate market;

o our dependence on key personnel;

o additional shares of common stock becoming available for sale after expiration of certain lock-up
period; and

o potential dilution of existing stockholders’ ownership if additional shares are issued to former
NZ Corporation shareholders who have perfected certain rights.

Factors that could cause actual results or conditions to differ from those anticipated by these and other
forward-looking statements include those more fully described in “Item 1. Business — Factors That May
Affect Future Results and Financial Condition™ and elsewhere in this report.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are a development-stage biotechnology company that is conducting research and developing products
and processes intended to treat major medical conditions in which lipids, or fat components, play a key role.
Our technologies are based on a patented process that selectively removes lipids from proteins. We believe
that this unique delipidation process has the potential for far-reaching implications for human health. It may
provide an effective therapeutic effect on many infectious agents, including the viruses that cause AIDS,
Hepatitis B and C, as well as reverse cardio- and cerebrovascular disease.

Our primary activities since incorporation have been conducting research and development, performing
business, strategic and financial planning, and raising capital. Accordingly, the Company is considered to be in
the development stage.

Acquisition

On November 29, 2001, we completed our merger with Pre-Merger Lipid. As a result of the merger, the
Company was renamed Lipid Sciences, Inc. Pre-Merger Lipid ceased to exist as a separate corporation, and
the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid became shareholders of the Company. In connection with the merger,
Pre-Merger Lipid shareholders received 1.55902 shares of our common stock for each share of Pre-Merger
Lipid common stock they held at the time the merger was completed. After the transaction, the Pre-Merger
Lipid shareholders owned approximately 75% of the then outstanding stock of the Company and the NZ
shareholders owned the remaining shares of the Company’s common stock.

The merger was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and was treated as a reverse
acquisition because the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid owned the majority of the Company’s common
stock after the merger. Pre-Merger Lipid was considered the acquiror for accounting and financial reporting
purposes.

Prior to the merger, our common stock was traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol
“NZ.” OGur common stock now trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “LIPD.”

Following the merger, the business of the Company became primarily that of Pre-Merger Lipid. As part
of the merger, we announced our intent to conduct an orderly disposition of substantially all of the real estate
and other assets held by the Company before the merger to fund the ongoing operations of Lipid Sciences’
biotechnology business. On March 22, 2002, we formalized a plan to discontinue the operations of our real
estate business, including commercial real estate loans.

Recent Developments

On January 28, 2003, we announced a new strategic direction for the Company and the application and
development of our novel technology of plasma delipidation. As a result, we are focusing our research and
development on our proprietary Viral Pathogen Inactivation (VPI™) platform. The first indication being
pursued by the Company to demonstrate the efficacy of our VPI platform technology is Human Immu-
nodeficiency Virus, or HIV. In connection with this new strategic direction, we have discontinued our Phase |
human clinical trial in Australia, which was paused in the third quarter of 2002, and ceased all operations in
Australia. In addition, we are aligning our clinical trial efforts toward the development of our VPI platform
and U.S.-based clinical trials.

The new direction is part of a comprehensive strategic plan being implemented by the Company. In
connection with the adoption of that plan, we have also restructured our business operations. The strategic
plan was recommended by the management team and approved by the Board of Directors. As part of the cost-
savings goal of the strategic plan, Barry D. Michaels resigned as Chief Financial Officer and certain other
management and staff positions have been eliminated. Sandra Gardiner, the Company’s Vice President,

1




Controller and Corporate Secretary, has assumed the newly created position of Chief Accounting Officer. In
related appointments, Marc Bellotti, who was Vice President of Product Development, has assumed the
position of Vice President, Research and Development. Dale Richardson, who was Vice President of
Marketing and Sales, has assumed the position of Vice President, Business Development. We are currently
considering candidates to fill the poesition of President and Chief Executive Officer, a position that has been
vacant since Phil Radlick, Ph.D. resigned on October 15, 2002.

On March 3, 2003, we announced the resignation of Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., as a member of the Board of
Directors. Dr. Cham had been a Director since 1999 and was a co-founder of Pre-Merger Lipid Sciences.

Backgmund

We are developing our basic delipidation technology as two complementary technology platforms. The
first platform, Viral Pathogen Inactivation (VPI™) relates to the removal of lipid envelopes from viruses,
bacteria and other lipid-enveloped infectious agents. Examples of viruses with lipid envelopes that may be
treatable by our VPI system include HIV, Hepatitis B and C. The second platform, Vascular Lipid Removal
(VLR™) is focused on treating atherosclerosis, which results from an overabundance of lipids in the vascular
system. Our VLR platform is targeted at treating conditions such as heart disease, stroke and peripheral
vascular disease.

Lipid-Enveloped Viruses

Lipid-enveloped viruses represent one of the two major classes of viruses. Lipid-enveloped viruses possess
a lipid coat while rion-enveloped viruses, the other class, do not. The lipid coat surrounds the protein structure
and genetic material of the virus and protects the virus from recognition by the immune system. The lipid
envelope also helps the virus infect the host cell by merging the virus coat with the host cell surface. Some
well-known lipid-enveloped viruses include HIV, Hepatitis B and C, Herpes, Cytomegalovirus and Influenza.
Currently, 850,000 to 900,000 people in the United States and approximately 42 million people worldwide are
infected with HIVY. Each year, about 40,000 people in the United States and approximately 5 million
worldwide become infected by HIV. Three million people die of HIV/AIDS every year worldwide. HIV
infection is a worldwide problem resulting in the devastation of the populations of many countries.

HIV begins its infection of a susceptible host cell, called a lymphocyte, by binding to a receptor on the
host cell surface. Lymphocytes are a critical part of the body’s immune system. Following fusion of the virus
with the host cell, HIV enters the cell. The genetic material of the virus, RNA, is released into the host cell
and converted into DNA. This viral DNA integrates into the genetic material of the cell and replicates itself.
The virus can persist in a latent state or emerge through the host cell membrane to infect other cells.

Significant strides have been made in recent years in treating HIV-infected individuals in the developed
world. Through the use of combinations of potent new antiviral drugs, HAART (Highly Active Anti-
Retroviral Therapy), including protease inhibitors and reverse transcriptase inhibitors, death rates from AIDS
have been significantly reduced in countries in which such therapies are available. These new therapies,
however, are expensive and are not ideal for a variety of other reasons. Despite improving both quality and
duration of life for HIV-infected individuals, HAART therapy has been unable to completely eradicate the
virus in the blood and organs of infected individuals. After cessation of drug therapy, or if a patient does not
adhere strictly to the schedule of drug therapy, viral loads may rebound or even exceed pretreatment levels.
HIV also may mutate in the presence of the antiviral compounds that are designed to attack the virus directly,
leading to the development of drug resistance. Drug resistance is a major concern of physicians because a large
number of patients are infected by a strain of HIV that is already resistant to at least one drug in their drug
therapy. As viral strains continue to mutate, the number of drug-resistant patients is expected to grow
significantly. Other characteristics of the infection such as superinfection, infection by more than one strain of
HIV, and latent reservoirs where virus is present in infected cells but does not muitiply or emerge from the
infected cell to infect other cells, contribute to the difficulty in completely eradicating the virus.

In addition, the HAART therapy sometimes dramatically alters the metabolism of lipids to the detriment
of the patients receiving the therapy. This often results in an increase in triglycerides and the lipoprotein
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apoClII. The lipoprotein apoCIII has recently been identified as a risk factor for coronary artery disease in
HIV patients. Atherosclerosis may be accelerated and abnormal fatty deposits begin to develop in these
patients. We believe that atherosclerosis is a leading cause of death in patients who have been utilizing the
HAART therapies over a long period of time.

Other side effects of these therapies, which include drug toxicity, lipodystrophy, neurological symptoms,
and depression, can be significant. Such side effects lead to the rejection of these therapies by a number of
patients. :

Existing drug therapies for Hepatitis C infection have proven to be effective in only a portion of the
patients treated. In addition, side effects of these existing therapies, such as depression and hematologic
abnormalities, can be significant and the therapeutic regimen is very expensive. As with HIV, drug resistance
is a serious problem in treating Hepatitis C. Also as with HIV, cost and other aspects of existing therapies for
Hepatitis C make them largely impractical in the developing world.

Finally, HIV-infected individuals often do not respond to the traditional vaccine available to protect them
against co-infection with Hepatitis B.

Cardiovascular Disease

Cardiovascular disease is a major, often the leading, cause of death in all industrialized countries of the
world. Each person has within them a “cardiovascular clock,” which refers to the slow and continuous build-
up of cholesterol-laden plaque on arterial walls. Over decades this build-up may result in the blockage of blood
flow through arteries, particularly those which deliver blood to the heart. If untreated, such blockages can lead
to reduced blood flow to the heart resulting in cardiac arrest, and ultimately death. The common cause of this
disease, known as atherosclerosis, is the deposit of cholesterol in the wall of the artery. Researchers believe
that high cholesterol, especially high concentrations of low density lipoprotein, LDL, plays a key role in the
occurrence of atherosclerosis. Researchers have found ample evidence to show that diet, drug, or other
treatments such as systemic removal of LDL from the blood stream may reduce the progression of this
disease. However, we believe that atherosclerosis is rarely improved with current treatments as these
treatments do not reverse the disease.

The LDL and high density lipoprotein, HDL, for example, that circulate in the blood are normally
“saturated” with cholesterol. One of their functions is to carry cholesterol around in the body to various
locations and sometimes leave the cholesterol in that location for further processing by the body. Certain
lipoproteins, such as HDL, are responsible for transporting cholesterol away from the plaque and carrying it to
the liver for disposal. Other lipoproteins, such as LDL, are responsible for carrying cholesterol to cells outside
the liver for.use in building cells and cell walls. The LDL lipoproteins are usually the ones that carry
cholesterol to the plaque and contribute to cholesterol build-up inside the cells, blocking the flow of blood.
Diet, exercise, and drug therapy may help lower the amount of cholesterol in the blood and therefore make it
more difficult for cholesterol to build up in the plaque.

According to the American Heart Association, cardiovascular disease is the leading cause of death among
American men and women. The limitations for treating this disease by diet, exercise, and drug therapy has led
to interventional procedures, such as balloon angioplasty therapy, stent placement, and coronary artery bypass
surgery, known as surgical revascularization. These interventional procedures have attendant high costs,
clinical complications and sometimes death associated with them. Physicians and their patients, however, are
often forced to resort to these procedures in order to save or prolong life.

Current Treatments for Cardiovascular Disease. The initial physician recommendation for a patient
with cardiovascular disease is frequently a change in lifestyle involving exercise combined with a low-fat, low-
cholesterol diet. If a patient’s condition does not improve, then the physician moves to the next level of
treatment to achieve acceptable levels of cholesterol in the blood, typically drug therapy.

Following the initial diet/exercise regimen, treatments are either short-term solutions, termed “acute” by
physicians, or long-term solutions, termed ‘“chronic.” Acute treatments are reserved for more life-threatening
cardiovascular conditions, such as ischemia, a condition where there is a shortage of oxygen-rich blood
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available to the heart, or portions of the heart. In contrast, chronic treatments are used to prevent
cardiovascular disease from growing worse and later having to resort to acute treatments. Acute treatments
usually involve costly interventional surgical procedures, while chronic treatments are drugs, usually in tablet
or pill form, and are required to be taken over a long period of time.

Acute Treatments. Acute treatments are required when blood flow to the heart is severely restricted and
the patient is at immediate risk for further complications. Three common invasive procedures are used to
restore blood flow: bypass surgery, balloon angioplasty and atherectomy. In bypass surgery, the cardiologist
redirects blood flow around the blocked arteries by grafting a healthy vessel removed from another location in
the patient. In balloon angioplasty, a thin flexible tube with an inflatable balloon at its end is positioned in the
artery at the point of blockage. During the procedure, the balloon is inflated and this pushes aside the plaque
that causes the blockage, resulting in a reopening of the artery to allow greater blood flow. Frequently, a
cardiologist reinforces the newly opened artery with a wire-mesh cylinder called a stent. In atherectomy, the
plaque is removed from the artery using a rotating blade.

The primary benefit of acute treatments is the immediate restoration of oxygen-rich blood flow to the
heart. However, the major drawbacks of acute treatments are:

= Restenosis, or reclosing of the artery, even after stenting, often occurs in patients who have had these
invasive surgical procedures. This may require an additional invasive procedure within six months.

> These procedures are invasive to the patient and involve opening up the chest cavity to expose the
heart, as in coronary bypass surgery, or snaking a wire through the femoral artery to the heart, as in
balloon angioplasty or atherectomy. Invasive procedures by their nature involve a risk of complications,
including death.

= Since acute treatments are invasive procedures by their nature, significant recovery time is required
after the surgical procedure.

- Many patients may not be eligible for invasive procedures due to their anatomy, physical condition,
age, or past medical history.

o Atherosclerosis affects the entire cardiovascular system. Acute procedures are localized and treat only
one segment of a diseased artery at a time. Therefore, many diseased arteries are left untreated using
these invasive surgical procedures.

Chronic Treatments. Chronic treatments for cardiovascular disease have the goal of preventing or
limiting progression of the disease so that acute treatments will not be required in the near future, if at all.

Physicians frequently prescribe drugs called statins, which lower the level of LDL cholesterol in the blood
by inhibiting cholesterol production in the body. These drugs can also lower other lipids and have the ability to
slightly raise HDL. Studies have shown that statins reduce the incidence of illness and death from
cardiovascular disease. We believe that it usually takes at least two years, if at all, for this class of drugs to be
effective in preventing death. We also believe that these drugs neither treat the existing atherosclerosis nor
reverse the disease in a majority of patients, and in post-operative patients, they also fail to prevent restenosis,
the reclosure of an artery following surgical procedures.

Our Solution

Platform I— Viral Pathogen Inactivation (VPI™). It is commonly understood that lipid-enveloped
viruses will not be able to infect if their lipid membranes are removed. Qur VPI system is designed to remove
the lipid from the envelope, thereby exposing the protein coat of lipid-enveloped viruses. We believe that lipid-
enveloped viruses may be effectively inactivated and managed by periodic treatment with our VPI system. In
effect, by treating an animal or a human infected with a lipid-enveloped virus with our VPI system, the
exposed protein coating of the virus may provoke an immune system response. The immune system then could
respond by developing antibodies to the exposed protein (epitopes). These antibodies would then attack the
virus in the blood stream, reducing the viral load of the victim of the disease. The reduced viral load could
greatly reduce the stress on the immune system of the infected animal or human and, in the best case,
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potentially improve the disease state. We believe that our VPI system is unique in that it treats the autologous
virus of the individual and presents the resulting exposed antigens of that specific population of virus unique to
that individual. We believe that this novel approach may overcome some of the limitations of other therapies
for HIV, Hepatitis B and C, such as viral mutations leading to drug or vaccine resistance, resulting in lack of
protection against infection by another strain.

We believe that our VPI system may prove very useful in treating patients who cannot tolerate other
therapies and patients who are resistant to HAART therapy. In addition, we believe that our VPI system may
have potential applications in managing viral loads during periods of cessation of HAART therapy. In the
developing world, our VPI system may be particularly attractive because the system may be administered on
an intermittent basis rather than on a daily basis, potentially at lower costs than existing therapies, and without
the issues of drug resistance and other drug-related side effects.

Our strategy is to develop our VPI system and test it for therapeutic applications in humans and/or
animals that are already infected with lipid-coated viruses. We are also developing our VPI system in order to
establish its use in the preparation of vaccines for diseases that result from lipid-coated pathogens.

In Vitro and Animal Experiments. Experiments were carried out at the University of Sydney using a
duck model for Hepatitis B. In these experiments, it was conclusively shown that plasma from an infected
duck treated with our VPI system did not infect healthy ducklings. Furthermore, it was shown that the
ducklings which had the treated plasma introduced to their system began to develop antibodies to Hepatitis B.
Upon exposure to Hepatitis B, 80% of these ducklings were protected from infection. A further study using an
accepted substitute virus for Hepatitis C in cattle, bovine viral diarrhea virus (BVDV), showed that a
neutralizing antibody was made by these animals to this virus without their becoming infected by the virus.

The first indication pursued by us to demonstrate the efficacy of the application of our VPI platform
technology is HIV. Our VPI technology has been shown to successfully inactivate the HIV particle and has
the potential to be a therapeutic treatment for this disease. Recent studies have been conducted in vitro at
Emory University and Johns Hopkins University as well as in vivo in a mouse model at Emory University and
have demonstrated both safety and immunogenicity. Non-human primate studies are planned to demonstrate
safety and efficacy in a human surrogate model.

Platform If — Vascular Lipid Removal (VLR™). Our Vascular Lipid Removal system has been shown to
rapidly remove cholesterol, triglycerides, some phospholipids, and unesterified fatty acids from plasma. If
successful, our Vascular Lipid Removal system may reverse the “cardiovascular clock,” or the slow and
continuous build-up of cholesterol-laden plaque on arterial walls in the course of a typical human life. The
reversal of atherosclerosis has been referred to in scientific terms as Reverse Cholesterol Transport.

We believe that when the HDL particle, known informally as “good cholesterol,” is delipidated, it can be
up to six times more efficient at scavenging cholesterol than native, or undelipidated, HDL.

We believe that the plasma lipoproteins, once delipidated, are capable of recombining with cholesterol
and other lipids in the arteries. This observation is fundamental to the potential unblocking of arteries by our
Vascular Lipid Removal system. Cholesterol is represented in blocked arteries intra- and extracellularly. The
delipidated plasma proteins can remove cholesterol from surface of cells (extracellular) as well as from inside
cholesterol loaded cells (intracellular).

Our Vascular Lipid Removal process includes:

« removing whole blood from the patient;

e separating the plasma from the blood cells;

« delipidating the plasma; and

« returning the blood cells and delipidated plasma to the patient.

Animal Experiments. Several animal models have been tested to establish the safety and efficacy of our
Vascular Lipid Removal system. In one of the studies conducted, the system entailed the removal of 25% of
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the blood volume from control and atherosclerotic animals, delipidating the plasma and reintroducing the
delipidated plasma back into the animals.

) Human Safety Study. Based on the experimental animal results and other research, our first human
clinical trial commenced in Australia during the second quarter of 2002. The Phase 1 trial was being
conducted in Australia to determine the safety of Lipid Sciences’ plasma delipidation process. After an
adverse reaction in a volunteer, the trial was voluntarily paused during the third quarter of 2002. The
preliminary results from this trial advanced the science and improved the safety of our proprietary delipidation
process. We believe we have identified and mitigated the cause of the adverse event experienced in that trial.
However, for strategic reasons, we have decided to discontinue our Phase 1 human clinical trial and cease all
operations in Australia. Furthermore, we have decided to align our clinical trial efforts toward the
development of our VPI platform and U.S.-based clinical trials.

Development Agreement with SRI International

In October 2000, we entered into a Development Agreement with SRI International, a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation, pursuant to which SRI provides us with various consulting and
development services. SRI will assign to us all intellectual property developed during the term of the
Development Agreement. The Development Agreement calls for SRI to complete two development phases
(as defined in the Development Agreement, “Phase [ and “Phase II"’) during which time SRI will work to
develop a medical device to enable us to further develop and commercialize our lipid removal technology. In
addition, we have entered into a number of amendments with SRI to address work performed by SRI, which
are both within and outside of the scope of work of Phase II development. Certain of the amendments have
been in support of product development and certain of the amendments relate to supplemental testing and
analysis performed by SRIL

Phase I was completed on March 28, 2001. Fees for services performed by SRI for Phase [ totaled
$1,517,000. Phase II was initiated upon completion of Phase I. Fees for Phase 1 of the development program
were limited to $6,300,000. Cn July 26, 2002, funding to SRI for the continued development of Phase Il was
increased to $9,500,000. Consistent with our new strategic direction announced on January 28, 2003, we have
refocused SRI efforts to support our VPI platform and spending related to Phase II development has been
significantly reduced.

We also issued SRI warrants to purchase 779,510 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$3.21 per share. The warrants vested, with respect to 233,853 shares upon completion of Phase I, with the
remaining 545,657 shares vesting upon completion of Phase II. On May 12, 2001, the Development
Agreement was amended with respect to the warrants to purchase 545,657 shares of common stock related to
Phase II. This amendment splits Phase II into two development milestones with warrants to
purchase 272,829 shares vesting at the completion of each milestone. If either development milestone is
discontinued at the option of the Company, all 545,657 warrants will vest at the completion of the remaining
milestone.

Inteilectual Property Protection

We consider the protection of our technology, whether owned or licensed by us, to the exclusion of use by
others, to be vital to our business. While we intend to focus primarily on patented or patentable technology, we
also rely on trade secrets, unpatented know-how, regulatory exclusivity, patent extensions, and continuing
technological innovation to develop our competitive position. In the United States and certain foreign
countries, the exclusivity period provided by patents covering medical devices and pharmaceuticals may be
extended by a portion of the time required to obtain regulatory approval for a product.

We are the exclusive licensee of the following patents applied for and/or received by Aruba International
Pty. Ltd.:

» United States Patent No. 5,911,698, entitled “Treatment for Cardiovascular and Related Diseases”;
e United States Patent No. 5,744,038, entitled “Solvent Extraction Methods for Delipidating Plasma”;
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» United States Patent No. 4,895,558, entitled “Autologous Plasma Delipidation Using a Continuous
Flow System”;

» Australian Patent Counterparts to the United States Patents: Australian Patent Nos. 594964, 693458
and 695826, respectively. The issued patents will expire in July 2005, July 2014 and December 2014.
There are also six pending foreign patent applications related thereto;

» Pending PCT application entitled, “A Method of Treating Infectious Diseases;” and
« Pending PCT application entitled, “A Method of Treating and Preventing Infectious Diseases.”

We have filed a number of international and U.S. Provisional applications. All of these applications are
owned by us. In addition, we continually assess and re-evaluate our intellectual property strategy to focus on
building the strongest portfolio possible to support our VPI and VLR platforms.

We rely on trade secrets and proprietary know-how to protect our research and development, technolo-
gies, and potential products. To protect them, we require our employees, consultants, advisors, collaborators,
members of our Scientific and Viral Advisory Boards, and others as may be appropriate to enter into
confidentiality agreements that prohibit disclosure to any third party or use of any secrets and know-how for
commercial purposes. We also require our employees to agree to disclose and assign us all methods,
improvements, modifications, developments, discoveries, and inventions conceived during their employment
by us that relate to our business.

Aruba Licensing Agreement

In December 1999, we entered into an Intellectual Property License Agreement to obtain the exclusive
worldwide rights to certain patents, trademarks, and technology with Aruba International Pty. Ltd., an
Australian company, controlled by Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., a founding stockholder of Pre-Merger Lipid and a
former Director. As consideration for the license, we issued 4,677,060 shares of our common stock valued at
$250,000 to Aruba. This amount was charged to expense as research and development in the year ended
December 31, 2000. Under this agreement, we are obligated to pay Aruba a continuing royalty on revenue in
future years, subject to a minimum annual royalty amount of $500,000, 10% of any External Research
Funding received by us to further this technology, as defined in the agreement, and $250,000 upon
commencement of our initial human clinical trial utilizing the technology under the patents. Our initial human
clinical trial commenced during the three month period ended June 30, 2002. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, we paid cash of approximately $350,000 and issued 66,817 shares of common stock
valued at $150,000 related to this agreement. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we have
expensed approximately $750,000 and $850,000, respectively, related to this agreement. Amounts for 2000,
2001 and 2002 were charged to research and development expense.

Government Regulation

General. Drugs, devices and biologic products must satisfy rigorous standards of safety and effectiveness
before they can be approved or, in the case of some medical devices, “cleared” for commercial marketing by
the Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA. The FDA has extensive power and discretion over this
approval process, subject to the provisions of its governing statutes, which consist principally of the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act with respect to pharmaceuticals and medical devices, and the Public Health
Service Act in the case of drug or device products of a biological nature, such as processed plasma.

The FDA also has promulgated detailed regulations to implement these statutes and has issued various
non-binding guidance documents to advise industry on matters in more detail on statutory and regulatory
requirements. In evaluating the regulatory status of any proposed product, many different factors are involved
and, thus, there may be additional statutory/regulatory provisions or requirements that are unique to a
particular product that are not included in this general discussion. '
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In defining a product’s regulatory status, several key factors must be considered such as, but not limited

+ the product’s intended use as derived from proposed labeling;
e its primary mode of action;

o whether the active ingredient is derived from chemical synthesis, which normally is regulated as a drug
under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or is a product derived from biotechnology, such as
recombinant DNA, or human, animal or plant sources, in which case it commonly, but not always, is
regulated as a biologic under the Public Health Service Act and a biological drug under the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act;

o whether it is a virus, therapeutic serum, antitoxin, vaccine, blood, blood component, blood derivative,
allergenic product, or analogous product or other very specific products, in which case it is regulated
under the Public Health Service Act as a biologic and, if applicable, under the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act, as a biological drug; and

o the FDA’s prior handling of similar products, which has, in a number of cases, treated products
differently than would appear to be required under a reading of applicable statutes.

The extent and nature of the FDA regulatory requirements also will depend on the labeled uses, or
indications, for which approval is sought and the type, complexity and novelty of the product. In the case of
medical devices, the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act requires that the most risky products, referred to
as Class III devices, be the subject of a pre-market approval application under Section 515 of the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. A pre-market approval application usually requires that the applicant conduct
well-controlled clinical studies to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of its medical device. Other
medical devices can be cleared for marketing by the FDA pursuant to what is known as a pre-market
notification. Clearance of a pre-market notification filing relies on a finding by the FDA that the applicant’s
device is substantially equivalent to a lawfully marketed device that itself does not require a pre-market
approval application. And, in the case of other even less risky devices, the FDA has eliminated the need to file
a pre-market notification at all, although the product and its maker generally are still subject to the other
general controls contained in the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and the device regulations. The part
of the FDA having primary jurisdiction over medical devices is the Center for Devices and Radiological
Health, or Devices Center.

Drug products and biological drug products whose active ingredients have never been approved by the
FDA — or which, although having the same ingredient, differ in a substantial way from an approved
product — usually will require the applicant to file a full new drug application containing substantial evidence
in the form of well-controlled clinical investigations that the drug product or biological drug product is safe
and effective for its labeled indication(s). In contrast, a generic version of a previously approved drug product
may be approved by the FDA under an “abbreviated” new drug application in which the showing of safety and
effectiveness is satisfied by the applicant proving that its drug is bioequivalent to the drug product originally
approved under a full new drug application that forms the basis for the abbreviated new drug application. To
. qualify for the abbreviated new drug application process, a generic drug, with some limited exceptions, must
be identical to that of the drug covered under the full new drug application as to active ingredient, labeling,
dosage strength, dosage form, and route of administration. The part of the FDA having primary jurisdiction
over drugs is the Center for Drug Evaluation and Research, or Drugs Center, and over biological drugs is the
Center for Biologics Evaluation and Research, or Biologics Center.

Biologics are regulated under the Public Health Service Act, which prohibits marketing them without an
approved license from FDA known as a Biologics License Application. Biologics regulation, under the Public
Health Service Act, also focuses on whether a biologic is pure, safe and potent. Biologics License Applications
for therapeutic biological drug products are similar to new drug applications and well-controlled clinical
investigations to show safety and effectiveness are often required. The regulation of biologics also is impacted
by the fact that biologics may be used in conjunction with a medical device such as a diagnostic kit. If used in
conjunction with a device, the biologic product must satisfy the Public Health Service Act requirements and
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also may need to go through the pre-market approval application procedure, which may require that the
applicant conduct clinical studies to secure approval. There is no mechanism existing today that provides for a
Biologics License Application for a “generic” biologic drug.

If the FDA granfs marketing approval of a product, this approval will be limited to those disease states
and conditions for which the product has been demonstrated to be safe and effective. Any product approval
also could include significant restrictions on the use or marketing of a firm’s products or include other
conditions, such as the performance of post-approval studies to monitor known or suspected adverse reactions.
Product approvals, if granted, are subject to potential withdrawal, either voluntarily or involuntarily through
legal process, for failure to comply with regulatory requirements or upon the occurrence of adverse events
following commercial introduction of the products.

Regulatory Status of Our Products. Due to the early nature of our development efforts, we have not yet
confirmed with the FDA its view of the regulatory status of our potential products or which center of the FDA
will have primary responsibility for review of our regulatory submissions. Depending on the claims made and
the FDA’s ruling regarding the regulatory status of our products, they may be designated as devices, biologics
or as combination products. However, we anticipate that regardless of regulatory designation, we will need to
conduct pre-clinical and clinical studies to prove the safety or effectiveness (or both) of the plasma
delipidation systems for the initial intended use for which we elect to seek approval from the FDA.

With respect to pre-clinical studies, as our development work on the plasma delipidation systems is still at
an early stage, we cannot predict the nature of the studies the FDA will require. For instance, the FDA may
want us to confirm that the levels of any physical components, processing agents, or other inactive ingredients
that might be used in the plasma delipidation systems are at acceptable levels when the delipidated fiuid
(plasma) is returned to the patient following processing, particularly if any of those components or ingredients
have not been reviewed previously by the FDA for use in other regulated products. In addition, the initial
clinical study we plan to conduct may generate additional information that will impact the types and extent of
pre-clinical data the FDA may require the Company to perform. See “— Clinical Studies — General” below.

To support a regulatory submission, the FDA commonly requires clinical studies to show safety and
effectiveness. While we cannot currently state the nature of any such studies that the FDA may require for the
plasma delipidation system, medical device products approved by the FDA for other companies using similar
mechanisms of operation have required extensive and time-consuming clinical studies in order to secure
approval.

Once we have sufficient information to design our pre-clinical and clinical development plans, we will
seek the FDA’s input on those plans and, more specifically, the agency’s requirements for approval. However,
the FDA may insist upon changes to a development plan previously agreed to by the FDA if new information
shows that the plan may present safety or effectiveness concerns. The FDA also retains considerable leverage
to require changes in study protocols from the sponsors of clinical investigations even after an FDA meeting
and agreement has been reached.

A meeting with the FDA to establish the pre-clinical and clinical protocols to support a pre-market
approval application will be a critical step in the development of the plasma delipidation systems. For medical
devices, such a meeting commonly is held at what is known as the pre-investigational device exemption stage.
For a drug or biologic product, such a meeting commonly is held at what is known as the pre-investigational
new drug stage.

Outside the United States, the ability to market potential products is contingent upon receiving market
application authorizations from the appropriate regulatory authorities. These foreign regulatory approval
processes may involve differing requirements than those of the FDA, but also generally include many, if not
all, of the risks associated with the FDA approval process described above, depending on the country involved.

Clinical Studies — General. Depending on the regulatory status of our products, we will likely need to
conduct significant additional research before we can file applications for product approval. Typically, in the
drug, device, and biologics industries there is a high rate of attrition for product candidates in pre-clinical
testing and clinical trials. Success in pre-clinical testing and early clinical trials does not ensure that later
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clinical trials will be successful. For example, a number of companies in the drug industry, including
biotechnology companies, have suffered significant setbacks in advanced clinical trials, even after promising
results in earlier trials and in interim analyses. In addition, delays or rejections may be encountered based
upon additional government regulation, including any changes in the FDA policy during the process of clinical
trials.

In order to conduct clinical investigations on a new drug product, for example, whether of chemical or
biological origin, that have not been previously approved in the United States or have not been approved for
the labeled indication being sought by an applicant, the applicant or sponsor must first file an investigational
new drug (IND) application with the FDA. Such application must contain, among other things, detailed

information on the proposed drug product, the contemplated protocol for conducting the clinical investigation,
and any available safety and effectiveness information on the proposed drug product. In addition, an
Institutional Review Board must approve the protocol to ensure that it provides adequate protection of the
rights of the human subjects to be included in the clinical study. If the FDA does not object to the IND
application, the study may begin after 30 days from the date the IND application was filed. The FDA may
affirmatively approve the IND application prior to the expiration of the 30-day period, at which point the
clinical study may begin.

If human clinical trials of a device are required for a pre-market approval application and if the device
presents a significant risk as defined in the FDA’s regulations, the sponsor of the trial (usually the
manufacturer or the distributor of the device) must submit an investigational device exemption (IDE) filing
prior to commencing human clinical trials. The IDE application must be supported by data, typically including
the results of animal and laboratory testing and include the proposed protocol governing the clinical study. If
the IDE application is approved by the FDA and an appropriate Institutional Review Board, human clinical
trials may begin at a specific number of investigational sites with a specific number of patients, as approved by
the FDA.

Submission of an IDE application or IND application does not give assurance that the FDA will not
object to the IDE application or IND application. Furthermore, even if the IDE application or IND
application becomes effective, there can be no assurance that the FDA will determine that the data derived
from the studies support the safety and efficacy of the drug or device or warrant the continuation of clinical
studies. In addition, the regulations governing INDs and IDEs are extensive and involve numerous other
requirements including that, generally, an IDE application or IND application supplement must be submitted
to and approved by the FDA before a sponsor or investigator may make a change to the investigational plan
that may affect its scientific soundness or the rights, safety or welfare of human subjects. Deviation from these
regulatory requirements can lead to the FDA refusing to consider the study in support of a commercial
marketing application. :

In some circumstances, sponsors of clinical trials are permitted to sell investigational drugs, biologics, or
devices distributed in the course of the study, provided such compensation does not exceed recovery of the
costs of manufacture, research, development and handling. If we elect to pursue this option, we will need to
seek the FDA’s approval if the clinical investigation is conducted under an investigational new drug or an
investigational device exemption. The FDA routinely does not grant such approvals. Typically, a showing of
special need is required.

Discontinued Operations

As a result of the merger between Pre-Merger Lipid and NZ on November 29, 2001, certain real estate
assets, including commercial real estate loans, were acquired. On March 22, 2002, the Company formalized a
plan to discontinue the operations of our real estate and real estate lending business, including commercial real
estate loans, to fund the ongoing operations of Lipid Sciences’ biotechnology business. As a result, we have
reclassified the results of operations and the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations for all periods
presented.

During 2002, we sold or collected principal payments on outstanding loans on approximately 73% of the
assets in the real estate and lending business. This included the sale of five industrial properties in Arizona,
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rural land and/or mineral rights in Arizona and New Mexico, mineral rights in Colorado and Oklahoma,
royalty interests in oil and gas wells, and the collection of principal payments on commercial real estate loans.

As of December 31, 2002, the remaining assets in the disposal group were primarily one commercial real
estate loan, notes receivable in connection with seller-provided financing of prior sales of real estate,
approximately 79,000 acres of certain mineral rights in New Mexico, vacant industrial land in New Mexico,
and residential lots in New Mexico and California. No new real estate activity is anticipated, except as
necessary for the ultimate disposition of the assets.

Board and Management Developments

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D. and Richard G. Babbitt
were elected to our Board of Directors, and Mr. Babbitt was appointed to serve as Chairman of our Board of
Directors, replacing Christopher A. Marlett. Dr. Meyer was appointed to serve as a member of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, as well as a member and Chairman of the Audit
Committee. In September 2002, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Babbitt, Dr. Meyer and Frank M.
Placenti to a newly-created Executive Committee of the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee serves
as a resource to management for daily operational issues. In addition, in September 2002 the Board increased
the annual retainer for Directors to $30,000 from $18,000 and increased cash compensation for Directors
serving on committees to $1,500 per meeting from $1,000 per meeting.

In October 2002, Phil Radlick, Ph.D. resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer and as a director
of the Company and continued to serve as an advisor to the Company through February 2003. The Company
is considering candidates for the position of President and Chief Executive Officer. In addition, former
Chairman Christopher A. Marlett resigned as a Director of the Company in October 2002. H. Bryan
Brewer Jr., M.D. was elected to our Board of Directors in October 2002. Dr. Brewer has been a member of our
Scientific Advisory Board since 2001 and will continue to serve as a member of the Scientific Advisory Board.
In addition, Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., resigned as a Director of the Company in March 2003.

Employees

As of December 31, 2002, we had thirty-two employees. On January 28, 2003 we announced a
restructuring plan in part to reduce operating expenses. As a result, certain management and other staff
positions have been eliminated. Currently, we have nineteen employees, eighteen of whom are full-time. Six
employees are engaged directly in research and new product development, two in regulatory affairs, quality
assurance and clinical activities, five in administration and finance, and six in real estate and lending activities.
Of our nineteen employees, five are located in Arizona, one in New Mexico and the balance in California.

We maintain compensation, benefits, equity participation, and work environment policies intended to
assist in attracting and retaining qualified personnel. We believe the success of our business will depend, in
significant part, on our ability to attract and retain such personnel. No employee is represented by a collective
bargaining agreement, nor have we experienced any work stoppage.

Factors That May Affect Future Results and Financial Condition

If we are unable to obtain adequate funds, we may not be abie to develop and market our
potential products.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, we incurred a net loss of approximately $14,800,000
and since Inception through December 31, 2002, we have incurred an accumulated deficit of approximately
$31,500,000. We expect to continue to incur losses for the foreseeable future as we continue funding for
clinical testing and other activities related to seeking approval to market our products. Conducting clinical
trials necessary to apply for regulatory approval to sell our products will take a number of years and will require
significant amounts of capital.
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As of December 31, 2002, we had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments equal to
approximately $20,600,000. We anticipate that these assets and the cash raised from the disposal of remaining
assets included in the discontinued operations plan will provide sufficient working capital for our research and
development activities for the next year. As of December 31, 2002, we have disposed of a substantial portion of
the assets included in the discontinued operations plan. In the near future, we will require additional capital in
amounts that cannot be quantified; but are expected to be significant. Although we recently announced a plan
to restructure our business operations, in part to reduce operating expenses through staff reductions and
cessation of all operations in Australia, we cannot assure you that such reduction in operating expenses will be
realized. We intend to seek capital needed to fund our operations through new collaborations, through pursuit
of research and development grants or through public or private equity or debt financings. Additional financing
may not be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. If we are unable to obtain financing on acceptable
terms, our ability to continue our business as planned will be significantly harmed.

Our technology is only in the clinical development stage, may not prove to be safe or effective, and may
never receive regulatory approval, which would significantly harm our business prospects.

Before obtaining required regulatory approvals for the commercial sale of any of our potential products,
we must demonstrate, through pre-clinical studies and clinical trials, that our technology is safe and effective
for use in at least one medical indication. These studies and clinical trials are expected to take a number of
years and may fail to show that our technology is sufficiently safe and effective, in which case our technology
will not receive regulatory approval, and we will not be able to develop and commercialize our products. In the
third quarter of 2002, we paused our Phase 1 human clinical trial being conducted in Australia. Through our
recently announced plan to restructure our business operations, we have discontinued our Phase 1 human
clinical trial and ceased all operations in Australia. For strategic reasons, we have determined to align our
clinical trial efforts toward the development of our Viral Pathogen Inactivation platform and U.S.-based
clinical trials. We cannot assure you when, or if, our U.S.-based clinical efforts based on our VPI platform will
lead to a successful commercialization of any product.

Our technology, and hence, our business, at present is limited to addressing two medical applications: the
removal of lipids from lipid-enveloped viruses, such as HIV, Hepatitis B and C, and other lipid-containing
infectious agents, and the treatment of cardiovascular disease. Accordingly, if our technology does not prove to
be safe or effective, or if we otherwise fail to receive regulatory approval for our potential product indications,
our business prospects would be significantly harmed and possibly it could cause us to cease operations.

Our future clinical studies may be delayed or unsuccessful.

QOur future success depends in large part upon the results of clinical trials designed to assess the safety and
efficacy of our potential product indications. The ultimate results of clinical studies cannot be predicted with
accuracy and can be impacted by many variables. We cannot be sure whether planned clinical trials will begin
on time or will be completed on schedule or at all. Delay or failure to complete clinical studies may delay or
prevent us from bringing products to market, which would materially harm our business. For example, any of
our future clinical studies might be delayed in their initiation or performance, or even halted after initiation
because:

= extensive and time-consuming pre-clinical animal studies are required by the regulatory authorities to
demonstrate the safety of the process technology;

> the data gererated by the pre-clinical animal studies does not indicate to the regulatory authorities that
there is a sufficient margin of safety;

o the potential clinical benefit from the delipidation cannot be effectively demonstrated through the pre-
clinical animal studies;

» the relevant regulatory requirements for initiating and maintaining an application for a clinical study
cannot be met;

o the product is not effective, or physicians perceive that the product is not effective;
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+ patients experience severe side effects during treatment;

+ patients die during a clinical study because their disease is too advanced or because they experience
medical problems that are not related to the product being studied;

+ patients do not enroll in the studies at the rate we expect; or

» the discovery by the sponsor, during the study, of deficiencies in the way the study is being conducted
by the study investigators that raise questions as to whether the study is being conducted in conformity
with the relevant regulatory authorities’ regulations or Good Clinical Practice.

In the third quarter of 2002, we voluntarily paused our Phase 1 human clinical trial which was being
conducted in Australia to determine the safety of our plasma delipidation process. For strategic reasons, we
have recently decided to discontinue our Phase 1 human clinical trial and cease all operations in Australia and
to align our clinical trial efforts toward the development of our VPI platform and U.S.-based clinical trials.

We depend on our license agreement with Avuba International Pty. Ltd. that may, if terminated,
significantly harm our business.

We have entered into an agreement for an exclusive license to patents, know-how and other intellectual
property relating to our foundation technology for removal of lipids from proteins and our continued operations
at present are dependent upon such license. The licensor is Aruba International Pty. Ltd., a company
controlled by Dr. Bill E.. Cham, a founding stockholder of Pre-Merger Lipid and a former Director of the
Company. Dr. Cham also controls KAI International, LLC, our largest stockholder. The technology licensed
from Aruba currently represents an important part of the technology owned or licensed by us. Aruba may
terminate the license agreement if we fail to perform and fail to remedy following written notice of default
with respect to our material obligations under the agreement, including our obligations to make royalty
payments, or if we cease, without intention to resume, all efforts to commercialize the subject matter of the
licensed intellectual property. If our license with Aruba terminates, our business would be significantly harmed
and may cause us to cease operations.

We intend to rely on collaborations in order to further develop our products. If these collaborations are
unsuccessful, the development of our products could be adversely affected and we may incur significant
unexpected costs.

We intend to enter into collaborations with strategic partners, licensors, licensees and others. For
example, we have entered into a relationship with SRI International to provide the development of multiple
production prototypes, including hardware, software and disposables, based on our technology. We may be
unable to maintain or expand our existing collaborations or establish additional collaborations or licensing
arrangements necessary to develop our technology or on favorable terms. Any current or future collaborations
or licensing arrangements may not be successful. In addition, parties we collaborate with may develop
products that compete with ours, and we cannot be certain that they will perform their contractual obligations
or that any revenues will be derived from such arrangements. If one or more of these parties fails to achieve
product development objectives, this failure could harm our ability to fund related programs and develop or
commercialize products.

Our industry is intensely competitive.

The biotechnology industry is intensely competitive and we may not be able to develop, perfect or acquire
rights to new products with commercial potential. We compete with biotechnology and pharmaceutical
companies that have been established longer than we have, have a greater number of products on the market,
have greater financial and other resources and have other technological or competitive advantages. We also
compete in the development of technologies and processes and in acquiring personnel and technology from
academic institutions, governmental agencies, and other private and public research organizations. We cannot
be certain that one or more of our competitors will not receive patent protection that dominates, blocks or
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adversely affects our clinical studies, product development or business; will benefit from significantly greater
sales and marketing capabilities; or will not develop products that are accepted more widely than ours.

If we fail to secure and then enforce patents and other intellectual property rights underlying our
techinologies, we may be unable to compete effectively.

Our future success will depend in part on our ability to obtain patent protection, defend patents once
obtained, maintain trade secrets and operate without infringing upon the patents and proprietary rights of
others, and if needed, obtain appropriate licenses to patents or proprietary rights held by third parties with
respect to its technology, both in the United States and in foreign countries. We currently have an exclusive
license from Aruba International Pty. Ltd. with respect to three issued US patents (and three issued
Australian counterpart patents) and counterpart applications as well as independent pending patent applica-
tions. The issued patents will expire in July 2005, July 2014 and December 2014. There are additional pending
applications assigned to us. Each of the patents and pending applications relates to different aspects of our
technology platforms. However, these patent applications may not be approved and, even if approved, our
patent rights may not be upheld in a court of law or may be narrowed if challenged. The patent positions of
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies can be highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions. Our patent rights may not provide competitive advantages for our products and may be challenged,
infringed upon or circumvented by our competitors.

In addition to patents, we rely on trade secrets, know-how, continuing technological innovations, and
licensing opportunities to develop and maintain our competitive position. It is our policy to require our
employees, certain contractors, consultants, members of our scientific and viral advisory boards and parties to
collaborative agreements to execute confidentiality agreements upon the commencement of a business
relationship with us. We cannot assure you that these agreements will not be breached, that they will provide
meaningful protection of our trade secrets or know-how or adequate remedies if there is unauthorized use or
disclosure of this information or that our trade secrets or know-how will not otherwise become known or be
independently discovered by our competitors. '

If it were ultimately determined that our intellectual property rights are unenforceable, or that our use of
our technology infringes on the intellectual property rights of others, we may be required or may desire to
obtain licenses to patents and other intellectual property held by third parties to develop, manufacture and
market products using our technology. We may not be able to obtain these licenses on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all, and any licensed patents or intellectual property that we may obtain may not be
valid or enforceable. In addition, the scope of intellectual property protection is subject to scrutiny and
challenge by courts and other governmental bodies. Litigation and other proceedings concerning patents and
proprietary technologies can be protracted, expensive and distracting to management and companies may sue
competitors as a way of delaying the introduction of competitors’ products. Any litigation, including any
interference proceedings to determine priority of inventions, oppositions to patents in foreign countries or
litigation against our partners, may be costly and time-consuming and could significantly harm our business.

Because of the large number of patent filings in the biopharmaceutical field, our competitors may have
filed applications or been issued patents and may obtain additional patents and proprietary intellectual
property rights relating to products or processes competitive with or similar to ours. We cannot be certain that
U.S. or foreign patents do not exist or will be issued that would harm our ability to commercialize our products
and product candidates.

If we use biclogical and hazardous materials in a manner thar causes injury, we may be liable
Jor damages.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of potentially harmful biological
materials, such as blood products, organic solvents and other hazardous materials. We cannot completely
eliminate the risk of accidental contamination or injury from the use, storage, handling or disposal of these
materials. In the event of contamination or injury, we could be held liable for damages that result, and any
liability could be significant. We are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the use,
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storage, handling and disposal of these materials and specified waste products. The cost of compliance with
these laws and regulations could be significant.

Our business exposes us to product liability claims.

Our design, testing, development, manufacture and marketing of products involve an inherent risk of
exposure to product liability claims and related adverse publicity. Insurance coverage is expensive and difficult
to obtain, and we may be unable to obtain coverage in the future on acceptable terms, if at all. Although we
currently maintain product liability insurance for our products in the amounts we believe to be commercially
reasonable, we cannot be certain that the coverage limits of our insurance policies or those of our strategic
partners will be adequate. If we are unable to obtain sufficient insurance at an acceptable cost or if a successful
product liability claim is made against us, whether fully covered by insurance or not, our business could be
harmed. :

We depend on key personnel and need to fill the vacancy in the position of Chief Executive Officer
and President.

Our ability to operate successfully depends in significant part upon the experience, abilities and continued
service of certain key scientific, technical and managerial personnel. If we lose the services of any of these
personnel and we are unable to hire qualified replacements, our businéss could be harmed. Our future success
also depends upon our ability to attract and retain additional highly qualified personnel in these areas and our
ability to develop and maintain relationships with qualified clinical researchers. In this regard, our Chief
Executive Officer and President resigned in October 2002 and we are currently considering candidates to fill
this position. In addition, our Chief Financial Officer resigned in January 2003. We currently do not plan to fill
that position. Competition for such personnel and relationships is intense, especially in the San Francisco Bay
Area. There can be no assurance that we can retain such personnel or that we can attract or retain other highly
qualified scientific, technical and managerial personnel or develop and maintain relationships with clinical
researchers in the future.

An economic downturn in the real estate market could adversely affect our ability to complete the disposal
of assets included in the discontinued operations plan and generate funds for our continuing operations.

While we have disposed of most of the assets in the discontinued operations plan, we plan to use the
proceeds from the sales of the remaining assets in the discontinued operations plan to partially fund our
continuing operations. While the current real estate markets are generally healthy, there is no assurance that
the markets will continue to be favorable to support the disposal of these assets. A downturn in the real estate
market could adversely affect our ability to sell these real estate assets. Additionally, a downturn in the real
estate market could adversely affect the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans according to the terms of
the loans and/or could adversely affect the value of the collateral for those loans. Either of these outcomes
would impair our ability to generate funds for our continuing operations.

Our stock price may be volatile and there may not be an active trading market for our common stock.

There can be no assurance that there will be an active trading market for our common stock or that the
market price of the common stock will not decline below its present market price. The market prices for
securities of biotechnology companies have been, and are likely to continue to be, highly volatile. Factors that
have had, and are expected to continue to have, a significant impact on the market price of our common stock
include:

¢ material public announcements;

» actual or potential clinical results with respect to our products under development or those of our
competitors;

o the announcement and timing of any new product introductions by us or others;

technical innovations or product development by us or our competitors;
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o regulatory approvals or regulatory issues;

» developments relating to patents and proprietary rights;

= political developments or proposed legislation in the medical device or healthcare industry;
= economic and other external factors, disaster or crisis;

« changes to our management;

> period-to-period fluctuations in our financial results or results which do not meet or exceed analyst
expectations; and

o market trends relating to or affecting stock prices throughout our industry, whether or not related to
results or news regarding us or our competitors.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods
of volatility in the market price of its securities. We may, in the future, be the target of similar litigation.
Regardless of its outcome, securities litigation may result in substantial costs and divert management’s
attention and resources, which could harm our business and results of operations.

Shares eligible for future sale.

The future sale of substantial number of shares of our common stock, or the perception that such sales
could occur, would impact the market price of our common stock. In connection with the merger of the
privately-held Lipid Sciences, Inc. with and into NZ Corporation in November 2001, (i) certain of our
stockholders beneficially owning 5,451,772 shares of our common stock have agreed for one year, and
(ii) certain of our other stockholders beneficially owning 9,622,803 shares of our common stock have agreed
for two years, pursuant to executed lock-up agreements, not to sell any shares of common stock. The shares
subject to such one-year lock-up agreements became available for sale in the public market on November 29,
2002 and the shares subject to such two-year lock-up agreements will be available for sale in the public market
on November 29, 2003. If a substantial number of shares of common stock that have become available for sale
or will be available for sale in the near future are sold, the market price of our common stock may be
negatively impacted.

Existing stockholders may experience substantial dilution.

In connection with the merger of the privately-held Lipid Sciences, Inc. with and into NZ Corporation,
we are obligated to issue additional shares of common stock on November 29, 2003 to those individuals and
entities who were stockholders of NZ Corporation on the day prior to the completion of the merger and who
perfected their stock rights, subject to certain exceptions. Each perfected right entitles the holder to receive up
to one additional share of our common stock. If additional shares are issued pursuant to the rights, the
issuance of additional shares of common stock will have the effect of diluting the ownership of stockholders
not holding rights and increasing the proportionate ownership of the stockholders holding rights. As of
December 31, 2002, 2,954,822 rights were perfected with an additional 105,518 rights pending determination.
If all of the holders of perfected rights remain qualified to receive the additional shares on November 29, 2003,
the issnance will dilute stockholders by up to 12.6%, based on 21,141,455 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2002. In addition, if we seek funding through equity financings, there would be further dilution
to existing stockholders.

We have adopted several anti-takeover measures.

We have taken a number of actions that could discourage a takeover attempt that might be beneficial to
stockholders who wish to receive a premium for their shares from a potential bidder. For example:

o our Board of Directors has the authority to issue, without vote or action of stockholders, up to
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to fix the price, rights, preferences and privileges of those
shares. Any series of preferred stock could contain dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights,
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terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences or other rights superior to the rights of
holders of common stock;

 our Directors are elected to staggered terms, which prevents the board from being replaced in any
single year;

« our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws require the affirmative vote of the holders of sixty-six and
two-thirds percent (66%:%) of the voting power of all of the then outstanding shares entitled to vote
generally in the election of Directors, voting together as a single class, to make, alter, amend or repeal
our Bylaws;

« our Certificate of Incorporation does not permit stockholders to take an action by written consent;

« our Certificate of Incorporation and the Bylaws provide that special meetings of the stockholders may
be called only by the Chairman of the Board, the President, or the Board of Directors by a resolution
approved by a majority of the total number of Directors we would have if there were no vacancies; and

« under our Bylaws, notice regarding stockholder proposals and Director nominations must have been
delivered not less than 45 days nor more than 75 days prior to the first anniversary of the date on which
we first mailéd our proxy materials for the preceding year’s annual meeting.

ITEM 2: PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our headquarters are located at 7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401 in Pleasanton, California. The
facility is approximately 12,000 square feet, which consists of approximately 9,000 square feet of office and
warehouse space and 3,000 square feet of laboratory space. The master lease, entered into in September 2000
for approximately 9,000 square feet, was amended in September 2002 to allow for an additional 3,000 square
feet. We have entered into a five-year lease with respect to the master lease, and a three-year lease with
respect to the lease amendment. Both facility leases expire in September 2005.

Our previously subleased facility in Brisbane, Australia, consisting of approximately 700 square feet of
office and laboratory space, expired in May 2002. We did not renew the sublease.

Additionally, we have leased office space in Phoenix, Arizona for our real estate related activities
headquarters. The facility is approximately 5,000 square feet, all of which is office space. In August 2002, we
provided notice to the landlord of our intent to exercise the early termination provision under the lease.
Accordingly, that lease will expire March 31, 2003. Effective as of April 1, 2003, the Phoenix office will
occupy leased space of approximately 900 square feet. The lease will expire in March 2004, but may be
terminated early by us without penalty upon 90 days prior written notice.

We also have space available for our use at the SRI International facility in connection with our product
development agreement with them.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time a party to legal proceedings. All of the legal proceedings we are currently
involved in are ordinary and routine. The outcomes of the legal proceedings are uncertain until they are
completed. We believe that the results of the current proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our
business or financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of stockholders of the Company during the fourth quarter of
2002.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

As of November 29, 2001, our common stock has traded on the Nasdaq National Market System under
the symbol “LIPD”. Prior to November 29, 2001, our common stock was admitted to non-listed trading
privileges on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol “NZ”. The following table sets forth, for the
period indicated, the high and low closing sales prices per share of our common stock, as reported by the
AMEX and Nasdaq National Market, respectively. On March 4, 2003, there were approximately 1,010
registered holders of record of our common stock, including multiple beneficial holders and depositories, banks
and brokers listed as a single holder in the street name of each respective depository, bank or broker.

The Market Price Range by Quarter:

2002 2001 2000
High Low High Low High Low
First Quarter............ .. ... ... $8.080  $5.500 $4.000 $3.125 $5.625 $4.875
Second Quarter .......... ... ... ... 6.740 3.460 5.550 3.700 5.375 4.875
Third Quarter . .......... ... ... ... ... .. ... 4.960 2.600 9.960 4.400 5.000 4.250
Fourth Quarter .......... .. ... .. .. .o ... 3.010 = 1.020 9.610 6.850 4.688 2.938

We did not declare any dividends on our common stock in 2002 or in any prior years. We anticipate that
for the foreseeable future we will continue to retain our earnings for use in our business. The payment of cash
dividends is at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides aggregate information regarding outstanding options and warrants under all
equity compensation plans of the Company through December 31, 2002:

Number of Securities
Remaining Availabie

Number of Securities for Future Issuance
te be Issued upen Weighted- Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plan
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in first column)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security Holders .. 4,873,701V $4.47 4,644,339
Equity Compensation............ 865,260 2.52 —_
Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders ..................... 1,091,314 3.67 —
Total. ... ..o 6,830,275 $4.10 4,644,339

|

(1) Issued pursuant to the Company’s 2001 Performance Equity Plan, 2000 Stock Option Plan and the 1997
Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Issued pursuant to individual option agreements, the material terms of which are described below.

(3) Issued pursuant to warrants, the material terms of which are described below.

The shares of common stock subject to outstanding options and warrants that were granted pursuant to
equity compensation plans not approved by the shareholders of the Company were granted pursuant to
individual stock option agreements and warrants, the material provisions of which are the following:

Each of Petar Alaupovic, Ph.D., George A. Bray, M.D., H. Bryan Brewer, M.D., Howard Hodis, M.D.,
Gerhard Kostner, Ph.D. and Frank Sacks, M.D. was granted a non-qualified stock option to
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purchase 116,927 shares of common stock as consideration for services performed as a member of the
Company’s Scientific Advisory Board. The options granted to the Scientific Advisory Board members are
subject to substantially identical terms. Each option has a term of five years, a per share exercise price equal to
the fair market value on the date of grant and is exercisable for a three-month period following the
optionholder’s termination of service for any reason other than cause, the optionholder’s death or disability.
The non-qualified stock option to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock that was granted to Gary S.
Roubin, M.D., Ph.D., as consideration for services he performed as a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors is subject to substantially similar terms as the options granted to the Scientific Advisory Board
members, except that the term of the option is 10 years rather than 5 years. The Company also granted to Joe
Markham, as consideration for services performed for the Company in a private placement transaction, a non-
qualified stock option to purchase 7,796 shares of common stock that provides for substantial similar terms as
the options granted to the Scientific Advisory Board members above. Each option that was granted outside the
Company’s plans other than the option granted to Mr. Markham, which was exercisable immediately as of the
date of grant, became exercisable over a specified period. All of these options were fully vested as of
December 31, 2002.

In May 2000, the Company sold to Joseph D. Chandler, an existing shareholder on the date of grant, a
warrant to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock at a per share exercise price of $3.21 as consideration for
services he performed for the Company in connection with a private placement transaction. In exchange for
the warrant to Mr. Chandler, the Company received cash consideration in the amount of $20,000. The warrant
sold to Mr. Chandler expires on May 15, 2005. In October 2000, the Company issued to SRI a warrant to
purchase 779,510 shares of common stock at a per share exercise price of $3.21 as consideration for services it
performed in connection with a development agreement between the Company and SRI International. The
warrant, which expires on October 6, 2007, becomes exercisable only upon completion of specified milestones.
In May 2001, the Company sold to Carroll Shelby a warrant to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock at a
per share exercise price of $6.41 as consideration for services performed for the Company in connection with a
private placement transaction. In exchange for the warrant sold to Mr. Shelby, the Company received cash
consideration in the amount of $20,000. This warrant expires on May 30, 2006.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presented below for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001 and for the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000, are derived from audited
financial statements. The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our financial statements and related notes
thereto appearing elsewhere in this annual report. The selected data in this section are not intended to replace
our financial statements.

Years Ended December 31, 2002, December 31, 2691 and N
Period From Inception (May 21, 1999) to Becember 31, 2000*" 2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Gross Revenue from continuing operations ......................... $ — 3 - $ -
Net Loss from continuing operations ...............coovviiiennn... (15,403)  (13,691)  (2,993)
Net loss per share from continuing operations ...................... $ (073) $ (0.87) $ (0.34)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and

diluted earnings pershare ....... .. ... . 21,152 15,801 8,877
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2002 2001 2000

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments .................. $ 20,552 $ 12,811 §$ 9,171
Working Capital .. ... . e 34,151 28,388 9,050
Total aSSetS ..t e 39,524 79,232 10,269
Long-term liabilities ... ... ... .. .. i e 36 22,598 7
Stockholder’'s eqUIty .. ..ottt e e 35,606 51,277 9,623

(1) Because our merger with Pre-Merger Lipid was treated as a reverse acquisition, Pre-Merger Lipid was
considered the acquiror for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, all financial
information prior to November 29, 2001 presented represents the financial results of Pre-Merger Lipid.

(2) Financial information for the year ended December 31, 2001, includes the results of Pre-Merger Lipid
from January 1, 2001 through November 28, 2001, and the Company’s results from November 29, 2001
through December 31, 2001.

(3) Activities during the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 1999 were insignificant and
have been included in the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2000.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes thereto, included on pages F-1 through F-27 of this Report, and the “Factors
That May Affect Future Results and Financial Condition” section at the end of Part I, Item 1. The statements
below contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.
See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page Il

Overview

We are a development-stage biotechnology company that is conducting research and developing products
and processes intended to treat major medical conditions in which lipids, or fat components, play a key role.
Our technologies are based on a patented process that selectively removes lipids from proteins. We believe
that this unique delipidation process has the potential for far-reaching implications for human health. It may
provide an effective therapeutic effect on many infectious agents, including the viruses that cause AIDS,
Hepatitis B and C, as well as reverse cardio- and cerebrovascular disease.

Our primary activities since incorporation have been conducting research and development, performing
business, strategic and financial planning, and raising capital. Accordingly, the Company is considered to be in
the development stage.

We are developing our basic delipidation technology as two complementary technology platforms. The
first platform, Viral Pathogen Inactivation (VPI™) is designed to remove lipid from lipid-enveloped viruses,
bacteria and other lipid-enveloped infectious agents. Examples of viruses with lipid envelopes that may be
treatable by our VPI system include HIV, Hepatitis B, and Hepatitis C. The second platform, Vascular Lipid
Removal (VLR™) is focused on treating atherosclerosis, which results from an overabundance of lipids in the
vascular system. Our VLR platform is targeted at treating conditions such as heart disease, stroke and
peripheral vascular disease.

On November 29, 2001, we completed our merger with Pre-Merger Lipid. As a result of the merger, the
Company was renamed Lipid Sciences, Inc. Pre-Merger Lipid ceased to exist as a separate corporation, and
the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid became shareholders of the Company. In connection with the merger,
Pre-Merger Lipid shareholders received 1.55902 shares of our common stock for each share of Pre-Merger
Lipid common stock they held at the time the merger was completed. After the transaction, the Pre-Merger
Lipid shareholders owned approximately 75% of the then outstanding stock of the Company and the NZ
shareholders owned the remaining shares of the Company’s common stock.
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The merger with NZ was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and was treated as a
reverse acquisition because the stockholders of Pre-Merger Lipid owned the majority of cur common stock
immediately after the merger. Pre-Merger Lipid was considered the acquiror for accounting and financial
reporting purposes. Accordingly, all financial information prior to November 29, 2001 included in this report
reflects Pre-Merger Lipid results.

In connection with the merger, the Company is obligated to issue additional shares of common stock to
those individuals and entities who were stockholders of NZ on the day prior to the completion of the merger
and who perfected their stock rights, unless during the 24-month period immediately following the merger, the
closing price per share of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share throughout any
period of 20 consecutive trading days, in which the aggregate volume of shares traded equals or exceeds
1,500,000 shares. Each perfected right entitles the holder to receive up to one additional share of the
Company’s common stock. Stockholders had until April 30, 2002 to perfect their rights and must continue to
hold their shares in direct registered form through November 29, 2003 to qualify to receive the additional
stock with respect to each perfected right. Transfer of shares before November 29, 2003 will disqualify the
right with respect to each of the transferred shares. If additional shares are issued pursuant to the rights, the
issuance of additional shares of common stock will have the effect of diluting the ownership of stockholders
not holding rights and increasing the proportionate ownership of the stockholders holding rights. As of
December 31, 2002, 2,954,822 rights were perfected with an additional 105,518 rights pending determination.
If all of the holders of perfected rights remain qualified to receive the additional shares on November 29, 2003,
the issuance will dilute stockholders by up to 12.6%, based on 21,141,455 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2002.

In the course of our research and development activities, we have sustained continued operating losses
and we expect these losses to continue for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in research and
development and begin to allocate significant and increasing resources to clinical testing and other activities
related to seeking approval to market our products. We approved a discontinued operations plan on March 22,
2002, to dispose of substantially all of the real estate and other assets held by the Company before the merger
(see Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements). During 2002, we disposed of most of the assets in the
discontinued operations plan. We intend to finance our operations through the disposition of the remaining
assets, through public or private equity or debt financings, the pursuit of research and development grants, and
cash on hand. In the longer term, we expect to additionally finance our operations through revenues from
product sales and licenses upon receiving all relevant approvals. If adequate funds are not available to satisfy
our requirements, we may have to substantially reduce, or eliminate, certain areas of our product development
activities, significantly limit our operations, or otherwise modify our business strategy.

Our business is organized into two segments: Biotechnology and Real Estate. Our Biotechnology segment
is focused on research and development of products and processes intended to treat major medical conditions
in which lipid, or fat components play a key role. As a result of the merger with NZ on November 29, 2001,
certain real estate assets, including commercial real estate loans were acquired. As part of the merger, we
announced our intent to conduct an orderly disposition of these assets and on March 22, 2002, we formalized a
plan to discontinue the operations of our Real Estate segment. The plan identified the major assets to be
disposed of, the expected method of disposal, and the period expected to be required for completion of the
disposal.

As of December 31, 2001, we recorded restructuring charges of approximately $885,000, which were
charged to general and administrative expense. Our restructuring initiatives involved strategic decisions to exit
the real estate market through the orderly disposition of substantially all of NZ’s assets. As of December 31,
2002, we have utilized approximately $86,000 of the accruals set up for restructuring purposes. We expect the
restructuring to be completed in the first haif of 2003 with all accrued amounts paid within twelve months of
the restructuring completion (see Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On January 28, 2003, we announced a new strategic direction for the Company and the application and
development of our novel technology of plasma delipidation. As a result, we are focusing our research and
development on our proprietary VPI platform. The first indication being pursued by the Company to
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demonstrate the efficacy of our VP! platform technology is HIV. In connection with this new strategic
direction we have discontinued our Phase 1 human clinical trial in Australia, which was paused in the third
quarter of 2002, and ceased all operations in Australia. In addition, we are aligning our clinical trial efforts
toward the development of our VPI platform and U.S.-based clinical trials. Although our strategic plan is
projected to reduce operating expenses in the second half of 2003 by approximately 30% to 40% when
measured against the same period in 2002, we cannot assure you that such reduction will be sufficient to
permit the Company to succeed in its development efforts with currently available funds.

The new direction is part of a comprehensive strategic plan being implemented by the Company. In
connection with the adoption of that plan, we also have restructured our business operations. The strategic
plan was recommended by the management team and approved by the Board of Directors. As part of the cost-
savings goal of the strategic plan, Barry D. Michaels resigned as Chief Financial Officer and certain other
management and other staff positions have been eliminated. Sandra Gardiner, the Company’s Vice President,
Controller and Corporate Secretary, has assumed the newly created position of Chief Accounting Officer. In
related appointments, Marc Bellotti, who was Vice President of Product Development, has assumed the
position of Vice President, Research and Development. Dale Richardson, who was Vice President of
Marketing and Sales, has assumed the position of Vice President, Business Development. We are currently
considering candidates to fill the position of President and Chief Executive Officer, a position that has been
vacant since Phil Radlick, Ph.D., resigned on October 15, 2002. Although we believe our strategic plan will
lead to a reduction in our operational expenses, we cannot assure you that such reduction will be realized.

Critical Accounting Policies

In December 2001, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, required that all registrants
disclose and describe their “critical accounting policies” in MD&A. The SEC indicated that a “critical
accounting policy” is one which is both important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations and requires management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. In applying
those policies, our management uses its judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions to be used in the
determination of certain estimates. Those estimates are based on our historical experience, terms of existing
contracts, our observance of trends in the industry and information available from other outside sources, as
appropriate. We believe that our following accounting policies fit this definition:

Property and Equipment

Real estate properties are stated at the lower of cost or estimated fair value. All properties are held for
sale and are written down to estimated fair value when the Company determines the carrying cost exceeds the
estimated selling price, less costs to sell. Management makes this evaluation on a property-by-property basis.
The evaluation of fair value and future cash flows from individual properties requires significant judgment. Cur
estimates are based on historical results adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future market and operating
conditions. Our estimates of fair value represent our best estimate based on industry trends and reference to
market rates and transactions. It is reasonably possibie that a change in economic or market conditions couid
result in a change in management’s estimate of fair value.

Loans and Notes Receivable

All loans and notes receivable are held for sale and are written down to estimated fair value when the
Company determines that the loan is impaired. Among the factors used to determine whether a loan is
impaired are creditworthiness of the borrower, whether or not the loan is performing, the value of any
collateral for the loan, collectibility of the loan, and general economic and market conditions. The
determination of whether a loan is impaired requires significant judgment. Our estimates are based on
historical results adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future market and operating conditions. Cur
conclusions are based on factors that are inherently uncertain. It is reasonably possible that a change in
economic or market conditions could result in a change in management’s estimate of fair value.
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Stock Compensation

The Company accounts for stock options granted to employees using the intrinsic value method in
accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees,” and, thus, recognizes no compensation expense for those options granted with
exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. As
permitted, the Company has elected to adopt the disclosure provisions only of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation”. The Company accounts for its stock-based awards to non-employees in
accordance with SFAS No. 123 (see Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Income Taxes

The Company follows SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the asset and lability
method of SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprehensive list of all of our accounting policies. Our
significant accounting policies are more fully described in Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. In
many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by generally accepted
accounting principles, with no need for management’s judgment in their application. There are also areas in
which management’s judgment in selecting any available alternative would not produce a materially different
result. See our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto which begin on page F-1 of this
Report which contain accounting policies and other disclosures required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Results of Continuing Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2602 and 2001

Net Revenue. We have had no revenues from continuing operations since Inception (May 21, 1999).
Future revenues will depend on our ability to develop and commercialize our two primary platforms for the
treatment of lipid-enveloped viruses (Viral Pathogen Inactivation System) and cardiovascular disease
(Vascular Lipid Removal System).

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses include product develop-
ment, clinical testing, and regulatory expenses. Research and development expenses for 2002 increased 28% to
$15,094,000 from $11,799,000 in 2001. The increase in research and development expenses is due primarily to
the on-going development of the device component of our delipidation systems, expenses associated with our
human clinical trial, including $250,000 paid to Aruba International upon the commencement of our human
clinical trial, and staff additions in the research and development and clinical areas. Research and
development expenses account for approximately 69% of total operating expenses for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2002.

Our first human clinical trial commenced during the second quarter of 2002. The Phase 1 trial was being
conducted in Australia to determine the safety of our plasma delipidation process. After an adverse reaction in
a volunteer, the trial was voluntarily paused during the third quarter of 2002. The preliminary results from this
trial advanced the science and improved the safety of our proprietary delipidation process. We believe we have
identified and mitigated the cause of the adverse event experienced in that trial. However, for strategic
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reasons, we have discontinued our Phase 1 human clinical trial and ceased all operations in Australia.
Furthermore, we have decided to align our clinical trial efforts toward the development of our VPI platform
and U.S.-based clinical trials. We anticipate that our research and development expenses will continue for the
foreseeable future as we conduct clinical trials necessary for us to apply for regulatory approval to market our
products.

While we allocate and track resources when required pursuant to the terms of development arrangements,
our research team typically works on different products concurrently, and our equipment and intellectual
property resources often are deployed over a range of products with a view to maximize the benefit of our
investment. Accordingly, we have not, and do not intend to, separately track the costs for each of our research
projects on a product-by-product basis. For the vear ended December 31, 2002, however, we estimate that the
majority of our research and development expense was associated with our two primary platforms, Lipid-
Enveloped Viruses (Viral Pathogen Inactivation System) and Cardiovascular (Vascular Lipid Removal
System).

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for 2002 increased
51% to $6,630,000 from $4,405,000 in 2001. The increase is due primarily to costs to conduct business as a
public company, including accounting, legal, stockholder and filing fees. Public company related expenses
accounted for approximately 40% of the increase in general and administrative expenses. The balance of the
increase in such expenses is primarily due to expenses to establish administrative management, and Director
fees and expenses. General and administrative expenses account for approximately 31% of total operating
expenses for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002.

Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income for 2002 decreased 33% to $240,000 from
$356,000 in 2001. The decrease is due primarily to lower cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment
balances throughout 2002.

Results of Continuing Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2001 and Period frem Inception
(May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000

Net Revenue. We have had no revenues from continuing operations since Inception (May 21, 1999).
Future revenues will depend on our ability to develop and commercialize our two primary platforms for the
treatment of lipid-enveloped viruses (Viral Pathogen Inactivation System) and cardiovascular disease
(Vascular Lipid Removal System).

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses include product develop-
ment, clinical testing, and regulatory expenses. Research and development expenses for 2001 increased 433%
to $11,799,000 from $2,212,000 in the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000. The
increase in research and development expenses is due primarily to staff additions in research and development
and clinical areas, stock compensation expenses, a non-cash charge related to issuance of stock to our
Scientific Advisory Board, and expenses related to the on-going development of the device component of our
delipidation systems, including $3,400,000 related to the development agreement with SRI International, of
which $850,000 is a non-cash charge related to the issuance of warrants.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for 2001 increased
271% to $4,405,000 from $1,188,000 in the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000. The
increase is due primarily to expenses to establish administrative management (including recruitment fees),
accounting, legal, shareholder and filing fees associated with public company requirements, and restructuring
costs (see Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements) associated with the merger.

Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income for 2001 decreased 13% to $356,000 from
$407,000 in the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000. The decrease is due primarily
to lower cash, cash equivalent and short-term investment balances throughout 2001.
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Results of Discontinued Operations — Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2002 and 2000

During the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the disposal of real estate assets generated
cash of approximately $12,114,000, $21,800 and zero, respectively, and we collected approximately
$21,502,000, $495,000 and zero, respectively, in principal payments from commercial real estate notes and
other notes receivable.

In May 2002, we paid approximately $3,000,000 to purchase a first position mortgage loan, which was in
superior lien position to our second position mortgage loan, on 15 residential lots in San Diego County,
California. We purchased the first mortgage because the lender was foreclosing, leaving our second position
mortgage unsecured and possibly unrecoverable. The foreclosure process was completed and the property was
acquired in July 2002. We have undertaken certain development activities left unfinished by our borrower, in
order to prepare the lots for sale.

During 2002, we made significant progress under our plan of disposition. We reduced the total assets in
the disposal group by 73%, from approximately $62,400,000 to $16,900,000. We also reduced the total
liabilities in the disposal group by 99%, from approximately $23,700,000 to $200,000.

As of December 31, 2002, the remaining assets in the disposal group were primarily one commercial real
estate loan, notes receivable in connection with seller-provided financing of prior sales of real estate,
approximately 79,000 acres of certain mineral rights in New Mexico, vacant industrial land in New Mexico,
and residential lots in New Mexico and California. No new real estate activity is anticipated, except as
necessary for the ultimate disposition of the assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Pre-Merger Lipid financed its operations principally through two private placements of equity securities,
which yielded net proceeds of approximately $16,900,000, and the sale of common stock to one of its founders.
The merger with NZ resulted in the acquisition of net assets of approximately $45,000,000, net of repurchase
of stock and acquisition costs, through December 31, 2002.

The net cash used in operating activities was approximately $13,600,000, $10,400,000 and $2,100,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31,
2000, respectively, resulting primarily from operating losses incurred as adjusted for income taxes and non-
cash stock compensation charges. The net cash used in investing activities was approximately $2,600,000 and
$8,100,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to
December 31, 2000, respectively, primarily attributable to the purchase of short-term investments and capital
equipment. Net cash provided by investing activities of approximately $7,300,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001 was primarily from the maturities of short-term investments. Net cash used in financing
activities of approximately $700,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 was primarily due to the
repurchase of common stock from dissenting stockholders and additional accrued merger costs. Net cash
provided by financing activities of approximately $13,200,000 and $11,300,000 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001 and for the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000 was due primarily to
the acquisition of NZ Corporation and the sale of equity securities in private placement transactions. Net cash
provided by discontinued operations of approximately $22,700,000 and $1,500,000 for years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, was primarily due to the sale of real estate assets and collection of
principal payments on commercial real estate loans and other notes receivable.

In December 1999, we entered into an Intellectual Property License Agreement to obtain the exclusive
worldwide rights to certain patents, trademarks, and technology with Aruba International Pty. Ltd., an
Australian company, controlled by Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., a founding stockholder of Pre-Merger Lipid and a
former Director. As consideration for the license, we issued 4,677,060 shares of our common stock valued at
$250,000 to Aruba. This amount was charged to expense as research and development in the year ended
December 31, 2000. Under this agreement, we are obligated to pay Aruba a continuing royalty on revenue in
future years, subject to a minimum annual royalty amount of $500,000, 10% of any External Research
Funding received by us to further this technology, as defined in the agreement, and $250,000 upon
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commencement of our initial human clinical trial utilizing the technology under the patents. Our initial human
clinical trial commenced during the three month period ended June 30, 2002. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, we paid cash of approximately $350,000 and issued 66,817 shares of common stock
valued at $150,000 related to this agreement. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we have
expensed approximately $750,000 and $850,000, respectively, related to this agreement. Amounts for 2000,
2001 and 2002 were charged to research and development expense.

In May 2000, we sold a total of 4,925,300 shares of common stock at $2.25 per share in a private
placement to accredited investors. Net cash proceeds, after expenses, were approximately $11,000,000.

In October 2000, we entered into a Development Agreement with SRI International, a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation, pursuant to which SRI provides us with various consulting and
development services. SRI will assign to us all intellectual property developed during the term of the
Development Agreement. The Development Agreement calls for SRI to complete two development phases
(as defined in the Development Agreement, “Phase I and “Phase II") during which time SRI will work to
develop a medical device to enable us to further develop and commercialize our lipid removal technology. In
addition, we have entered into a number of amendments with SRI to address work performed by SRI, which
are both within and outside of the scope of work of Phase Il development. Certain of the amendments have
been in support of product development and certain of the amendments relate to supplemental testing and
analysis performed by SRI.

We also issued SRI warrants to purchase 779,510 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$3.21 per share. The warrants vested with respect to 233,853 shares upon completion of Phase I, with the
remaining 545,657 shares vesting upon completion of Phase II. On May 12, 2001, the Development
Agreement was amended with respect to the warrants to purchase 545,657 shares of common stock related to
Phase II. This amendment splits Phase II into two development milestones with warrants to
purchase 272,829 shares vesting at the completion of each milestone. If either development milestone is
discontinued at the option of the Company, all 545,657 warrants will vest at the completion of the remaining
milestone.

Phase I was completed on March 28, 2001. Fees for services performed by SRI for Phase [ totaled
$1,517,000. Of these total fees, funding of $973,000 and $544,000 was charged to operations in the year ended
December 31, 2001 and the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000, respectively. The
completion of Phase I resulted in warrants to purchase 233,853 shares of common stock becoming fully vested.
On this date, we recognized an expense of $847,500, based upon the fair market value of the warrants on the
date of vesting, using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a dividend
yield of 0%, a risk-free interest rate of 6%, and a life of seven years.

Phase II was initiated upon completion of Phase [. Fees for Phase II of the development program were
limited to $6,300,000. On July 26, 2002, funding to SRI for the continued development of Phase II was
increased to $9,500,000. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately $4,900,000 and
$2,500,000, respectively, was charged to operations for fees related to Phase II. As of December 31, 2002,
neither milestone related to Phase II was completed, consequently no value has been assigned to the
545,657 warrants which vest upon completion of such milestone. These warrants will be valued using the
Black-Scholes method and will be charged to expense as they vest. Consistent with our new strategic direction
announced on January 28, 2003, we have refocused SRI efforts to support our VPI platform and spending
related to Phase IT development has been significantly reduced.

In March 2001, we closed a private placement of 1,375,282 shares of common stock at $4.49 per share for
gross proceeds of $6,175,000. In connection with the private placement, we paid a commission to MDB Capi-
tal Group, LLC of approximately 7% of the gross proceeds, payable in shares of common stock, for services
rendered in the private placement. Accordingly, 95,491 shares of common stock at $4.49 per share were issued
as commission for the transaction. Mr. Marlett, the previous Chairman of our Board of Directors, is a manager
and majority owner of MDB Capital Group.
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In June 2001, Pre-Merger Lipid engaged MDB Capital Group, LLC as its financial advisor in the merger
between NZ and Pre-Merger Lipid. The engagement letter commits the Company to pay MDB Capital
Group an advisory fee. In December 2001, we paid MDB Capital Group approximately $446,000, which
represents a portion of the advisory fee and is based on 5% of the cash and cash equivalents of the Company
immediately after the merger, as compared to Pre-Merger Lipid’s cash and cash equivalents immediately prior
to the merger. The remainder of the advisory fee is based on 5% of the gross sales of the Company’s pre-
merger assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger, the Company’s assets on the two-year
anniversary of the merger and the net operating income of the Company derived from the Company’s pre-
merger assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger. Approximately $1,400,000 of the
advisory fee was paid during the twelve months ended December 31, 2002. We anticipate the remainder of the
advisory fee to be approximately $825,000. Our adoption of a formalized plan to dispose of all Real Estate
segment assets by March 31, 2003 will likely result in the payment of substantially all MDB Capital Group
advisory fees by third quarter 2003,

Additionally, in the normal course of business, we have consulted with Dr. Cham, and companies with
which he is affiliated, regarding various matters relating to research and development. The amount expensed
under these consultations amounted to approximately $21,000 and $110,000 in the year ended December 31,
2001 and the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000, respectively, for fees charged by
Dr. Cham, including travel and similar costs, and have been included in the results of operations. In
November 2001, we entered into a Service Agreement with Karuba International Pty. Ltd., a company
controlled by Dr. Cham, in order to consolidate such consulting services. We were required to pay
approximately $191,000 a year for Karuba’s consulting services, as well as out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
the performance of such services. Under the terms of the agreement, the annual obligation to Karuba
increased to approximately $198,000 per year in May 2002. This agreement, the initial term of which expired
on November 27, 2002, automatically renews every year. Either party may terminate the agreement, without
cause, upon thirty days written notice. However, if we terminate the agreement, we will be required to pay
Karuba an amount equal to one third of the annual fee. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
approximately $279,000 and $19,000, respectively, was expensed to research and development under this
agreement of which approximately $9,100 and $19,000 is included in accounts payable at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

We have a non-cancelable lease agreement for the office space in Pleasanton, California, which expires in
2005. Rent expense for 2002, 2001, and 2000 was approximately $303,000, $265,000, and $78,000,
respectively. Future minimum lease payments under this lease agreement total $975,000.

In the course of its research and development activities, the Company has sustained continued operating
losses and expects those losses to continue for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in research and
development and begin to allocate significant and increasing resources for clinical testing and related activities.
As of December 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments equal to
approximately $20.6 million. We anticipate that these assets and the cash raised from the disposal of
remaining assets included in the discontinued operations plan will provide sufficient working capital for our
research and development activities for at least the next year. We expect additional capital will be required in
the future. We intend to seek capital needed to fund our operations through new collaborations, such as
licensing or other arrangements, through pursuit of research and development grants or through public or
private equity or debt financings. Additional financing may not be available on terms favorable to us, or at all.
If we are unable to obtain financing on acceptable terms, our ability to continue our business as planned will be
significantly harmed.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141 “Business
Combinations” and SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, and that
the use of the pooling-of-interest method is no longer allowed. We adopted SFAS No. 141 on July 1, 2001.
SFAS No. 142 requires that amortization of goodwill will cease, and instead, the carrying value of goodwill
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will be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. Identifiable intangible assets will continue to be
amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 121 “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of.” SFAS No. 142 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Lipid adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002.
Adoption of this statement did not have an impact on Lipid’s financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” This statement superceded SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 retained the fundamental provisions
of SFAS No. 121 for (i) recognition and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and
used; and (ii) measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. SFAS No. 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Lipid adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002.
Adoption of this statement did not have a significant impact on Lipid’s financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASE Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45).
FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of
an obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 also requires additional disclosures by a guarantor in its
interim and annual financial statements about the obligations associated with guarantees issued. The
recognition provisions of FIN 45 are effective for any guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after
December 15, 2002. We adopted the disclosure requirements for the financial statements included in this
Form 10-K. We are currently evaluating the effects of the recognition provisions of FIN 45, however we do
not expect that the adoption of FIN 45 will have a material effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 amends
SFAS No. 123, “decounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for
a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company adopted the annual disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 148 as of December 31, 2002. The transitional provisions of SFAS No. 148 did not
have an impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, EPS, or cash flows, as the fair value
method has not been adopted.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which addresses accounting for restructuring and similar costs. SFAS No. 146 supersedes previous
accounting guidance, principally Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3. The Company will adopt the
provisions of SFAS No. 146 for restructuring activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146
requires that the liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is
incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date of the Company’s
commitment to an exit plan. SFAS No. 146 also establishes that the liability should initially be measured and
recorded at fair value. Accordingly, SFAS No. 146 may affect the timing of recognizing future restructuring
costs as well as the amounts recognized.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk associated with changes in interest rates relates to our investment portfolio.
We maintain a non-trading investment portfolio consisting of government issued securities. These investments
are classified as held-to-maturity and are accounted for at their amortized cost, as per FASB Statement
No. 115. Due to the conservative nature of our investment portfolio, we do not believe that short-term
fluctuations in interest rates would materially affect the value of our securities.
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The operating expenses, assets and liabilities of our Australian subsidiary are denominated in a foreign
currency, thereby creating exposure to changes in exchange rates. However, the risks related to foreign
currency exchange rates are not material to our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our financial statements and the report of independent auditors appear on pages F-1 through F-27 of this
report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Previously disclosed in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on January 31, 2002,
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PART III

ITEM 16. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information regarding Directors and Executive Officers appearing under the heading “Proposal One:
Election of Directors” and ‘“Management-Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of our
proxy statement relating to our 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 29, 2003 (the *“2003
Proxy Statement”) is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information appearing under the headings “Management-Executive Compensation,” “Management-
Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements,” “Management-
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Proposal One: Election of Directors-
Compensation of Directors” of the 2003 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGE-
MENT AND RELATED STOCCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the heading “Management-Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management” of the 2003 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information appearing under the heading “Management-Certain Relationships and Related Transac-
tions” of the 2003 Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference.

ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company’s Chief Accounting Officer, who is
currently the highest ranking officer of the Company, has evaluated the procedures (as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-14(c¢) and 15d-14(c) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act™)) as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
(the “Evaluation Date’’). Based on such evaluation, such officer has concluded that, as of the Evaluation
Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in alerting her, on a timely basis, to
material information relating to the Company (including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be
included in the Company’s periodic filings under the Exchange Act.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls. There have not been any significant changes in the Company’s internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect such controls subsequent to the date of their
evaluation.
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PART IV

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of
this Annual Report.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART CF THIS REPORT:

1. Financial Statements
The financial statements and notes thereto, and the reports of the independent auditors thereon,
are set forth on pages F-1 through F-27.

2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule I1I — Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
Schedule IV — Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in
amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedules or because the information required is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index to exhibits are filed or incorporated by reference as part of
this Annual Report.

(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

During the last quarter for which this Annual Report is filed, the Company filed the following reports on
Form 8-K:

1. Report on Form 8-K filed October 16, 2002 under “Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits”
and “Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure” containing Lipid Sciences, Inc.’s news release dated
Cctober 15, 2002 with respect to the announcement of board and management changes.

2. Report on Form 8-K filed October 28, 2002 under “Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits”
and “Item 9. Regulations FD Disclosure” containing Lipid Sciences, Inc.’s news release dated
October 28, 2002 with respect to the election of Dr. H. Bryan Brewer as a director.

3. Report on Form 8-K filed November 6, 2002 under “Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits”
and “Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure” containing a letter, dated November 6, 2002, from the
Chairman of the Board to Lipid Science, Inc.’s stockholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Lipid Sciences, Inc.
Pleasanton, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lipid Sciences, Inc. and subsidiaries
(a development stage company) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and for the period from Inception
(May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2002. Our audit also included the financial statement schedules [I and IV
listed in Item 15(a)2. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial
Statements based on our audits. The Company’s financial statements for the period from Inception (May 21,
1999) to December 31, 2000 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated March 13, 2001, expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements. The financial statements for the period from Inception (May 21,
1999) to December 31, 2000 reflect a net loss of $2,993,000 that is included in the related total for the period
from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2002. The other auditors’ report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such prior period, is based solely on the report
of such other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
agsessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, such Consolidated Financial
Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lipid Sciences, Inc. and
subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years then ended, and for the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) through December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such consolidated financial statement schedules referenced above, when considered in relation to the
basic Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set
forth therein. :

/s/ DeLoITTE & ToucHE LLP

San Francisco, California
March 14, 2003
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Lipid Sciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of
Lipid Sciences, Inc. (Pre-Merger Lipid) (a development stage company) for the period from Inception
(May 21, 1999) through December 31, 2000, included in the 2002 consolidated financial statements of Lipid
Sciences, Inc. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
results of operations and cash flows of Lipid Sciences, Inc. (Pre-Merger Lipid) (a development stage
company)} at December 31, 2000, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from
Inception (May 21, 1999) through December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

/s/ ERNST & YounNng LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 13, 2001
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LIPID SCIENCES INC.
{A Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2002 2001

(In thousands, except
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ....... .. .. i $ 18,552 $ 12,811
Short-term InVestmMents . . ... ... ..t 2,000 —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............. .. ... iiiiiiiinn... 537 111
Income tax receivable .. ... o i — 516
Current deferred tax asset. . ...ttt —_ 497
Other CUITENR @SSEES . . vt ettt et e e e et e et e 36 —
Current assets of discontinued operations .......... ... oo, 16,908 19,810
Total CUITENt ASSELS . . oottt et e 38,033 33,745
Property and equipment . ... .. ... e 1,175 786
Restricted cash .. ... .o i e 316 527
Non-current deferred tax asset .. ...ttt it et —_ 1,544
Non-current assets of discontinued operations ........................co..... — 42,630
Total ASSEES . o ottt e e $ 39,524 $ 79,232

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: ~
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......... ... ... .o oo oL $ 2,226 $ 1,783

Related party payables ........................ ... e 825 2,000
Accrued ToYalties . . ...t 250 250
Accrued compensation . ... ... ...t e 370 235
Income taxes payable ....... ... . 39 —
Other current liabilities ... ... o e — —
Current liabilities of discontinued operations ...................c.coovi.... 172 1,089
Total current habilities .................. S 3,882 5,357
Deferred rent ... ... .o 36 25
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations............... ... . cc.ooo... — 22,573
Total long-term liabilities ................ 1SS 36 22,598

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized and issuable; no
shares outstanding .. ... . ... . e — —

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized 21,141,455 and
21,246,222 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001,

TS PECtIVelY L L 21 67,947
Additional paid in capital ... ... ... . 67,049 —
Deficit accumulated in the development stage ........... ... ... ... ... (31,464)  (16,670)

Total stockholders’ equity ....... ... . . i 35,606 51,277
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........ .. ... ... . ... i $ 39,524 § 79,232

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Period from Period from
Inception Inception
(May 21, (May 21,
Year Ended Year Ended 1999) to 1999) to
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2092 2001 2000 2002
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue ............ .. ... $ — $ — $§  — $ —_
Operating expenses:
Research and development.................... 15,094 11,799 2,212 29,105
Selling, general and administrative ............. 6,630 4,405 1,188 12,223
Total operating expenses ..................... 21,724 16,204 3,400 41,328
Operating loss . ........ ..., (21,724) (16,204) (3,400) (41,328)
Interest and otherincome .................... 240 356 407 1,003
Loss from continuing operations ............... (21,484) (15,848) (2,993) (40,325)
Income tax benefit ........... ... ... ... .... 6,081 2,157 — 8,238
Net loss from continuing operations ............ (15,403) (13,691) (2,993) (32,087)
Discontinued operations:
Income/ (loss) from discontinued operations . . ... 973 2) — 971
Income tax (expense)/benefit................. (364) 16 — (348)
Income from discontinued operations — net .. ... 609 14 — 623
Netloss ..o e $(14,794) $(13,677) $(2,993) $(31,464)
Earnings/ (loss) per share — basic and diluted:
Net (loss) per share continuing operations ...... $ (0.73) $ (0.87) $ (0.34)
Earnings per share discontinued operations . ..... $ 003 $ 0.00 $ -
Netloss oot e $ (0.70) $ (0.87) $ (0.34)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — basic and diluted ............. 21,152 15,801 8,877

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000 and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2002

Issuance of common stock forcash ..................
Issuance of common stock for technology rights........
Issuance of common stock forcash ..................
Issuance of common stock for royalties ...............
Issuance of common stock for services................

Compensation associated with issuance of options to
purchase common stock to consultants and advisors
for services .. ... ...

Issuance of warrants to purchase common stock to
consultant for services. ............ ... ... ... ...,
Net1oss o oot

Balances, December 31,2000 .......................
Issuance of common stock for services................
Issuance of common stock forcash ..................

Compensation associated with issuance of options to
purchase common stock to consultants and advisors
forservices........ oo

Issuance of warrants to purchase common stock in
exchange for development services .................

Acquisition of common stock related to merger, net of
$3,665 issuance costs, including repurchase of
1,505,402 shares of common stock in November 2001

Issuance of 1.55902 shares of common stock to Pre-
Merger Lipid stockholders for every 1.0 shares of Pre-
Merger Lipid common stock owned in connection with
merger in November 2001 ........................

Merger adjustments to reclassify equity accounts to
conform with capital structure of no par value .......

Net 10SS oo

Balances, December 31,2001 .......................
Repurchase 104,767 shares at $7.00 for dissenters rights
Additional issuance costs of merger ..................
Compensation associated with issuance of options to
purchase common stock to consultants and advisors
for Services . ... ...
Adjustments to reclassify equity accounts to conform
with Delaware capital structure, $0.001 par value. .. ..

Net Loss ... e
Balance at December 31,2002 ......... ... ... ......

Deficit
Accumulated
During th Total
Common Stock Additional De:gl':gg)meleut Stock‘l)l:lders’
Shares Amounts Paid-in Capital Stage Equity
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

3,000,000 $ 30 $ 220 $ — $ 250
3,000,000 30 220 — 250
3,180,949 32 10,991 — 11,023
42,858 1 149 — 150
32,000 — 160 —_ 160
— — 567 — 567
— — 216 — 216

_ _ — (2,993) (2,993)
9,255,807 93 12,523 (2,993) 9,623
21,700 — 108 — 108
943,394 9 6,186 — 6,195
— — 2,936 — 2,936
_ — 848 — 848
5,311,534 45,244 — — 45244
5,713,787 — — — —
—_ 22,601 (22,601) — —

_ _ — (13,677) (13,677)
21,246,222 67,947 — (16,670) 51,277

(104,767) (470) — — (470)

— (248) — — (248)

— — (159) — (159)
—  (67,208) 67,208 — —

— — — (14,794)  _(14,794)
21,141,455  $ 21 $ 67,049 $(31,464) $ 35,606

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Period from

Inception
(May 21,
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 1999) to
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2002
(In thousands)
Cash flows used in operating activities:
Net loss from continuing operations ............ $(15,403) $(13,691) $(2,993) $(32,087)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuing
operations to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization................. 247 57 — 304
Accretion of discount on investments . .......... — (80) — (80)
Issuance of common stock to consultants and
AdVISOTS . .ottt e (159) 3,044 1,127 4,012
Issuance of warrants to consultants............. — 848 196 1,044
Deferred income taxes ....................... 2,041 (2,041) — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . ... (462) 407 (517) (572)
Restricted cash ........................... 211 5 (532) (316)
Incometaxes ............ciiiiiinin. .. 555 (516) — 39
Accounts payable and other current liabilities . . (732) 1,117 615 1,000
Accrued royalties. . ......... ... ... — 250 — 250
Accrued compensation ..................... 135 212 23 370
Deferredrent ....... ..ot 11 18 7 36
Net cash used in operating activities ........... (13,556) (10,370) (2,074) (26,000)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Capital expenditures ....................... (636) (795) (48) (1,479)
Purchases of investments ................... (2,000) — (8,045) (10,045)
Maturities and szles of investments .......... — 8,125 — 8,125
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing
activities .. ......... B (2,636) 7,330 (8,093) (3,399)
Cash flows (used in) /provided by financing
activities:
Acquisition of NZ Corporation — cash
acquired ..... ... ... — 20,666 — 20,666
Payment of acquisition costs ................ (248) (1,615) — (1,863)
Payment to repurchase stock ................ (470) (12,043) — (12,513)
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of
ISSUANCE COSES . vttt i it e e — 6,175 11,273 17,448
Proceeds from issuance of warrants .......... — 20 20 40
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing
activities .. ... .ot (718) 13,203 11,293 23,778
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents from continuing operations........ (16,910) 10,163 1,126 (5,621)
Net cash provided by operating, investing, and
financing activities of discontinued operations . . 22,651 1,522 — 24,173
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,811 1,126 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period .. ... $18,552 $ 12,811 $ 1,126 $ 18,552

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH

FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest (net of amount capitalized) ..........
Income tax recovered ......................

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON-

CASH INVESTING TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of NZ Corporation:

Current assets (other thancash).............
Property and equipment ....................
Commercial real estate loans ................
Notes and receivables......................
Investments in joint ventures ................
Current liabilities assumed .. ................
Long-term debt assumed ...................

Deferred taxes associated with the acquisition. . .

Fair value of assets acquired (other than
cash) . ... o

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON—

CASH FINANCING TRANSACTIONS
Accrued acquisition costs ... ........ ... ...

Period from
Inception
(May 21,
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 1999) to
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2002 2001 2000 2002
(In thousands)
$ 739 $ 100 $ — $ 839
496 1,046 — 1,542
$ — $ 1,040 $ — $ 1,040
— 30,193 — 30,193
— 16,335 — 16,335
— 15,166 — 15,166
— 2,343 — 2,343
— (1,947) — (1,947)
— (14,908) — (14,908)
_ (7,936) — (7,936)
$  — $ 40,286 $  — $ 40,286
$ — $ 2050 - $ 2,050

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Organization and Basis of Presentation

Lipid was organized in 1908 as an Arizona corporation under the name New Mexico and Arizona Land
Company (“NZ”). We changed our name to NZ Corporation in June 2000 and to Lipid Sciences, Inc., in
November 2001. In June 2002, we changed the state of our incorporation from Arizona to Delaware.

The Company is engaged in the research and development of products and processes intended to treat
major medical conditions in which lipids, or fat components, play a key role. Our primary activities since
incorporation have been conducting research and development, performing business, strategic and financial
planning, and raising capital. Accordingly, the Company is considered to be in the development stage.

Historically, NZ engaged in various real estate and commercial real estate lending activities. On
March 22, 2002, the Company formalized a plan to discontinue the operations of our real estate and real estate
lending business, including commercial real estate loans, to fund the ongoing operations of Lipid Sciences’
biotechnology business. As a result, we have reclassified the results of operations and the assets and liabilities
of the discontinued operations for all periods presented.

In the course of its research and development activities, the Company has sustained continued operating
losses and expects those losses to continue for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in research and
development and begin to allocate significant and increasing resources for clinical testing and related activities.
As of December 31, 2002, we had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments equal to
approximately $20.6 million. We anticipate that these assets and the cash raised from the disposal of assets
included in the discontinued operations plan will provide sufficient working capital for our research and
development activities for at least the next year. We expect additional capital will be required in the future.
We intend to seek capital needed to fund our operations through new collaborations, such as licensing or other
arrangements, through pursuit of research and development grants or through public or private equity or debt
financings.

NOTE 2: ACQUISITION

On November 29, 2001, we completed our merger with Pre-Merger Lipid. As a result of the merger, the
Company was renamed Lipid Sciences, Inc. Pre-Merger Lipid ceased to exist as a separate corporation, and
the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid became shareholders of the Company. In connection with the merger,
Pre-Merger Lipid shareholders received 1.55902 shares of our common stock for each share of Pre-Merger
Lipid common stock they held at the time the merger was completed. After the transaction, the Pre-Merger
Lipid shareholders owned approximately 75% of the then outstanding stock of the Company and the
NZ shareholders owned the remaining shares of the Company’s common stock.

The merger was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and was treated as a reverse
acquisition because the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid owned the majority of the Company’s common
stock after the merger. Pre-Merger Lipid was considered the acquiror for accounting and financial reporting
purposes. The results of operations from NZ have been included only from November 29, 2001, the date of
acquisition. The historical financial statements prior to November 29, 2001 are those of Pre-Merger Lipid.
The share amounts included in the Statement of Stockholders’ Equity for all periods prior to the date of the
merger have not been adjusted to reflect the effects of the exchange ratio.




LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Pre-Merger Lipid acquired NZ for the aggregate purchase price of $60,952,000. The aggregate purchase
price equals the fair value of NZ’s net assets. The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition:

(In thousands)

CUITENT ASSEIS © v o vttt e e e et e e e e e e e $ 21,706
Property and equipment . ... ... 30,193
Commercial real estate loans. .. ... ..ot 16,335
Notes and notes receivables . . .. ... . i e 15,166
Investments in JOIME VERTUIES . . . oottt et et et e et e e e e 2,343

Total assets acquired. ...... ... i 85,743
Current Habilities . ... e 1,947
Long-term debt . ... ... 14,908
Long-term deferred taxes . .. ... .. 7,936

Total liabilities assumed . .. .. ... . i e 24,791

Net assets acquired . ... ..ottt $ 60,952

In connection with the merger, the Company is obligated to issue additional shares of common stock to
those individuals and entities who were stockholders of NZ on the day prior to the completion of the merger
and who perfected their stock rights, unless during the 24-month period immediately following the merger, the
closing price per share of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share throughout any
period of 20 consecutive trading days, in which the aggregate volume of shares traded equals or exceeds
1,500,000 shares. Each perfected right entitles the holder to receive up to one additional share of the
Company’s common stock. Stockholders had until April 30, 2002 to perfect their rights and must continue to
hold their shares in direct registered form through November 28, 2003 to continue to qualify the right.
Transfer of shares before November 29, 2003 will disqualify the right attached to the transferred shares. If
additional shares are issued pursuant to the rights, the issuance of additional shares of common stock will have
the effect of diluting the ownership of stockholders not holding rights and increasing the proportionate
ownership of the stockholders holding rights. The number of outstanding shares of common stock would
increase, having the effect of diluting earnings per share. As of December 31, 2002, 2,954,822 rights were
perfected with an additional 105,518 rights pending determination. If all of the holders of perfected rights
remain qualified to receive the additional shares on November 28, 2003, the issuance will dilute stockholders
by up to 12.6%, based on 21,141,455 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2002.

The consolidated results of operations from continuing operations on a pro forma basis as if the merger
had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented would be consistent with the results of continuing

operations presented in the consolidated statements of operations. The results of operations of NZ have been
reclassified to discontinued operations for all periods presented.

NOTE 3: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Lipid, and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents may be invested in money market funds. Cash equivalents and
short-term investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value at December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000. All of the Company’s investments are classified as short-term, are held-to-maturity, and are accounted
for at their amortized cost per FASB Statement No. 115. Short-term investments consist of available-for-sale
investments in U.S. Government securities with a cost, approximating fair value, of $2,000,000, $0 and
$8,045,000 at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The short-term, available-for-sale investment
had an original maturity date of April 7, 2004, however the investment was called on January 7, 2003.

Commercial Real Estate Loans and Allowance for Bad Debts

Commercial real estate loans are recorded at cost (which approximates fair value at the date of the
merger). Management, considering current information and events regarding the borrowers’ ability to repay
their obligations and the value of collateral, considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect all principal amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based on the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. Impairment losses
are included in the allowance for bad debts through a charge to bad debt expense. Interest accrual stops when
a loan becomes 90 days past due. Subsequently, cash receipts on impaired loans are applied to reduce the
principal amount of such loans until the loan is no longer impaired or until the principal has been recovered,
and are recognized as interest income thereafter. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, there was
no allowance for bad debts because all of the commercial real estate loans were marked to fair value as part of
the merger.

Property and Equipment

Real estate properties are stated at the lower of cost (which estimates fair value at the date of the
merger) or estimated fair value. All properties are held for sale and are written down to estimated fair value
when the Company determines the carrying amount exceeds the estimated selling price, less costs to sell.
Management makes this evaluation on a property-by-property basis. The evaluation of fair value and future
cash flows from individual properties requires significant judgment. It is reasonably possible that a change in
economic or market conditions could result in a change in management’s estimate of fair value.

Depreciation on rental properties and other assets is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. Buildings and improvements are depreciated using
lives between four and thirty-five years. Property and equipment which are held for sale are not depreciated.

Equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, which is calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging between three and ten years.

Research and Development

Costs to develop the Company’s products are expensed as incurred in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs.” These
costs include research related overhead expenses, including salaries and other personnel related expenses,
contractor fees, facility costs, supplies and depreciation of equipment.

Property Sales, Cost of Property Sales and Deferred Revenue

The Company follows SFAS No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” SFAS No. 66 stipulates
certain conditions which must be met to recognize profit from the sale of real estate using the full accrual
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LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

method. These conditions include minimum down payments and annual investments by the buyer, and
reasonable assurance the related receivable is collectible. We recognize revenue from the sale of properties
using the full accrual method when the required conditions are met.

Profits from retail land sales are recognized on the installment basis provided minimum down payments
are received. Deferred revenue consists principally of retail land sales made after the merger, and rents
collected in advance.

The Company capitalizes construction and development costs as required by SIFAS No. 67, “Accounting
for Costs and Initial Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects.” Cost of sales for the recreational lots are
determined by allocating development costs pro-rata by acre. Costs associated with financing or leasing
projects are capitalized and amortized over the period benefited by those expenditures.

Stock Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as
interpreted. by Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation — an Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25.” The Company
accounts for stock-based awards to non-employees in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITEF”) Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for
Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.

Because the Company grants stock option awards at market value, there is no compensation expense
recorded. Had compensation expense for the Company’s stock option awards been determined based on the
Black-Scholes fair value at the grant dates for awards under those plans consistent with the fair value method
of SFAS No. 123 — Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the Company would have recorded
additional compensation expense and its net income and earnings per share (EPS) would have been reduced
to the pro forma amounts presented in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

_ 2002 2001 2000

Reported net 108s . ......viveernr e, $(14,794) $(13,677) $(2,993)

Compensation expense for stock options ................. (2,601) (1,671) (393)
Proforma net 1oSs. ... ..covvineiin e $(17,395) $(15,348) $(3,386)
Basic EPS:

Asreported ... .. $ (070) § (0.87) $ (0.34)

Proforma. . ......ou $ (0.82) $ (097) $ (0.38)
Diluted EPS:

Asreported .. ... $ (0.70) $ (0.87) § (0.34)

Proforma.........oiiiiii $ (0.82) $§ (097) $ (0.38)

Income Taxes

The Company follows SFAS No.109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the asset and liability
method of SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
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temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities

resulting from a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Net Loss Per Share

The Company computes its net loss per share under the provisions of SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per
Share.” Basic net loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding.

Diluted net loss per share reflects the potential dilution that would occur if securities or other contracts to
issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. Stock options and warrants to purchase
common stock have been excluded from diluted loss per share, as their effect would be antidilutive. These
outstanding securities consist of the following:

At December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Stock options ... ... ... 5,738,963 4,546,087 2,775,060
Warrants to purchase common stock.................... 1,091,314 1,091,314 935,412
Contingently issuable shares pursuant to stock rights ...... 3,060,340 — —

9,890,617 5,637,401 3,710,472

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

»

SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires that a company
disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s
commercial real estate loans and long-term debt and lines of credit approximate the estimated fair value
because they are at interest rates comparable to market rates, given the terms and maturities. The carrying
amounts of the Company’s cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, and accounts payable
approximate the fair value of these instruments due to their short-term maturities. Considerable judgment is
required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, these fair value
estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company may pay or receive in actual market
transactions.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141 “Business
Combinations” and SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that the
purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, and that
the use of the pooling-of-interest method is no longer allowed. The Company has adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 142 requires that amortization of goodwill will cease, and instead, the carrying
value of goodwill will be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. Identifiable intangible assets will
continue to be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be
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Disposed of.”” SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Lipid adopted
SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. Adoption of this statement did not have an impact on Lipid’s financial
position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” This statement superceded SFAS No. 121 and retained the fundamental provisions of
SFAS No. 121 for (i) recognition and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and
used; and (ii) measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. SFAS No. 144 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Lipid adopted SFAS No. 144 on January 1, 2002.
Adoption of this statement did not have a significant impact on Lipid’s financial position or results of
operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others” (FIN 45).
FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, a guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of
an obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 also requires additional disclosures by a guarantor in its
interim and annual financial statements about the obligations associated with guarantees issued. The
recognition provisions of FIN 45 are effective for any guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after
December 15, 2002. We adopted the disclosure requirements for the financial statements included in this
Form 10-K. We are currently evaluating the effects of the recognition provisions of FIN 45, however we do
not expect that the adoption of FIN 45 will have a material effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “dccounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 amends
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for
a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company adopted the annual disclosure
requirements of SFAS No. 148 as of December 31, 2002. The transitional provisions of SFAS No. 148 did not
have an impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations, EPS, or cash flows, as the fair value
method has not been adopted.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities”, which addresses accounting for restructuring and similar costs. SFAS No. 146 supersedes previous
accounting guidance, principally Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3. The Company will adopt the
provisions of SFAS No. 146 for restructuring activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146
requires that the liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is
incurred. Under Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date of the Company’s
commitment to an exit plan. SFAS No. 146 also establishes that the liability should initially be measured and
recorded at fair value. Accordingly, SFAS No. 146 may affect the timing of recognizing future restructuring
costs as well as the amounts recognized.

NOTE 4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Property and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease.
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Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
In thousands at December 31, 2002 2001

Equipment $1,112  $612

Leasehold improvements 368 232
1,480 844

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization _(305) (58)
SLITS 786

NOTE 5: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has a non-cancelable lease agreement for office space in Pleasanton, California and a lease
agreement for office space in Phoenix, Arizona. The leases will expire in September 2005 and March 2004,
respectively. The lease in Phoenix, Arizona can be terminated without penalty if notice is given within 90 days.
Rent expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $303,000, $265,000 and $78,000, respectively.
Future minimum lease payments under these leases are:

(In thousands)

2003 e $354

2004 360
2005 e 261
$975

The Company was required to obtain an irrevocable standby letter of credit for the Pleasanton, California
lease in the amount of $525,000 as security for payments due under the lease. Per the lease agreement, this
letter of credit was reduced to $315,000, plus interest during 2002.

NOTE 6: DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

In October 2000, we entered into a Development Agreement with SRI International, a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation, pursuant to which SRI provides us with various consulting and
development services. SRI will assign to us all intellectual property developed during the term of the
Development Agreement. The Development Agreement calls for SRI to complete two development phases
(as defined in the Development Agreement, “Phase I” and “Phase 11”) during which time SRI will work to
develop a medical device to enable us to further develop and commercialize our lipid removal technology. In
addition, we have entered into a number of amendments with SRI to address work performed by SRI, which
are both within and outside of the scope of work of Phase Il development. Certain of the amendments have
been in support of product development and certain of the amendments relate to supplemental testing and
analysis performed by SRI.

We also issued SRI warrants to purchase 779,510 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$3.21 per share. The warrants vested with respect to 233,853 shares upon completion of Phase I, with the
remaining 545,657 shares vesting upon completion of Phase II. On May 12, 2001, the Development
Agreement was amended with respect to the warrants to purchase 545,657 shares of common stock related to
Phase II. This amendment splits Phase II into two development milestones with warrants to purchase
272,829 shares vesting at the completion of each milestone. If either development milestone is discontinued at
the option of the Company, all 545,657 warrants will vest at the completion of the remaining milestone.

Phase [ was completed on March 28, 2001. Fees for services performed by SRI for Phase I totaled
$1,517,000. Of these total fees, funding of $972,967 and $544,000 was charged to operations in the year ended
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December 31, 2001 and the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000, respectively. The
completion of Phase I resulted in warrants to purchase 233,853 shares of common stock becoming fully vested.
On this date, we recognized an expense of $847,000, based upon the fair market value of the warrants on the
date of vesting, using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a dividend
yield of 0%, a risk-free interest rate of 6%, and a life of seven years.

Phase II was initiated upon completion of Phase I. Fees for Phase Il of the development program were
limited to $6,300,000. On July 26, 2002, funding to SRI for the continued development of Phase II was
increased to $9,500,000. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately $4,900,000 and
$2,500,000, respectively, was charged to operations for fees related to Phase II. As of December 31, 2002,
neither milestone related to Phase II was completed, consequently no value has been assigned to the
545,657 warrants which vest upon completion of such milestones. These warrants will be valued using the
Black-Scholes method and will be charged to expense as they vest. Consistent with our new strategic direction
announced on January 28, 2003, we have refocused SRI efforts to support our VPI platform and spending
related to Phase II development has been significantly reduced.

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In December 1999, we entered into an Intellectual Property License Agreement to obtain the exclusive
worldwide rights to certain patents, trademarks, and technology with Aruba International Pty. Ltd., an
Australian company, controlled by Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., a founding stockholder of Pre-Merger Lipid and a
former Director. As consideration for the license, we issued Aruba 4,677,060 shares of our common stock
valued at $250,000. This amount was charged to expense as research and development in the year ended
December 31, 2000. Under this agreement, we are obligated to pay Aruba a continuing royalty on revenue in
future years, subject to a minimum annual royalty amount of $500,000, 10% of any External Research
Funding received by us to further this technology, as defined in the agreement, and $250,000 upon
commencement of our initial human clinical trial utilizing the technology under the patents. Our initial human
clinical trial commenced during the three month period ended June 30, 2002. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, we paid cash of approximately $350,000 and issued 66,817 shares of common stock
valued at $150,000 related to this agreement. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we have
expensed approximately $750,000 and $8350,000, respectively, related to this agreement. Amounts for 2000,
2001 and 2002 were charged to research and development expense.

Additionally, in the normal course of business, we have consulted with Dr. Cham, and companies with
which he is affiliated, regarding various matters relating to research and development. The amount expensed
under these consultations amounted to approximately $21,000 and $110,000 in the year ended December 31,
2001 and the period from Inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000, respectively, for fees charged by
Dr. Cham, including travel and similar costs, and have been included in the results of operations. In
November 2001, we entered into a Service Agreement with Karuba International Pty. Ltd., a company
controlled by Dr. Cham, in order to consolidate such consulting services. We were required to pay
approximately $191,000 a year for Karuba’s consulting services, as well as out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
the performance of such services. Under the terms of the agreement, the annual obligation to Karuba
increased to approximately $198,000 per year in May 2002. This agreement automatically renews every year.
Either party may terminate the agreement, without cause, upon thirty days written notice. However, if we
terminate the agreement, we will be required to pay Karuba an amount equal to one third of the annual fee.
For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately $279,000 and $19,000, respectively, was
expensed to research and development under this agreement of which approximately $9,100 and $19,000 is
included in accounts payable at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In March 2001, we closed a private placement of 1,375,282 shares of common stock at $4.49 per share for
gross proceeds of $6,175,000. In connection with the private placement, we paid a commission to MDB Capi-
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tal Group, LLC of approximately 7% of the gross proceeds, payable in shares of common stock, for services
rendered in the private placement. Accordingly, 95,491 shares of common stock at $4.49 per share were issued
as commission for the transaction. Mr. Marlett, the previous Chairman of our Board of Directors, is a manager
and majority owner of MDB Capital Group.

In June 2001, Pre-Merger Lipid engaged MDB Capital Group, LLC as its financial advisor in the merger
between NZ and Pre-Merger Lipid. The engagement letter commits the Company to pay MDB Capital
Group an advisory fee. In December 2001, we paid MDB Capital Group approximately $446,000, which
represents a portion of the advisory fee and is based on 5% of the cash and cash equivalents of the Company
immediately after the merger, as compared to Pre-Merger Lipid’s cash and cash equivalents immediately prior
to the merger. The remainder of the advisory fee is based on 5% of the gross sales of the Company’s pre-
merger assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger, the Company’s assets on the two-year
anniversary of the merger and the net operating income of the Company derived from the Company’s pre-
merger assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger. Approximately $1,400,000 of the
advisory fee was paid during the twelve months ended December 31, 2002. We anticipate the remainder of the
advisory fee to be approximately $825,000. Our adoption of a formalized plan to dispose of all Real Estate
segment assets by March 31, 2003 will likely result in the payment of substantially all MDB Capital Group
advisory fees by third quarter 2003.

NOTE 8: RETIREMENT PLANS

At the time of the merger, NZ Corporation had a qualified 401 (k) savings plan in place for its employees.
Nine employees were eligible to participate. The Company matched up to 3% of the employee’s salary
contributed. Total expense for the Company under this plan was approximately $4,000 and $0 for 2001 and
2000, respectively. In January 2002, Lipid replaced the plan with a new qualified 401(k) savings plan.
Substantially all employees are eligible to participate. Lipid’s 401 (k) plan provides for a contribution by the
Company each year, for non-highly compensated employees. The Company matches 100% of the first 3% of
the employee’s salary and 50% of every $1.00 of the employee’s salary deferred, up to 5%. Total expense for
Lipid under this plan was approximately $10,000 for 2002.

NOTE 9: RESTRUCTURING

As of December 31, 2001, we recorded restructuring charges of approximately $885,000, which were
charged to general and administrative expense. Qur recent restructuring initiatives involved strategic decisions
to exit the real estate market through the orderly disposition of substantially all of NZ’s assets. In connection
with these restructuring initiatives, we have recorded the following:

Severance & Lease

Related Benefits Termination

Accrual as of December 31,2001 . ......... ... ... .. $705,000 $180,000
Amount paid during 2002 .. ... ... e {86,000) —
Accrued balance as of December 31,2002 . ................... $619,000 $180,000

Severance charges include employee termination costs such as salary and benefits post separation as a
result of headcount reductions. Lease termination expenses primarily consist of costs to exit the Phoenix,
Arizona facility lease.

We expect the restructuring to be completed in the first half of 2003 with all accrued amounts paid within
twelve months of the restructuring completion.
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NOTE 16: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferved Stock

In connection with the merger with Pre-Merger Lipid, the number of shares of preferred stock authorized
in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation increased to 10,000,000, with no par value, from 1,000,000 with a
par value of $0.01 per share. On June 26, 2002, the Company changed its state of incorporation from Arizona
to Delaware. The reincorporation was accomplished through a statutory merger of Lipid Sciences, Inc., an
Arizona corporation (“Lipid Arizona”), into a newly formed Delaware corporation of the same name (“Lipid
Delaware”). In connection with the merger the par value of the Company’s preferred stock was increased to
$0.001 per share. This change in the Company’s state of incorporation was approved by the holders of a
majority of the Company’s outstanding shares of Common Stock at the Company’s annual meeting of
stockholders on June 18, 2002. There was no impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of
operations as a result of the reincorporation. No shares of the Company’s preferred stock have been issued.

Shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time, in one or more series, as authorized by the
Board. Prior to issuance of shares of each series, the Board will designate for each such series, the preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, rights to receive dividends or other distributions, rights
upon dissolution or upon distribution of assets, qualifications and terms or conditions of redemption, as are
permitted by law. No shares of preferred stock are outstanding and the Company has no present plans to issue
any shares of preferred stock.

Common Stock

In connection with the merger with Pre-Merger Lipid, the number of shares of common stock authorized
in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation increased to 75,000,000 with no par value, from 50,000,000 with a
par value of $0.01 per share. On June 26, 2002, the Company changed its state of incorporation from Arizona
to Delaware. The reincorporation was accomplished through a statutory merger of Lipid Sciences, Inc., an
Arizona corporation {“Lipid Arizona”), into a newly formed Delaware corporation of the same name (“Lipid
Delaware”). As a result of the merger, each outstanding share of Lipid Arizona Common Stock, no par value,
was automatically converted into one share of Lipid Delaware Common Stock, par value $0.001. This change
in the Company’s state of incorporation was approved by the holders of a majority of the Company’s
outstanding shares of Common Stock at the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders on June 18, 2002.
There was no impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations as a result of the
reincorporation.

As of December 31, 2000, 9,255,807 common shares were issued and outstanding. Of these shares,
3,000,000 were issued at $0.08 per share for cash, and 3,000,000 shares were issued at $0.08 per share for
technology rights at the formation of the Company. An additional 3,159,179 shares were issued in May 2000
for cash at a purchase price of $3.50 per share. In March 2001, we issued 882,144 shares for cash at a purchase
price of $7.00 per share. These share amounts and per share purchase prices are not adjusted to reflect the
exchange ratio.

On November 29, 2001, we completed our merger with Pre-Merger Lipid. As a result of the merger, the
Company was renamed Lipid Sciences, Inc. Pre-Merger Lipid ceased to exist as a separate corporation, and
the shareholders of Pre-Merger Lipid became shareholders of the Company. In connection with the merger,
Pre-Merger Lipid shareholders received 1.55902 shares of our common stock for each share of Pre-Merger
Lipid common stock they held at the time the merger was completed. After the transaction, the Pre-Merger
Lipid shareholders owned approximately 75% of the then outstanding stock of the Company and the
NZ shareholders owned the remaining shares of the Company’s common stock. As an additional requirement
of the merger, Lipid entered into a stock purchase agreement, with Sun NZ, L.L.C., pursuant to which
Sun NZ, agreed to sell 1,505,402 shares of NZ common stock to Lipid at a cash price of $8.00 per share.
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Lipid purchased the shares from Sun NZ, L.L.C. upon completion of the merger, after which the shares were
retired. As of December 31, 2001, there were 21,246,222 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

Pursuant to the merger, we notified all shareholders who either did not vote or did not vote in favor of the
merger of their option of becoming a holder of “dissenting shares” as defined in Chapter 13 (“Chapter 13”) of
the California Corporations Code. We determined that in accordance with Section 1300(a) of Chapter 13, the
fair market value of a dissenting share as of the day before the first announcement of the terms of the merger
was $7.00. In order to pursue dissenters’ rights and receive cash for each dissenting share, the dissenting
shareholder was required to make a written demand for purchase of the shares in cash, and the demand must
have been received by the President of the Company within 30 days of the mailing of the notice. If the
Company and the dissenting shareholder agreed upon the price of the shares, then the Company was required
to pay the shareholder the agreed price for the dissenting shares. The dissenting shareholder was also required
to surrender their share certificate in order to receive payment of the price. Pursuant to two such notices from
dissenting shareholders, we paid approximately $470,400 to repurchase 67,200 shares of Pre-Merger Lipid
common stock, the equivalent of 104,767 shares of our common stock. All repurchased shares were retired.

In connection with the merger, the Company is obligated to issue additional shares of common stock to
those individuals and entities who were stockholders of NZ on the day prior to the completion of the merger
and who perfected their stock rights, unless during the 24-month period immediately following the merger, the
closing price per share of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share throughout any
period of 20 consecutive trading days, in which the aggregate volume of shares traded equals or exceeds
1,500,000 shares. Each perfected right entitles the holder to receive up to one additional share of the
Company’s common stock, Stockholders had until April 30, 2002 to perfect their rights and must continue to
hold their shares in direct registered form through November 29, 2003 to qualify to receive the additional
stock with respect to each perfected right. Transfer of shares before November 29, 2003 will disqualify the
right with respect to each of the transferred shares. If additional shares are issued pursuant to the rights, the
issuance of additional shares of common stock will have the effect of diluting the ownership of stockholders
not holding rights and increasing the proportionate ownership of the stockholders holding rights. The number
of outstanding shares of common stock would increase, having the effect of diluting earnings per share. As of
December 31, 2002, 2,954,822 rights were perfected with an additional 105,518 rights pending determination.
If all of the holders of perfected rights remain qualified to receive the additional shares on November 29, 2003,
the issuance will dilute stockholders by up to 12.6%, based on 21,141,455 shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2002.

Warrants

In May 2000, we sold a warrant to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock at $3.21 per share to an
existing shareholder as consideration for services provided. We received cash consideration of $20,000 in
exchange for the warrant. The fair value of the immediately exercisable warrant, $216,000 was determined
using the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a dividend yield of 0%, a
risk-free interest rate of 6%, and a life of 5 years. The fair value of the warrant in excess of the consideration to
be received, $196,000, was charged to operations in 2000.

We also issued a warrant to purchase 779,510 shares of common stock to SRI at an exercise price of
$3.21 per share in connection with a development agreement (see Note 6 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

In May 2001 we sold a warrant to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock at $6.41 per share to a non-
employee as consideration for services provided. We received cash consideration of $20,000 in exchange for
the warrant. The fair value of the immediately exercisable warrant, $432,000, was determined using the Black-
Scholes method with the following assumptions: a volatility of 80%, a dividend yield of 0%, a risk-free interest
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rate of 6%, and a life of 5 years. The fair value of the warrant in excess of the consideration to be received,
$412,000, was charged to additional paid-in capital as a cost of financing in 2001.

On November 29, 2001, in connection with the merger of NZ and Pre-Merger Lipid, Lipid assumed all
of the warrants to acquire shares of Pre-Merger Lipid common stock. All warrants were adjusted to reflect the
1.55902 merger exchange ratio with the number of shares underlying each warrant multiplied by the ratio and
the related exercise prices divided by the ratio. All the above disclosures reflect the share and per share
amounts on a post merger equivalent basis.

Stock Option Plans

Prior to the merger, we maintained stock-based compensation plans for our employees, consultants and
Directors. The 2000 Stock Option Plan (the “2000 Plan’), adopted by the Board of Directors in May 2000
and approved by stockholders on March 20, 2001, allows for the granting of options for up to 3,118,040 shares
of common stock. Stock options granted under the 2000 Plan may be either incentive stock options or
nonstatutory stock options. Options may be granted with exercise prices not less than the fair value of the
Company’s common stock at the date of grant, as determined by the Board of Directors. All options granted
pursuant to the 2000 Plan are to have a term not greater than 10 years from the date of grant. Options vest as
determined by the Board of Directors, generally over four years (but not less than 20% of the total number of
shares granted per year).

In October 1997, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the New Mexico and Arizona Land
Company 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1997 Plan”). The 1997 Plan provides that the following types of
awards may be granted under the 1997 Plan: stock appreciation rights (“SARs”); incentive stock options
(“ISOs”); non-qualified stock options (“NQSOs”); restricted stock awards; unrestricted stock awards; and
performance share awards which entitle recipients to acquire shares upon the attainment of specified
performance goals. Under the 1997 Plan, awards may be granted with respect to a maximum of 900,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock, subject to adjustment in connection with certain events such as a stock split,
merger or other recapitalization of the Company. We assumed the 1997 Plan as a result of the merger.

In November 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 2001 Performance Equity Plan (the
#2001 Plan”). The stockholders approved the Plan on November 29, 2001. The 2001 Plan allows for the
granting of options for up to 5,000,000 shares of common stock to employees, officers, consultants, and
Directors. The number of shares authorized automatically increases on January 1, in each of the calendar
years 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 by an amount equal to 3% of the shares of common stock outstanding
on December 31 of the immediately preceding calendar year, if the 2001 Plan is then in effect, but in no event
shall any annual increase exceed 500,000 shares of common stock as reflected on the stock ledger of the
Company. Stock options granted under the 2001 Plan may be either incentive stock options or nonstatutory
stock options. Options may be granted with exercise prices not less than the fair value of the Company’s
common stock at the date of grant, as determined by the Board of Directors. All options granted pursuant to
the 2001 Plan are to have a term not greater than 10 years from the date of grant. Options vest as determined
by the Board of Directors, generally over four years (but not less than 20% of the total number of shares
granted per year).

At December 31, 2002, options to purchase 4,644,339 common shares remain available for grant under all
the plans.

All options in the 2000 Plan were adjusted to reflect the 1.55902 merger exchange ratio with the number
of shares underlying each option multiplied by the ratio and the related exercise prices divided by the ratio. All
the above disclosures reflect the share and per share amounts on a post merger equivalent basis. Additionally,
all historical stock option information of Pre-Merger Lipid that is provided herein has been similarly restated.
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Activity under the Plans was as follows:

Cutstanding Options

Weighted-

Average

Shares Available Number of Exercise
for Grant Shares Price

Shares authorized .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ... 3,118,040 — $ —
Options granted . . .. ... . i (2,034,523) 2,034,523 2.47
Balance at December 31,2000 ... ................... 1,083,517 2,034,523 2.47
Additional shares authorized ........................ 5,000,000 —_ —
Options granted . . ... ... ... (1,127,175) 1,127,175 4.16
Options forfeited . ........ ... ... i 109,257 (109,257) 3.21
Options assumed during merger ..................... 271,614 628,386 9.53
Balance at December 31,2001 ... ................... 5,337,213 3,680,827 4.17
Additional shares authorized ........................ 500,000 — —
Options granted . . ..., (1,297,894) 1,297,894 5.34
Options forfeited . ......... ... . ... .. i 105,020 (105,020) 4.66
Balance at December 31, 2002 ... ... S 4,644,339 4,873,701 $4.47

At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, 2,507,772, 1,411,086 and 168,894 options, respectively, were
exercisable under the Plans. All options granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 were granted at fair value. The
weighted-average fair value of options granted for the periods ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, was
$3.76, $2.79 and $1.66, respectively. The weighted-average fair value of options that are exercisable for the
periods ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, was $5.02, $5.78, and $7.63, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Remaining  Weighted- : Weighted-
Number of Contractual Average Number of Average
Shares Life (In Exercise Shares Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Qutstanding Years) Price Exercisable Price
$155-$321...... . 2,217,212 7.53 $2.53 1,153,675 $2.56
350- SA3.... . 1,289,929 8.06 4.38 547,824 4.48
600- 9.67........ ... ... ... 1,074,960 8.72 6.62 514,673 7.29
1046- 13110 ... it 291,600 6.96 11.76 291,600 11.76
$ L55-81301...... 4,873,701 7.90 $4.47 2,507,772 $5.02

In conjunction with the merger, 90,000 options of the 628,386 NZ options assumed as a result of the
merger became fully vested pursuant to existing change of control agreements at the close of the merger on
November 29, 2001. This acceleration of vesting was provided in the terms of the original NZ grants.

We also granted an option to purchase 155,902 shares of common stock outside the Plan to a member of
our Board of Directors in May 2000. The option carries an exercise price of $2.25 per share, and has a
remaining contractual life of approximately 7.40 years at December 31, 2002. The option vests one-third
immediately, with the remaining two-thirds vesting in two equal annual installments on the next two
anniversaries of the date of grant.
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During 2001, we also granted an option to purchase 7,796 shares of common stock outside the Plan for
services rendered in a private placement transaction. The option carries an exercise price of $3.21 per share,
and has a remaining contractual life of approximately 2.77 years at December 31, 2002. The option vested
immediately as of the date of grant.

During 2001 and 2000, we granted options to purchase an aggregate of 124,723 and 740,537 shares of
common stock, respectively, outside of the 2000 Stock Option Plan. Of these, options to
purchase 701,562 shares were issued to members of our Scientific Advisory Board. Each option granted vests
20% immediately, with the remaining 80% vesting in equal annual installments on the next three anniversaries
of the date of grant. These options were issued at a weighted-average exercise price of $3.21 and $2.44 per
share during 2001 and 2000, respectively, and have a life of five years.

We have recorded compensation income of approximately $168,000 in 2002 and compensation expense of
approximately $2,936,000 and $567,000 with respect to these options in 2001 and 2000, respectively. We
recorded an additional $9,000 of compensation expense in 2002 related to incentive stock options granted to
Dr. Radlick, our former CEQ, which continued to vest through December 31, 2002. Compensation charges
were based on the Black-Scholes method with the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Risk free interest rate . ... ... o i i e 3.74% 3.86% 6.00%
Expected life (in years) ... ...t 289  3.60 5.00
Expected volatility. . . ... o e 80.0% 80.0% 80.0%

Expected dividend vield . ...... . ... ... — — —

Pro Forma Disclosure of the Effect of Stock-Based Compensation

Pro forma information regarding the results of operations is required by SFAS No. 123, which requires
that the information be determined as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options using the
fair value method of SFAS No. 123. The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The fair values of the options granted were estimated on the
dates of their grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation model based on the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Risk free Interest rate ... ... ... vt ittt ittt et 4.71% 4.64% 6.00%
Expected life (inyears) .......... ... ... ... . ..... e 5.0 5.0 5.0
Expected volatility. .. ... oo e 80.0% 80.0% 80.0%

Expected dividend vield ........ .. i e — — —

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its
employee stock options because, as discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under
SFAS No. 123 requires the use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing
employee stock options. Under APB No. 25, when the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.

The option valuation models were developed for nse in estimating the fair value of traded options that
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the option. Because the Company’s employee
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and because changes in
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value of the estimate, in management’s opinion,
the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock
options.
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NOTE 11: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As a resuit of the merger between Pre-Merger Lipid and NZ on November 29, 2001, certain real estate
assets, including commercial real estate loans were acquired. As part of the merger, we announced our intent
to conduct an orderly disposition of those assets to fund the ongoing operations of Lipid Sciences’
biotechnology business. On March 22, 2002, we formalized a plan to discontinue the operations of our real
estate business, including commercial real estate loans. All of those assets were included in the Real Estate
segment. The plan identified the major assets to be disposed of, the method of disposal, and the period
required for completion of the disposal. As a result, we have reclassified the results of operations and the assets
and liabilities of the discontinued operations for all periods presented. The carrying amounts of the major
classes of assets and liabilities included as part of the disposal group as of December 31, 2002 and 200] are as
follows:

2002 2001
(In thousands)

CUITENE BSOS . . ot it et et e e $ 44 3% 1,097
Property and equipment ....... ... i e 7,866 30,119
Commercial real estate 10ans . .......... i 1,326 16,242
Notes and receivables . ... ... 7,672 12,511
Deferred INCOME 1AXES . . . . oo ittt ittt et e e et e —_— 29
Investments in JoInt VENTUIES . ... ottt it — 2,442

Total assets held for disposal ............ ... it n... 16,908 62,440
Current labillties . . ..o 172 1,267
Non-current liabilities .. .. ... e — 14,564
Deferred income 1aXes. .. ..ot ie e e — 7,831

Total liabilities held for disposal ........ . ... ... ... ... . ... ...... 172 23,662
Net assets held for disposal ...... .. .. ... . . . $16,736  $38,778

Income from discontinued operations reflected in the accompanying statements of operations is
comprised of the following:

2602 2801 2009

(In thousands)
Revenues ... ... e $4,764 $424 $—
Gain on disposal of assets ... ... ... i i 1,412 70 —
Operating expenses of discontinued operations ....................... (5,203) (496) —
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations before taxes........... $§ 973 § (2) $—
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NOTE 12: INCOME TAXES

Income tax benefit is comprised of the following:
For the Years

Ended
__December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal . ... ... $ (8 § —
Sl .o e (13) —
Foreign ..o (23) —
Total current tax benefit ... ... .. . . e (44) —
Deferred:
Federal ... . . e e e 4,642 1,711
) £ - _LI19 463
Total income tax benefit ... ... ... .. . i $5,717  $2,174

The reconciliation of the computed statutory income tax benefit to the effective income tax benefit

follows:
For the Years Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
(In thousands)
Statutory federal income tax eXpense .............vuiieiriiieionn, $ 7,111 § 5389
State income taxes, net of federal benefit ... ....... ... .. ... . ... ... ... 729 305
Valuation Allowance .. ... ... ... . i (3,694)  (2,929)
Research Tax Credit .. ..ottt e et e e 644 —
015 S 927 (591)
Total income tax benefit .. .. ... ... $ 5717 §$ 2174
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Deferred income taxes are recorded based upon differences between the financial statements and tax
bases of assets and liabilities and available tax credit carryforwards. Temporary differences and carryforwards
that comprised deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

The deferred income taxes are comprised of the following:

2002 2001
(In thousands)

Current deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Accruals and deferred compensation $§ 645 § 497
Basis difference in assets —

29

$ 526

Noncurrent deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Net operating 10SSes. . .. ..ottt $ 5597 $ 4,530
Stock OptioNS . ... 1,543 —
Basis difference inassets. ... il e (26)  (6,386)
Research and development credits. .. ...... ... ... i 2,061 444
T .« et e 7 (143)
Valuation allowance . ... ... . i i (9,182)  (4,732)
Total non current deferred tax assets. .......... ... i in., $§ —  $(6,287)

A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized. The Company established a valuation allowance at December 31, 2002 due to the
uncertainty of realizing future tax benefits from certain of its net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards and
credits.

Under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 384, if a corporation acquires control of another
corporation or acquires the assets of a corporation in a merger and either corporation is a “gain” corporation,
post-merger taxable income attributable to net built-in gains cannot be offset by pre-acquisition losses except
those losses originated by the company with the net built-in gain.

In addition, [RC Section 382 places a limitation (the “Section 382 Limitation”) on the amount of
taxable income which can be offset by NOL carryforwards after a change in control (generally greater than
50% change in ownership) of a loss corporation. California has similar rules. Generally, after a control change,
a loss corporation cannot deduct NOL carryforwards in excess of the Section 382 Limitation. Due to these
“change in ownership” provisions, utilization of the NOL carryforwards may be subject to an annual
limitation regarding their utilization against taxable income in future periods.

The income tax benefit of $5,717,000 reflects a combined income tax benefit for the continuing and
discontinued operations. This amount consists of an income tax benefit of $6,081,000 and an income tax
expense of $364,000 for the continuing and discontinued operations, respectively.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state income
tax purposes of approximately $15,000,000 and $7,000,000 respectively. These carryforwards begin to expire in
2020 and 2012 for federal and state purposes, respectively. The Company also has available federal and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

California research and development tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1,000,000 and $1,000,000,
respectively. These carryforwards begin to expire in 2020 for federal tax purposes.

NOTE 13: UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Certain unaudited quarterly financial information for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 is
presented below:

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2002
Revenue ..........ouurii i $ — $ — $ — 5 —
Loss from operations . .............. ..., $(3.986) $(5,762) $(6,058) $(5918)
Net108S . v $(2,556) $(3,702) $(3.,968) $(4,568)
Basic and diluted net loss per share................ $ (0.12) $ (0.18) $ (0.19) $ (0.22)
2001
Revenue ... .. ... . ... . . $) — 3 - % - $ -
Loss from operations . .............couiiiinnnn. $(3,814) $(3,015) $(3,151) $(6,224)
Netloss. ..o $(3,697) $(2,875) $(3,080) $(4,025)

Basic and diluted net loss per share................ $ (0.25) $ (0.18) $ (0.19) $ (0.24)

NOTE 14: SEGMENTS

As a result of the merger between Pre-Merger Lipid and NZ, the Company was previously organized into
two segments, Biotechnology and Real Estate. The Biotechnology segment is primarily engaged in the
research and development of products and processes focused on treating major medical indications in which
lipids, or fat components, play a key role. As part of the merger, we announced our intent to conduct an
orderly disposition of the real estate assets, including commercial real estate loans, acquired to fund the
ongoing operations of Lipid Sciences. On March 22, 2002, we approved a plan to dispose of the Real Estate
segment and intend to focus on Biotechnology in the future. Substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the
Real Estate segment are included in the discontinued operations plan formalized by the Company on
March 22, 2002 (see Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements).

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 28, 2003, we announced a new strategic direction for the Company and the application and
development of our novel technology of plasma delipidation. As a result, we ceased all operations in Australia
and will record a restructuring charge associated with the elimination of certain management and other staff
positions in the first quarter of 2003.
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SCHEDULE IIf —

REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31, 2002

Cost
Initial cost to capitalized Gross amount at which carried at
Company subsequent to close of period(1)
acquisition

Buildings and Buildings and Accumulated Date
Description Encumbrances Land Improvements Improvements Land [Improvements Total(a) Depreciation(b) Acquired

(in thousands)

Unimproved Properties
California $5,239 $— $5,239 $— 2002
New Mexico 861 — 861 various

Properties Under
Development

New Mexico 1,668

$7,768

(1) Tax basis is $8,240,000

(a) Note to Schedule [Ii-Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation )
Years Ended December 31,

2002 2000 2000
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of year .......... ... ... i $ 29887 $§ — $—
Additions during year:
Acquisitions through merger ......... ... . i — 29,922 —
Other ACqUisition .. ... ...t e e 6,222 — —
Improvements .. ... ...t 366 2 —
Deductions during year:
Costof real estate sold ....... ... .. i (28,707) 37 —
Balance at close of year .. ... ... .ttt $ 7,768 $29887 §—

(b) Note to Schedule I[II-Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

Years Ended
December 31,
2002 2081 2000

(In thousands)

Balance of accumulated depreciation at beginning of year....................... $ 43 $— $—
Additions during year:

Acquisitions through merger ............ .. it —

Current year depreciation. . ....... .ttt 134 43 —
Deductions during year:

Real estate sold .. ... ... i e (177)

IZ |
17 1

Balance at close of year ... ... . $ —
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SCHEDULE IV
MORTGAGE LUANS ON REAL ESTATE
December 31, 2002

Principal
amount of
loans
subject to
Final Periodic Face Carrying delinquent
Interest  maturity payment amount of amount of principal or
Description rate date terms mortgages mortgages(3) (a) interest
(In thousands)
Mortgages on:
Unimproved Land Sales:
Arizona .................... 11% 2014 Quarterly(2) $ 136 $ 113 $ 136
~Colorado................L L 10% 2003  Quarterly(1) 1,000 830
Residential Land under
Development:
Arizona ... 9.25% 2007 Monthly(1) 455 409
Arizona .................... 9.25% 2007 Monthly(1) 6,045 5,440
Commercial Land Under
Development — Arizona ...... 10% 2004  Annually(l) 867 720
Commercial Land Unimproved —
Utah....................... 12.75% 2001  Monthly(1) 1,326 1,326 1,326
' $9,829 $8,838 $1,462

(1) Level payments of interest

(2) Level payments of principal plus interest on the unpaid balance

(3) Tax basis is $9,082,000

(a) Schedule IV-Mortgage L.oans on Real Estate

Balance at beginning of period
Additions during period:

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(In thousands)

New mortgage loans acquired through merger ...................... $28381 $§ — § —

New mortgage loans ....................
Deduction during period: ..................
Collections of principal . . ................

Balance at close of year ...................

........................ — 28,681 —
........................ 3,156 122 —
........................ (22,699) (422) —

........................ $ 8838 $28381 $§ —
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LipiD ScieNCES, INc.

/s/  SANDRA GARDINER

Sandra Gardiner
Chief Accounting Officer

Dated March 28, 2003

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Sandra Gardiner his attorney-in-fact, with the power of substitution, for him in any
and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Report on Form 10-K, and file the same, with exhibits
thereto and any other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause
to be done by virtue hereof.

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of Lipid Sciences, Inc. and in the capacities indicated and on March 28, 2003.

Signature Title Date

/s/  SANDRA GARDINER Chief Accounting Officer March 28, 2003
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Sandra Gardiner

/s/ FRANK M. PLACENTI Director March 28, 2003
Frank M. Placenti

/s/ S. LeEwis MEYER, PH.D. Director March 28, 2003
S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D.

/s/  H. BRYAN BREWER, Jr., M.D. Director March 28, 2003
H. Bryan Brewer, Jr., M.D.

/s/ RICHARD G. BABBITT Chairman " March 28, 2003
Richard G. Babbitt

/s/ WiLLiaM A. PopE Director March 28, 2003
William A. Pope

/s/  GaRry S. RousiN, M.D., Pu.D. Director March 28, 2003 ‘
Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D.

Explanatory Note: The Company does not currently have a Chief Executive Officer. The highest ranking
officer of the Company is currently the Chief Accounting Officer.
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Sandra Gardiner, certify that:
I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lipid Sciences, Inc,;

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual
Report.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual
Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report.

The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date); and

c. presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluations of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of Directors (or person performing the
equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/  SANDRA GARDINER

Sandra Gardiner
Chief Accounting Officer

Date: March 28, 2003

Explanatory Note: The Company does not currently have a Chief Executive Officer. The highest ranking

officer of the Company is currently the Chief Accounting Officer.
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER
I, Sandra Gardiner, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lipid Sciences, Inc,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual
Report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual
Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we
have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared;

. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c. presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of Directors (or person performing the
equivalent function):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not there
were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. :

/s/  SANDRA GARDINER

Sandra Gardiner
Chief Accounting Officer

Date: March 28, 2003
Explanatory Note: Currently, the Company’s principal financial officer is the Chief Accounting Officer.

34




Exhibit
Number

2.1
2.2

3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4

4.5
10.1
10.2
10.3
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10.10
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10.16
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 9, 2001, by and between NZ Corporation and Lipid
Sciences, Inc.(1)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 9, 2001, by and between Sun NZ, L.L.C. and Lipid
Sciences, Inc.(2)

Certificate of Incorporation (8)
Bylaws(8)

Form of Common Stock Certificate
Form of Rights Certificate**

Proxy, Standstill and Release Agreement dated December 2, 2002, among Lipid Sciences, Inc., the
Director Parties, named therein, and KAI International, LLC and Bill E. Cham(9)

Irrevocable Proxy dated December 2, 2002 of KAI International, LLC(9)

Irrevocable Proxy dated December 2, 2002 of Bill E. Cham(9)

2001 Performance Equity Plan, as amended

2000 Stock Option Plan, as amended(3)

1997 Stock Incentive Plan(4)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Lipid Sciences, Inc. and its directors and officers.

Intellectual Property License Agreement between Lipid Sciences, Inc. and Aruba International Pty.
Ltd. dated December 30, 1999(5)*

Development Agreement between SRI International and Lipid Sciences, Inc., dated October 6,
2000(1)*

Amendment No. One to Development Agreement between SRI International and Lipid Sciences,
Inc., dated as of March 8, 2001(1)*

Amendment No. Two to Development Agreement between SRI International and Lipid Sciences,
Inc., dated as of March 28, 2001 (5)

Amendment No. Three to Development Agreement between SRI International and Lipid Sciences,
Inc., dated as of May 12, 2001 (1)*

MDB Capital Group, LLC Engagement Letter with Lipid Sciences, Inc., dated June 29, 2001(3)

Warrant and Shareholders Rights Agreement issued by Lipid Sciences, Inc. to SRI International
under the Development Agreement dated ./arch 8, 2001(5)

Service Agreement between Lipid Sciences, Inc. and Karuba International Pty. Ltd., dated Novem-
ber 27, 2001(7)

Deed among Lipid Sciences, Inc., Karuba International Pty. Ltd., and Bill E. Cham, dated
November 29, 2001 (7)

Employment Agreement with Phil Radlick, Ph.D., dated June 1, 2000(6)
Employment Agreement with Dale L. Richardson, dated July 26, 2000(6)
Employment Agreement with Jo-Ann B. Maltais, Ph.D., dated August 25, 2000(6)
Employment Agreement with Susan Capello, dated December 3, 2000(6)
Employment Agreement with Barry Michaels, dated April 2, 2001 (7)

Employment Agreement with Marc Bellotti, dated July 2, 2001 (6)

Employment Agreement with Jan Johansson, dated July 18, 2001(1)

Employment Agreement with R. Randy Stolworthy, dated November 30, 2001(7)

Form of Employee Confidential Information and Inventions Agreement entered into by all employees
of Lipid Sciences, Inc.(6)

Employment Agreement with Sandra Gardiner, dated February 1, 2001.
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Exhibit ]
Number Description

10.24 Agreement (including Release) between Lipid Sciences, Inc. and Phillip C. Radlick, Ph.D., dated as
of October 15, 2002

10.25 Separation Agreement and General Release between Lipid Sciences, Inc. and Barry Michaels, dated
- as of January 28, 2003.

21.1  Subsidiaries of Lipid Sciences, Inc.(7)

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Auditors

23.2  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors

24.1 Powers of Attorney (Included on Signature Page)

99.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

99.2  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(1) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A filed with the
SEC on October 30, 2001 (Registration No. 333-67012) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(2) This exhibit is filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the
SEC on August 10, 2001 and is incorporated herein by reference.

(3) This exhibit is filed as an exhioit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the
SEC on August 7, 2001 (Registration No. 333-67012) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(4) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the
SEC on January 9, 1998 (Registration No. 333-44017) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(5) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A filed with the
SEC on August 16, 2001 (Registration No. 333-67012) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(6) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4/A filed with the
SEC on September 24, 2001 (Registration No. 333-67012) and is incorporated herein by reference.

(7) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-X filed with the SEC on
March 29, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.

(8) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC
on August 13, 2002 and is incorporated herein by reference.

(9) This exhibit is filed as an exhibit to the joint Schedule 13D/A (Amendment No. 1) in respect of Lipid
Sciences, Inc. filed by KAI International, Inc. and Bill E. Cham with the SEC on February 4, 2003 and is
incorporated herein by reference.

* Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of these agreements.

** The Company intends to issue Rights Certificates to the Rights Holders, but has not yet done so. The
entitlements of the Rights Holders are described in our Registration Statement on Form S-4/A filed with
the SEC on October 30, 2001.
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DEAR STOCKHOLDER :

We mark 2003 as the year in which we changed the strategic direction of your Company.

In late 2002, we initiated a restructuring of our business operations to allow us to position Lipid Sciences for progress
in this difficult economic environment and prudently prepare us for the future. We expect that this restructuring will
result in a reduction of operating expenses in the second half of 2003 by 30 percent to 40 percent of 2002 levels.

We have now focused our research and development investment on our Viral Pathogen Inactivation (VPI™) platform
with the first indication being HIV. Currently, almost 900,000 people in the U.S." and approximately 42 million
people worldwide are infected with HIV; 2 of those, three million people die of HIV/AIDS every year.? We believe
we can make a difference.

Your Board of Directors has provided the direction needed to guide your Company through an important period of
transition and has positioned Lipid Sciences to capitalize on significant opportunities for future growth. We also have
the expertise and commitment of our Scientific and Viral Advisory Boards at our disposal. Combine with this the talent,
experience, and track record of our new Chief Executive Officer, Lew Meyer, and we believe we have a combination
of elements necessary for future success.

So, what lies ahead for the remainder of this year?

We are now seeking to conclude initial animal studies to demonstrate both safety and immunogenicity in support of
the application of our viral platform to HIV. Before year end, our plan calis for commencing non-human primate
studies to demonstrate safety and efficacy of the VPI platform in a human surrogate model. A successful conclusion
of this study would position us for future submission to the FDA in support of a Phase 1 Human Clinical Trial.

With the implementation of the restructuring plan early this year, we have taken the difficult but fiscally prudent steps
necessary to assure that sufficient capital is available to move our scientific program forward. The organization

is now properly sized, oligned, and focused on the creation of value for you, our stockholders. We now truly join
together to begin the exhilarating process of focusing our efforts to assure our future.

Thank you for your continuing support.

Sincerely,

/é%éﬁm 74 @aﬁsf;r—‘

Richard G. Babbin
Chairman of the Board
April 25, 2003

' The Centers for Disease Control
2 The Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/AIDS

7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton, CA 94566-3111
Tel: 925-249-4000 Fax: 925-249-4040

www.lipidsciences.com
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FORWARD-LOCKING STATEMENTS :

This Annual Report, including the documents incorporated by reference in this Annual Report, contains forwardooking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

nu " ou " n w ne

Forwardooking statements are identified by words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “guess,”
“will,” “may” and other similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections, plans, objectives, goals,
strategies or other characterizations of future events or circumstances are forward-looking statements. These forwarddooking statements speak
only as of the date stated, and we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise publicly any forwardocking statements, whether as

a result of new information, future events or otherwise, even if experience or future events make it clear that any expected results expressed or
implied by these forward-looking statements will not be realized. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forwardHooking
statements are reasonable, these expectations may not prove to be correct, or we may not achieve the financial results, savings or other benefits
anticipated in the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are necessarily estimates reflecting the best judgment of our
senior management and involve a number of risks and uncerlainties, some of which may be beyond our control, that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: our
inability to obtain adequate funds; our technology may not prove to be safe or effective; our inability to obtain regulatory approvel of our tech-
nology, which is only in the clinical development stage; delay or failure to complete clinical studies; our dependence on our license agreement
with Aruba International; our reliance on collaborations with strategic partners; competition in our industry, including the development of new
products by others that may provide alternative or better therapies; failure to secure and enforce intellectual property rights; risks associated
with use of biological and hazardous materials; product liability claims; economic downturn in the real estate market; our dependence on key
personnel; additional shares of common stock becoming available for sale after expiration of certain lock-up period; and potential dilution of
existing stockholders’ ownership if shares are issued to former NZ Corporation shareholders who have perfected certain rights.

" u

Factors that could cause actuol results or conditions to differ from those anticipated by these and other forward-ooking statements include those
described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our most recent reports on Form 10K and Form 10-Q.
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April 25, 2003

To our Stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Lipid Sciences, Inc. (the
“Company”’) to be held at our principal executive offices at 7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton,
California on Thursday, May 29, 2003 at 8:00 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time. Enclosed are a notice to
stockholders, a proxy statement describing the business to be transacted at the meeting, and a proxy card for
use in voting at the meeting.

At the Annual Meeting, you will be asked to vote on the important matters described in detail in the
notice of the 2003 Annual Meeting and proxy statement accompanying this letter. There also will be an
opportunity for you to ask questions and receive information about the business of the Company.

Included with the proxy statement is a copy of the Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders. We
encourage you to read the Annual Report. It includes information on the Company’s operations as well as the
Company’s audited financial statements.

Please take this opportunity to participate in the affairs of the Company by voting on the business to come
before this meeting. WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE
COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND PROMPTLY RETURN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD IN
THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE SC THAT YOUR SHARES MAY BE REPRE-
SENTED AT THE MEETING. Returning the proxy card does not deprive you of your right to attend the
meeting and to vote your shares in persori.

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.

Sincerely,

S £ Srgnm

Richard G. Babbitt
Chairman of the Board of Directors

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND PROMPTLY RETURN
THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE WHETHER OR NOT YOU
PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING. IF YOU ATTEND THE MEETING AND DESIRE TO
WITHDRAW YOUR PROXY, YOU MAY VOTE IN PERSON AND YOUR PROXY WILL BE
WITHDRAWN.

7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401 — Pleasanton, CA 94566 — Tel 925-249-4000 — Fax 925-249-4040




April 25, 2003

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 29, 2003

To our Stockholders:

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Lipid Sciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company” or
“Lipid Sciences’), will be held on Thursday, May 29, 2003 at 8:00 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time, at our
principal executive offices located at 7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton, California for the
purpose of considering and voting upon the following matters:

1. To elect two persons to serve as Class I Directors for a three-year term;

2. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments
thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this
Notice.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 7, 2003 are entitled to notice of and to vote
at the meeting and any adjournments or postponements thereof.

All stockholders eligible to vote at the Annual Meeting are cordially invited to attend the meeting in
person. Any stockholder attending the meeting may vote in person even if such stockholder previously signed
and returned a proxy.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

KoL 5 rgnm

Richard G. Babbitt _
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Pleasanton, California
April 25, 2003

WHETHER OR NOT YOU EXPECT TO ATTEND THE MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE
AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PRCXY AND MAIL IT PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE
IN CRDER TO ASSURE REPRESENTATION OF YOUR SHARES.
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Lipid Sciences, Inc.
7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401
Pleasanton, California 94566

PROXY STATEMENT FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Lipid Sciences, Inc. (the “Board”)
for use at the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held on Thursday,
May 29, 2003 at 8:00 a.m., Pacific Daylight Time, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof, for the
purposes set forth herein and in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual
Meeting will be held at our principal executive offices at 7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton,
California.

These proxy solicitation materials were mailed on or about April 25, 2003 to all stockholders entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting.

INFORMATION CONCERNING SCLICITATION AND VOTING

Record Date and Shares Qutstanding

Stockholders of record at the close of business on April 7, 2003 (the “Record Date”) are entitled to
notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. At the Record Date, 21,141,455 shares of the common stock of
the Company, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”), were issued, outstanding and entitled to
vote at the Annual Meeting.

Revocability of Proxies

Any proxy given in accordance with this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time
before its use by delivering to the Secretary of the Company, at the address for the Company indicated above,
a written notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy in either case bearing a later date or by attending the
Annual Meeting and voting in person. Attendance at the Annual Meeting will not, by itself, revoke a proxy.

If a stockholder’s shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and that stockholder
wishes to vote at the Annual Meeting, the stockholder must bring to the meeting a letter from the broker, bank
or other nominee confirming the stockholder’s beneficial ownership of the shares.

Solicitation

Solicitation of proxies may be made by Directors, Officers and other employees of the Company by
personal interview, telephone, facsimile or other method. No additional compensation will be paid for such
service. Costs of solicitation, including preparation, assembly, printing and mailing of this proxy statement, the
proxy and any other information furnished to the stockholders, will be borne by the Company. The Company
may reimburse the reasonable charges and expenses of brokerage houses or other nominees or fiduciaries for
forwarding proxy materials to, and obtaining authority to execute proxies from, beneficial owners for whose
account they hold shares of Common Stock.

Vote and Quorum Required

Holders of the Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share held as of the record date. Votes
may be cast either in person or by proxy.

The presence, in person or by properly executed proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled
to vote at the Annual Meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum at the meeting. Shares of holders that are
present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting, including shares that do not vote with respect to the




proposal, will be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum exists. If a quorum is not present, the
Annual Meeting may be adjourned from time to time until a quorum is obtained.

Proposal One:  Election of members of the Board is by a plurality of the votes cast by the shares present
in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. As a result, the two nominees
receiving the greatest number of votes for their election will be elected. Abstentions and broker “non-votes”
and instructions on the accompanying proxy card to withhold authority to vote for one or more of the nominees
will have no effect on the outcome of the vote for the election of Directors.

Vote for Matter on Proxy

If the enclosed proxy card is properly signed and returned prior to the Annual Meeting with instructions
on how to vote, the shares represented by such proxy will be voted in accordance with the stockholder’s
directions.

If the enclosed proxy card is properly signed and returned prior to the Annual Meeting without
instructions on how to vote, the shares represented by such proxy will be voted FOR the Director nominees
listed on the proxy card.

Additional Matters at the Annual Meeting

The Company does not know of any other matters that will be considered at the Annual Meeting. If a
stockholder proposal that was excluded from this proxy statement is brought before the Annual Meeting, the
proxies will be voted against the proposal. If any other matters arise at the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be
voted at the discretion of the proxy holders.

PROPOSAL ONE: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

The Board is currently divided into three classes. Directors hold office for staggered terms of three years
(or less if they are filling a vacancy) and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. One of three
classes is elected each year at the Annual Meeting to succeed the Directors whose te.ms are expiring. At the
Annual Meeting, the terms for the Directors in Class I, Il and 111 of the Board expire in 2006, 2004, and 2005,
respectively.

The Board has nominated William A. Pope and S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D. to be elected at the Annual
Meeting as Class [ Directors.

The Company expects each nominee for election as a Director at the Annual Meeting to be able to serve
if elected. If any nominee is unable to serve if elected, proxies will be voted in favor of such substitute nominee
as may be nominated by the Board.

The principal occupation and certain other information is set forth below regarding the nominees for
election at the Annual Meeting and the other members of the Board whose terms of office will continue after
the Annual Meeting. Information about the share ownership of the nominees and other Directors can be found
on page 7.

The Board of Directors recommends
2 vote FOR each of the nominees listed above.
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Board of Directors

The names of and certain other information regarding the members of the Board and the nominees are
set forth in the table below.

M Age Position with the Company
Richard G. Babbitt(C)(1)(2)(4) ... 77  Chairman of the Board

S. Lewis Mever, PA.D.(A)(4) .............. ... ... ... 58  President, CEO and Director
H. Bryan Brewer, Jr, MD.(B)(1) .................... 64  Director

Frank M. Placenti(B)(1)(2)(3)(4) .. ... ... ..o 0. 49 Director

William A. Pope(A) .. .o 46  Director

Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D.(C)(2)(3) ............... 54  Director

(A) Nominated as Class I Director. If elected, term of office as a Director will continue until the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 2006 or until his successor has been duly elected and qualified or
until his earlier resignation or removal.

(B) Class 11 Director. Term of office as a Director will continue until the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be held in 2004 or until his successor has been duly elected and qualified or until his earlier resignation or
removal.

(C) Class 11T Director. Term of office as a Director will continue until the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be held in 2005 or until his successor has been duly elected and qualified or until his earlier resignation
or removal.

(1) Current member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.
(2) Current member of the Audit Committee.

(3) Current member of the Compensation Committee.

(4) Current member of the Executive Committee.

Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement among Sun NZ, L.L.C. (“Sun NZ”), NZ Corporation
(“NZ”) and pre-merger Lipid Sciences, Sun NZ, a large stockholder of the Company, has the right to
nominate one-third of the Company’s Directors if our entire Board consists of nine or more persons or two
Directors if our entire Board consists of eight or fewer persons. This right is subject to reduction or elimination
if Sun NZ fails to meet minimum sharcholding requirements set forth in such stock purchase agreement.
Mr. Pope, a Director of the Company, is the President and a Director of Sun NMA, Inc. {“SunNMA"}, the
Managing Member of Sun NZ. Sun Chase Holdings, Inc. is the principal stockholder of SunNMA.
Messrs. Pope and Placenti were both nominated by Sun NZ to be members of our Board.

The Directors

Richard G. Babbitt. Mr. Babbitt was elected to our Board and has served as Chairman since September
2002 and is currently Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nominating and Corporate
Governance and the Executive Committees of the Board. Mr. Babbitt served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Inamed Corporation, a medical device company that develops, manufactures and markets a
diverse line of medical devices including breast implants for both aesthetic and reconstructive purposes, a.
range of dermal products to correct facial wrinkles and the LAP-BAND and BIB systems used to treat severe
and morbid obesity, from 1998 to July 2002. Prior to 1998, Mr. Babbitt held the positions of Chief Executive
Officer and President of Inamed Corporation. Before joining Inamed, he was associated with DNA
Technologies, Inc., Ben Hogan Company, B.I. Industries, American Safety Equipment Corporation, Welsh
Manufacturing and Medical Supply Company in Chief Executive Officer and Board positions. Mr. Babbitt is a
graduate of Purdue University, where he received his Bachelor of Science and Bachelor of Naval Science and
Tactics. He also served as an Officer in the United States Marine Corps.
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S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D. Dr. Meyer became the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on
April 14, 2003 and has served as a member of our Board since July 2002. He also is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Board. From June 1993 until December 2001, Dr. Meyer served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Imatron, Inc., a company engaged in designing, manufacturing and marketing a
high performance e¢lectron beam tomography scanner. From April 1991 until joining Imatron, Dr. Meyer was
Vice President, Operations of Otsuka Electronics (U.S.A.), Inc., Fort Collins, Colorado, a manufacturer of
clinical MRI systems and analytical NMR spectrometers. From August 1990 to April 1991, he was a founding
partner of Medical Capital Management, a company engaged in providing consulting services to medical
equipment manufacturers, imaging services providers and related medical professionals. Prior to founding
Medical Capital Management, he was Founder, President and Chief Executive Officer of American Health
Services Corp. (now Insight Health Services), a publicly held developer and operator of a nationwide network
of diagnostic imaging and treatment centers. Dr. Meyer has also served on the Board of Directors of a variety
of public and private companies generally in the fields of medical technology and biotech and currently is a
Director of Lexrite Labs and Opticon Medical, privately held, development stage biotech companies. Until
1998, Dr. Meyer was a member of the Board of Directors of the American Electronics Association (AEA).
Dr. Meyer received his Bachelor of Science in physics from the University of the Pacific and his Masters and
Doctorate degrees in physics from Purdue University.

H. Bryan Brewer, M.D. Dr. H. Bryan Brewer has served as a member of our Board since October 2002,
has been a member of the Company’s Scientific Advisory Board (SAB) since March 2001, and is currently a
member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board. Dr. Brewer is the Chief of
the Molecular Disease Branch at the National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute, National Institutes of Health
(NIH), in Bethesda, Maryland, a position he has held since 1976. His research led to the first published
sequences for human plasma apolipoproteins, the initial determination of plasma apolipoproteins metabolism
in normal and hyperlipidemic individuals, and the identification of multiple gene defects leading to genetic
dyslipoproteinemias. More recently, Dr. Brewer pioneered the use of transgenic mice and rabbits, as well as
recombinant adenovirus vectors to identify genes that modulate lipoprotein metabolism and the development
of atherosclerosis. Dr. Brewer has been the recipient of the JD Lane Investigator Award from the Public
Health Service, the Heinrich Wieland Prize from the Federal Republic of Germany and the Public Health
Service Commendation, Meritorious Service and Distinguished Service medals from the NIH. He has served
as a member of the Board of National Cholesterol Education Program, which established U.S. treatment
guidelines for patients with hyperlipidemia. He has published more than 400 original reports and 70 reviews
and book chapters on the subjects of genetic dyslipoproteinemias, lipoprotein metabolism, and atherosclerosis.
Dr. Brewer earned his Bachelor of Science from Johns Hopkins University, and Doctorate of Medicine from
Stanford University School of Medicine. He completed his internship and residency training in internal
medicine at Massachusetts General Hospital in Boston, Massachusetts.

Frank M. Placenti. Mr. Placenti has served as a member of our Board since November 2001. He
currently serves as Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, and as a member of
the Executive, the Compensation and the Audit Committees of the Board. Mr. Placenti has been a partner in
the international law firm of Bryan Cave LLP since March 1997, where he heads the firm’s Phoenix Corporate
Finance and Transaction Practice Groups and serves as a Co-Leader of the firm’s Transaction Client Service
Group. Prior to that time, Mr. Placenti was a partner in the law firm of Brown and Bain, P.C., from April 1994
to March 1997. His practice emphasizes the representation of public companies in mergers, acquisitions,
financings and corporate governance matters.

William A. Pope. MTr. Pope has served as a member of our Board since the merger of NZ and pre-merger
Lipid Sciences in November 2001. Mr. Pope has served as a Director of NZ since 1994. Mr. Pope served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of NZ from June 1994 until November 1997. Since 1993, Mr. Pope has
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of SunChase Holdings, Inc. and its affiliated companies. Prior
to 1993, Mr. Pope served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of SunChase Holdings, Inc.
and its affiliated companies. In the United States, SunChase Holdings, Inc. is engaged in the business of
acquiring, developing, managing and marketing residential and commercial properties. Mr. Pope also is the
President and a Director of Sun NMA, Inc., the Managing Member of Sun NZ, a large stockholder of the
Company. Sun Chase Holdings, Inc. is the principal stockholder of Sun NMA, Inc.
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Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D. Dr. Roubin has served on our Board since May 2000 and is currently a
member of the Audit and Compensation Committees of the Board. Since 1997, Dr. Roubin has been the
Chief of Endovascular Services at Lenox Hill Hospital in New York. From November 1989 to October 1997,
he was Professor of Medicine and Radiclogy and Director of the Cardiac Catheterization Laboratories and
Intervention Cardiology Section at the University of Alabama at Birmingham Hospital. He is a Fellow of the
Royal Australian College of Physicians, the American College of Cardiology, the Council on Clinical
Cardiology of the American Heart Association, the Society for Cardiac Angiography and Intervention,
Society for Vascular Medicine and Biology, and the International Society of Endovascular Specialists.
Dr. Roubin attended medical school at the University of Queensland where he completed his degree in 1975.
He received a Doctorate in Cardiovascular Physiology from Sydney University in 1983, In 1995, he was
awarded a Doctorate in Medicine from the University of Queensland for his basis and clinical research in the
development of coronary stenting.

Board Meetings and Committees

The Board held a total of 10 meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. In addition to
meetings, the Board and its committees reviewed and acted upon matters by unanimous written consent.
During this period, each Director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of
the Board and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of the Board on which he served. The
Company has a standing Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominat-
ing and Corporate Governance Committee.

The current members of the Executive Committee of the Board are Mr. Babbitt, Mr. Placenti and
Dr. Meyer. The principal function of the Executive Committee is to serve in an advisory capacity to the Board
and as a resource for management. The Executive Committee does not have the power to act instead of or on
behalf of the Board unless specifically authorized by the Board.

The current members of the Audit Committee of the Board are Mr. Babbitt, Mr. Placenti and
Dr. Roubin. The principal functions of the Audit Committee are to recommend engagement of the Company’s
independent auditors, to consult with the Company’s auditors concerning the scope of the audit and to review
with them the results of their examination, to review and approve any material accounting policy changes
affecting the Company’s operating results and to review the Company’s financial control procedures and
personnel. The Audit Committee held three meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The
Board has determined that members Mr. Babbitt, Mr. Placenti and Dr. Roubin of the Audit Committee are
“Independent Directors” as defined in Rule 4200(a) (15) of the listing standards of the National Association
of Securities Dealers, Inc. with respect to Nasdaq listed companies.

The current members of the Compensation Committee of the Board are Mr. Placenti and Dr. Roubin.
The Compensation Committee determines compensaticn and benefits for the members of the Board and the
Company’s Executive Officers. The Compensation Committee held four meetings during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002.

The current members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Mr. Babbitt,
Dr. Brewer and Mr. Placenti. The Nominating Committee reviews potential candidates for service on the
Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held six meetings during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002. All the nominees up for election as Directors presently are members of the Board and
were recommended by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and nominated for re-election
by the Board. Any stockholder who wishes to recommend a prospective Board nominee for the Nominating
Committee to consider can write to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, Lipid Sciences,
Inc., 7068 Koll Center Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton, California 94566.



Compensation of Directors

Only non-employee Directors receive compensation for service on our Board. In connection with their
initial election to the Board, each non-employee Director, other than Mr. Babbitt, was granted an option to
purchase 80,000 shares of our Common Stock. In connection with his initial election as Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Babbitt was granted an option to purchase 125,000 shares of our Common Stock. Options granted
to a non-employee Director generally vest as to one-third of the shares subject to the option on the date of
grant, another one-third on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining one-third on the second
anniversary of the date of grant, subject to automatic acceleration of vesting if the Director is not nominated
by the Board to stand for re-election or if nominated, is not reelected by our stockholders at any time prior to
the second anniversary of the date of grant. In addition, each non-employee Director is paid $2,500 per month
and $1,500 for each Board meeting attended. Directors who serve on committees of our Board are also paid
$1,500 for each committee meeting attended. Directors who serve on multiple committees of our Board are
compensated for attendance at only one committee meeting if multiple meetings occur on the same day,
except the per day maximum compensation shall not apply to an Executive Committee member’s attendance
at a meeting of the Audit Committee or service as a member of the Audit Committee. All Directors are
reimbursed for expenses incurred in connection with their service on our Board.

MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers

Our Executive Cfficers, and their ages as of March 31, 2003, are as follows:

Name Age Position with the Company
S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D.*............. 58  President, CEO and Director
Sandra Gardiner ................... 37  Chief Accounting Officer
Marc Bellotti . ............ ... ..., 51  Vice President — Research and Development
Jo-Ann B. Maltais, Ph.D. ........... 54  Vice President — Scientific Affairs
Dale L. Richardson ................ 47  Vice President — Business Development

* S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D. Dr. Meyer became our President and Chief Executive Officer on April 14, 2003.
Dr. Meyer’s biography is located on page 4 under “Proposal One: Election of Directors — The Directors.”

Sandra Gardiner. Ms. Gardiner became our Chief Accounting Officer in January 2003. From February
2001 to December 2002, Ms. Gardiner was the Controller and Director of Administration for the Company.
From January 1994 to January 2001, she was associated with Cardima, Inc., 2 manufacturer of catheter-based
systems to improve the diagnosis and therapy of electrophysiologic disorders, as Corporate Controller for the
first four years and as Director of Finance and Administration for the last three years. Prior to joining
Cardima, Ms. Gardiner served as Corporate Controller for Comac, Inc. from March 1991 to December 1993.
Ms. Gardiner began her biotechnology career with Advanced Cardiovascular Systems, currently a division of
Guidant, in 1988, holding several positions in the Internal Audit, Accounting and Finance departments.
Ms. Gardiner received her Bachelor of Administration in Management Economics from the University of
California at Davis.

Mare Bellotti.  Mr. Bellotti became Vice President — Research and Development in January 2003. He
joined the Company in July 2001 as Vice President — Product Development. Prior to joining Lipid Sciences,
Mr. Bellotti was employed by Baxter Healthcare Corporation for 25 years. Mr. Bellotti’s most recent positions
at Baxter were Director of Product Development for Rapid Prototyping and Fabrication-Advanced Design
Center and, prior to that, for the Renal Division. Mr. Bellotti received both his Master of Engineering in
Biomedical Engineering and his Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Engineering from the Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute.

Jo-Ann Maltais, Ph.D. Dr. Maltais became Vice President — Scientific Affairs in August 2000.
Dr. Maltais has over 17 years of experience in research and product development, clinical trials, quality
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assurance and regulatory affairs, sales and marketing support and customer support of extracorporeal medical
devices. From 1990 to 2000, she served in various executive positions for Gambro AG and its subsidiaries,
most recently as the Head of Scientific Affairs for Gambro Healthcare, Inc. Gambro AG is a company in the
kidney dialysis industry. From 1984 to 1990, Dr. Maltais served as Manager, Corporate Microbiology for
Minntech Corporation, a manufacturer of dialysis products. From 1979 to 1983, Dr. Maltais worked for the
FDA. Dr. Maltais has a Bachelor of Science in Biology and Chemistry from Long Island University and a
Doctorate in Microbiology from the University of New Hampshire and a Postdoctoral Fellowship at the
University of Minnesota. She is the author of several scientific papers and inventor on eight patents.

Dale L. Richardson. Mr. Richardson became Vice President — Business Development in January 2003,
From August-2000 to December 2002 he served as Vice President — Marketing and Sales. From 1996 to
2000, he was with Fresenius AG, a company in the kidney dialysis and apheresis industries, spending his last
two years there as President and Chief Operating Officer of Fresenius Hemotechnology, Inc. For the two years
prior to Fresenius, Mr. Richardson was Senior Vice President, Marketing and Sales for McKesson
Corporation, a drug distribution company. Mr. Richardson began his medical career with Davol, Inc., a
medical products company and a subsidiary of C.R. Bard, Inc., in 1981 working up from sales representative to
Vice President — Sales over a ten-year period. He then managed International Marketing, followed by
worldwide Sales and Marketing responsibility and finally was promoted to Vice President, Blood Management
Products. Mr. Richardson received his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from California State
University, Hayward and his Masters in Business Administration from West Coast University in Los Angeles.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common
Stock as of March 31, 2003 (i) by each of our Directors, (ii) by each of our Executive Officers named in the
Summary Compensation Table on page 10, (iii) by all Directors and Executive Officers as a group, and
(iv) by each person who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our Common Stock.

Percent of
Number of Common
Shares Stock
Beneficially Beneficially
M Owned (1) (3) Owned(2) (3)
Directors and Named Executive Officers
Richard G. Babbitt................ P 100,000(4) *
S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D. ... ... 83,332(4) *
Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D. ... .. o o 209,234(4) *
William A. POpe. . ..ottt 1,582,534(5) 7.5%
Frank M. Placenti ..... ... . . i i 93,333(4) *
H. Bryan Brewer, Jr, M.D. ... ... o 156,927(4) *
Phillip C. Radlick, Ph.D. ... ... . 831,677(6) 3.9%
Barry D. Michaels .......... 144,510(7) *
Marc Bellotti. ... ..o e 111,454(8) *
Dale L. Richardson .......... ... . i, 145,432(9) *
Jan Johansson, M.D., Ph.D. ... ... ... .. .. ... . .. .. 55,215(10) *
Directors and Executive Officers as a group (8 persons) ......... 2,482,246(11) 11.7%
5% Stockholders
Bil E. Cham, Ph.D. ... ... 4,808,347(12) 22.7%

190 Woodlands Drive
Thornlands, Queensland 4157
Australia




(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Percent of
Number of Common
Shares Stock
Beneficiaily Beneficially
Beneficial Owner Owned (1) (3) Owned(2) (3)

KAI International, LLC 4,755,013(13) 22.5%

190 Woodlands Drive
Thornlands, Queensland 4157
Australia

Robert E. & Margaret M. Petersen Living Trust 2,004,455(14)

6420 Wilshire Boulevard
Los Angeles, California 90048

Sun NZ, LLC 1,480,181 (15)

3010 E. Camelback Road
Suite 100
Phoenix, Arizona 85016

Bosko Djordevic 1,502,029 (16)

264 South La Cienega Boulevard
Suite 215
Beverly Hills, California 90211

Aaron Grunfeld 1,994,668 (17)

10390 Santa Monica Boulevard, 4th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90025

Indicates beneficial ownership of less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

Unless otherwise indicated below, each stockholder named in the table has sole voting and investment '
power with respect to all shares beneficially owned, subject to applicable community property laws.

All shares of Common Stock subject to options currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days after
March 31, 2003, are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of
ownership of the person holding such options, but are not deemed to be outstanding for computing the
percentage of ownership of any other person. Percentage of ownership is based on 21,141,455 shares of
Common Stock outstanding as of March 31, 2003.

With respect to each of the Directors, the number of shares beneficially owned and the percentage of the
class do not include any shares that may be deemed to be beneficially owned by the Directors due to the
Standstill and Release Agreement dated as of December 2, 2002, by and among Dr. Cham,
KAI International, Inc., the Company and the Members of the Board other than Dr. Cham. See
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” on page 13.

Represents shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock options.

Includes 70,810 shares of Common Stock issuable to Mr. Pope upon exercise of stock options. Based on
information contained in the Schedule 13D (Amendment No. 3) filed by Sun NZ, Sun NMA, Inc. and
William A. Pope with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on December 12, 2001,
Sun NZ owns 1,480,181 shares of Common Stock. Mr. Pope, as the President and a Director of
Sun NMA, the Managing Member of Sun NZ, is deemed to have beneficial ownership and shared
voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares of Common Stock owned by Sun NZ. Also,
Mr. Pope is deemed a beneficial owner of 4,938 shares of Common Stock he holds as custodian for his
children and 22,312 shares of Common Stock that Mr. Pope holds indirectly through Sterling Pacific
Assets, Inc., which he controls.

Includes 831,477 shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock options. Dr. Radlick resigned
as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective October 15, 2002. In accordance
with the terms of his stock option agreement, any options he held that were vested as of the date of his
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(7)

(8)

%)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

resignation will continue to be exercisable until May 28, 2003, after which all beneficially owned shares
subject to stock options that have not been exercised will be forfeited.

Mr. Michaels’ employment with the Company terminated effective January 28, 2003. Of the shares he
beneficially owns, 142,910 represent the number of shares of Common Stock subject to options
exercisable as of the date of Mr. Michaels’ employment termination. In accordance with the terms of
Mr. Michaels’ stock option agreement, no additional shares that are subject to his option will become
exercisable following the date of his employment termination, his option will expire on April 2, 2011,
and all beneficially owned shares subject to his option that have not been exercised prior to that date will
be forfeited.

Represents shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock options, of which 3,248 shares of
Common Stock are subject to stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days of March 31,
2003.

Represents shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock options, of which 6,496 shares of
Common Stock are subject to stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days of March 31,
2003.

Dr. Johansson’s employment with the Company terminated effective January 28, 2003. The number of
shares beneficially owned by Dr. Johansson represents the number of shares of Common Stock subject
to options exercisable as of the date of Dr. Johansson’s employment termination. In accordance with the
terms of Dr. Johansson’s stock option agreement, no additional shares that are subject to his option will
become exercisable following the date of his employment termination, his option will expire on May 28,
2003 and all beneficially owned shares subject to his option that have not been exercised prior to that
date will be forfeited.

Includes shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of stock options, of which 19,488 shares of
Common Stock are subject to stock options that will become exercisable within 60 days of March 31,
2003. The aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by Directors and Executive Officers does not
include shares beneficially owned by Dr. Radlick, Mr. Michaels and Dr. Johansson, none of who were
employed as Executive Officers of the Company as of March 31, 2003.

Based on information contained in the Schedule 13D and Schedule 13D (Amendment No. 1) filed by
KAI International, LLC (“KAI International”), Bill E. Cham and Tania R. Chase with the SEC on
February 4, 2003 and December 10, 2001, respectively, KAl International owns 4,755,013 shares of
Common Stock. Dr. Cham and Ms. Chase, as the Managing Members of KAI International, are
deemed to have beneficial ownership and shared voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares
of Common Stock owned by KAI International. In addition, Dr. Cham has options to purchase 80,000
shares of Common Stock, 53,334 of which are exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2003. Dr. Cham
and KAI International have granted an irrevocable proxy to certain Directors relating to the voting of
their Common Stock. See “Management — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” on
page 13.

Based on information contained in the Schedule 13D and Schedule 13D (Amendment No. 1) filed by
KAIT International, Bill E. Cham and Tania R. Chase with the SEC on February 4, 2003 and
December 10, 2001, respectively. Dr. Cham and Ms. Chase, as the Managing Members of KAI Interna-
tional, are deemed to have beneficial ownership and shared voting and dispositive power with respect to
the shares of Common Stock owned by KAI International. Dr. Cham and KAI International have
granted an irrevocable proxy to certain Directors relating to the voting of their Common Stock. See
“Management — Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” on page 13.

Based on the information contained in the Schedule 13D filed by the Robert E. Petersen & Margaret M.
Petersen Living Trust (the “Trust”), and its trustees, Robert E. Petersen and Margaret M. Petersen,
with the SEC on December 10, 2001. According to such filing, Mr. and Mrs. Petersen are deemed to
have beneficial ownership and shared voting and dispositive power with respect to all of the shares
owned by the trust based on their status as the trustees of the Trust.

9




(15) Based on information contained in the Schedule 13D (Amendment No. 3) filed by Sun NZ, L.L.C.

(“Sun NZ”}, Sun NMA, Inc. {“Sun NMA”), and William A. Pope with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) on December 12, 2001, Sun NZ owns 1,480,181 shares of Common Stock.
Mr. Pope, as the President and Director of Sun NMA, the Managing Member of Sun NZ, is deemed to
have beneficial ownership and shared voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares of
Common Stock owned by Sun NZ.

Based on information contained in the Schedule 13D filed by Mr. Djordevic with the SEC on April 16,

2002.

Based on information contained in the Schedule 13D filed by Mr. Grunfeld with the SEC on May 7,
2002. Pursuant to a Voting Trust Agreement, entered into as of April 25, 2002, by MDB Capital Group
LLC, a California limited liability company (“MDB”), Christopher A. Marlett, the Christopher A.
Marlett Living Trust and Aaron Grunfeld, as voting trustee, Mr. Grunfeld, as voting trustee, became the
registered holder of the 1,979,077 shares of Common Stock deposited into the trust for certain business
and regulatory purposes of MDB and Mr. Marlett. The Voting Trust Agreement may be terminated by
Mr. Marlett or MDB, acting jointly or severally, 61 days following receipt of written notice by the
Mr. Grunfeld. The remaining 15,591 shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Mr. Grunfeld were
acquired by Mr. Grunfeld pursuant to the merger of NZ and pre-merger Lipid Sciences. Shares held by
Mr. Grunfeld as voting trustee revert back to Mr. Marlett or MDB, as the case may be, upon
termination of the Voting Trust Agreement.

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth the total compensation received in the years ended December 31, 2002,

2001 and 2000 by our former Chief Executive Officer and the four other most highly paid Executive Officers
of the Company who were serving as Executive Officers at the end of fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
We refer to these Officers as the “Named Executive Officers.”

(1)

Summary Compensation Table

Leng Term
Compensation
Annual Securities
Compensation Underlying All Gther
Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Options Compensation($)
Phillip C. Radlick, Ph.D............... 2002 220,211(1) — 129,100(2)
Former President and 2001 250,000 — 336(3)
Chief Executive Officer 2000 145,833(4) 1,599,020 —
Dale L. Richardson .................. 2002 227,756 — 1,152(3)
Vice President — 2001 200,000 — 354(3)
Business Development 2000 75,000(5) 155,902 —
Barry D. Michaels ................... 2002 225,000 — 648(3)
Former Chief Financial Officer 2001 138,173(6) 311,804 2,.827(7)
Marc Bellotti .. ...................... 2002 200,000(8) — 1,152(3)

Vice President —
Product Development
Jan Johansson, M.D., Ph.D. ... .. ... ... 2002 200,000(9) — 1,152(3)
Former Vice President — Clinical
Development and Research

Dr. Radlick resigned as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company effective October 15,
2002. The amount under the heading “Salary” reflects his salary prorated through the date of his
resignation and the fees and other benefits he received during fiscal 2002 as compensation for his services
to the Company as an advisor.

10




(2)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(%)

The amount under the heading “All Other Compensation” includes $125,000, which was paid to
Dr. Radlick as severance in connection with his resignation from the Company and premiums totaling
$4,100 for term life insurance paid by the Company for the benefit of Dr. Radlick.

The amount under the heading “All Other Compensation” represents premiums paid by the Company
for term life insurance for the benefit of the Named Executive Officer.

Dr. Radlick became President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in June 2000. Accordingly,
the salary amount with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 is a prorated amount reflecting
the amount he was paid during fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 for services he performed as
President and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Richardson became Vice President-Sales and Marketing of the Company in August 2000.
Accordingly, the salary amount with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 is a prorated
amount reflecting the amount he was paid during fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 for services he
performed as an Executive Officer. In January 2003, Mr. Richardson became Vice President — Business
Development.

Mr. Michaels became Chief Financial Officer of the Company in May 2001. Accordingly, the salary
amount with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 is a prorated amount reflecting the
amount he was paid during fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 for services he performed as an
Executive Officer. Mr. Michaels’ employment with the Company terminated effective January 28, 2003.

The amount under the heading “All Other Compensation” represents $2,557 as reimbursement for
relocation expenses and $270 for term life insurance premiums paid by the Company with respect to
Mr. Michaels.

Mr. Bellotti became Vice President — Product Development in July 2001, but was not a designated
Named Executive Officer for years prior to fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. In January 2003,
Mr. Bellotti became Vice President — Research and Development.

Dr. Johansson became Vice President — Clinical Development and Research in September 2001, but
was not a designated Named Executive Officer for years prior to fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
Dr. Johansson’s employment with the Company was terminated effective January 28, 2003.

No Option Grants in 2002

The Company did not grant to any of the Named Executive Officers in the fiscal year ended

December 31, 2002 options to purchase shares of Common Stock or stock appreciation rights.

Option Holdings as of December 31, 2062

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, none of the Named Executive Officers exercised options

to purchase Common Stock. The following table sets forth information relating to number of shares of
Common Stock underlying unexercised options held by the Named Executive Officers as of the end of fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002. None of the Named Executive Officers held in-the-money options as of the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, based upon the closing sales price of Common Stock on December 31,
2002, of $1.23 per share, as reported on the Nasdag National Market.
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Number of Shares Subject to Unexercised Options
As of December 31, 2602
Number of
Securities Underlying

Unexercised Options
at December 31, 2602

Name ) Exercisable Unexercisable

Phillip C. Radlick, Ph.D. .. ... ... 779,510 779,510
Dale L. Richardson 94,191 61,711
Barry D. Michaels 129,919 181,885
Marc Bellotti 58,463 97,439
Jan Johansson, M.D.,, Ph.D. ... ... . 48,720 107,182

Empioyment Centracts, Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

Following is information regarding employment contracts, termination of employment and change-in-
control arrangements for our Named Executive Officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table on
Page 10.

Employment Agreements with Mr. Richardson and Mr. Bellotti.  Each of Mr. Richardson and
Mr. Bellotti has an employment agreement with the Company. Both employment agreements contain
substantially similar provisions. The term of each agreement is for one year and automatically renews for
additional one-year terms unless either the Company or the Officer gives notice at least 60 days prior to the
expiration of the current term of the party’s intent not to renew. Either the Officer or the Company may
terminate the agreement and the Officer’s employment, without cause, upon thirty days’ written notice.
However, if the Officer’s employment is terminated by the Company other than for good cause, the
employment agreement provides for the Officer to enter into a consulting arrangement with the Company for
12 months. As consideration for the Officer’s consulting services, the Officer will continue to receive salary and
benefits from the Company during the period he serves as a consultant. However, if the Officer obtains new
full-time employment during the consulting period, any salary paid to the Officer pursuant to his new
employment will be offset against the amount the Company is obligated to pay under the consulting
arrangement. '

Resignation of Dr. Radlick. Dr. Radlick resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company effective as of Gctober 15, 2002. The Company paid Dr. Radlick, as severance in connection with
his resignation from the Company, a lump sum cash amount equal to $125,000. Dr. Radlick continued to serve
the Company as an advisor through February 28, 2003. As compensation for Dr. Radlick’s services as an
advisor, the Company paid him a fee of $125,000 over the advising period and the cost of medical, dental and
life insurance during that period. Pursuant to his resignation agreement, Dr. Radlick agreed to release the
Company and its related parties from any claims that Dr. Radlick may have accrued against the Company and
its related parties as of the date of his resignation.

Separation Agreements with Mr. Michaels and Dr. Johansson.  Mr. Michaels and Dr. Johansson served
as the Chief Financial Officer and Vice President-Clinical Development and Research of the Company,
respectively. Mr. Michaels and Dr. Johansson each entered into separation agreements with the Company in
connection with the termination of their respective employment with the Company that became effective
January 28, 2003.

Pursuant to the separation agreements with each of Mr. Michaels and Dr. Johansson, the Company will
continue to pay the Officers their salary for a period of 13 months, in the case of Mr. Michaels, and seven
months, in the case of Dr. Johansson. The Officers will also be entitled to continue to participate in the
Company’s employee benefit plans at the Company’s cost through the last day of the period during which they
receive their salary continuation or the date that the Officer becomes eligible to participate in another
employer’s benefit plans, if this occurs earlier. In return for these payments and benefits, the Gfficers agreed to
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release the Company and its related parties from any claims that the Officers might have accrued against the
Company and its related parties as of the date their respective employment with the Company ended.

Stock Option Agreements. All of the Named Executive Officers have entered into stock option
agreements with the Company. The stock option agreements provide that in the event of a change in control of
the Company, the vesting of the Officers’ stock option awards will accelerate by the number of months such
awards have previously vested.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During 2002 none of our Executive Officers served on the Board of Directors or Compensation
Committee of another company, that had an Executive Officer serve on our Board or our Compensation
Committee.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company’s Directors
and Executive Officers, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered class of the Company’s equity
securities, to file reports of ownership on Form 3 and changes in ownership on Form 4 or 5 with the SEC. Such
Officers, Directors and [0% stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the Company with copies of
all Section 16(a) forms that they file.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on our review of copies of such forms received by the
Company with respect to Fiscal 2002, or written representations from certain reporting persons, we believe
that during Fiscal 2002 all of our Directors and Executive Officers and persons who own more than 10% of our
Common Stock have complied with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) except as follows:
Mr. Babbitt filed a late Form 3 disclosing his initial statement in connection with his appointment to the
Board; each of Dr. Meyer, Mr. Christopher A. Marlett, a former member of the Board, Dr. Bill E. Cham, a
former member of the Board, Mr. Placenti, Mr. Pope and Dr. Roubin filed a late Form 4 disclosing the grant
to each of an option to purchase 80,000 shares; Hana Berger Moran, a former Executive Officer, filed a late
Form 4 disclosing a grant of an option to purchase 155,902 shares.

Certain Reﬁationships and Related Transactions

Prior to the merger with NZ, Lipid Sciences entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Sun NZ
pursuant to which Lipid Sciences purchased 1,505,402 shares of NZ Common Stock at a price per share of
$8.00. Sun NZ is a large stockholder of the Company and William A. Pope, a Director of the Company, is the
President and a Director of the Managing Member of Sun NZ. The stock purchase agreement also provides
for the right of Sun NZ to nominate one-third of our Directors if our entire Board of Directors consists of nine
or more persons or two Directors if our entire Board of Directors consists of eight or fewer persons, subject to
reduction or elimination of those rights if Sun NZ fails to meet minimum shareholding requirements. The
right of Sun NZ to nominate some of our Directors is set forth in our Articles of Incorporation.

In December 1999, we entered into an Intellectual Property License Agreement to obtain the exclusive
worldwide rights to certain patents, trademarks, and technology with Aruba International Pty. Ltd., an
Australian company, controlled by Bill E. Cham, Ph.D., a founding stockholder of pre-merger Lipid Sciences
and a former Director. As consideration for the license, we issued Aruba 4,677,060 shares of our Common
Stock with a value of $250,000, 10% of any External Research Funding received by us to further this
technology, as defined by the agreement and $250,000 upon commencement of our initial human clinical trial
utilizing the technology under the patents. Under this agreement, we are obligated to pay Aruba a continuing
royalty on revenue generated under the agreement in future years, subject to a minimum annual royalty
amount of $500,000. In satisfaction of the initial $500,000 royalty payment due in 2000, we paid Aruba cash of
approximately $350,000 and issued Aruba 66,817 shares of our Common Stock valued at $150,000. Our initial
human clinical trial commenced during the three-month period ended June 30, 2002. For the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, we have expensed approximately $750,000 and $850,000, respectively, related
to this agreement. Rrior to the merger, Aruba transferred all of its shares of pre-merger Lipid Sciences
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common stock to KAI International and the shares were converted into shares of our Common Stock pursuant
to the merger.

In November 2001, we entered into a Service Agreement with Karuba International Pty. Ltd., an
Australian company controlled by Dr. Cham. Also in November 2001, we entered into a Deed that binds

Dr. Cham to the terms of the Service Agreement. Under the Service Agreement, Dr. Cham is obligated to
provide the Company technical assistance, as well as know-how, materials, trademarks, copyrights and
technology, which is useful in or necessary toward the development, optimization and/or commercialization of
any composition of matter, method or processes of the patents licensed under the Intellectual Property
License Agreement between the Company and Aruba International Pty, Ltd. Under the Service Agreement,
we are required to pay Karuba an annual fee of approximately $198,000. The agreement automatically renews
every year. Either party may terminate the agreement, without cause, upon thirty days’ written notice.
However, if we terminate the agreement, we will be required to pay Karuba an amount equal to one third of
the annual fee. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately $279,000 and $19,000,
respectively, was paid to Karuba under this agreement, of which $9,100 and $19,000 is included in accounts
payable in December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In June 2001, we engaged MDB Capital Group, LLC (“MDB Capital Group”) as our financial advisor in
the merger with NZ. The engagement letter commits the Company to pay MDB Capital Group an advisory
fee. Christopher Marlett, a former Director and Chairman of the Board of the Company is a principal at MDB
Capital Group. In December 2001, we paid MDB Capital Group approximately $446,000, which represents a
portion of the advisory fee and is based on 5% of the cash and cash equivalents of the Company immediately
after the merger, as compared to pre-merger Lipid Sciences’ cash and cash equivalents immediately prior to
the merger. The remainder of the advisory fee is based on 5% of the gross sales of the Company’s pre-merger
assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger, the Company’s assets on the two-year
anniversary of the merger and the net operating income of the Company derived from the Company’s pre-
merger assets during the two-year period after the closing of the merger. We paid approximately $1,400,000 of
the advisory fee during the twelve months ended December 31, 2002. We anticipate the remainder of the
advisory fee to be approximately $825,000. Our adoption of a formalized plan to dispose of all Real Estate
Segment assets by March 31, 2003 will likely result in payment of substantially all MDB Capital Group’s
advisory fees by third quarter 2003.

In February 2003, Dr. Cham, then a member of our Board, and KAI International, a company Dr. Cham
founded and of which he is a Managing Member, entered into a Proxy, Standstill and Release Agreement
dated as of December 2, 2002 (the “Agreement”), with Lipid Sciences and all members of our Board other
than Dr. Cham (the “Director Parties’’). The Agreement was entered into in connection with certain
understandings reached by Dr. Cham and the Director Parties regarding the resolution of issues that had
arisen with respect to certain corporate governance matters in relation to the Company, its employees,
customers and stockholders.

Pursuant to the Agreement, KAI International and Dr. Cham have agreed, among other things, to (i) a
standstill period wherein neither they nor any party on their behalf shall solicit or induce a proxy or other
authority to vote with respect to any voting of the securities of the Company until the day immediately after
the 2004 Annual Meeting of our stockholders (the “Standstill Period”); (ii) until the end of the Standstill
Period, vote their shares at every meeting of our stockholders called, and on every action or approval by
written consent of our stockholders, in accordance with the recommendation of the Director Parties, subject to
certain limitations that make the arrangement consistent with regulatory constraints and except with respect to
a vote of our stockholders to remove Dr. Cham as a Director of Lipid Sciences (Dr. Cham resigned as a
Director subsequent to the execution of the Agreement); (iii) deliver to Lipid Sciences an irrevocable proxy
wherein each of KAl International and Dr. Cham irrevocably appointed the Director Parties with full power of
substitution, as their attorneys and proxies with the authority to vote any and all shares of the Common Stock
held by KAI International and Dr. Cham with respect to any meeting of our stockholders during the Standstill
Period; and (iv) release and forever discharge Lipid Sciences and the Director Parties from claims that arise
out of the actions of Lipid Sciences, its management or the Board taken prior to date of the Agreement.
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We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our Directors and Executive Officers.
These agreements require us to indemnify such individuals, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law,
for certain liabilities to which they may become subject as a result of their affiliation with Lipid Sciences.
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

As members of the Compensation Committee, it is our responsibility to determine the most effective total
executive compensation strategy, based upon the business needs of the Company and consistent with
stockholders’ interests, to administer the Company’s executive compensation plans, programs and policies, to

monitor corporate performance and its relationship to compensation of Executive Officers, and to make
appropriate recommendations concerning matters of compensation. During the year ended December 31,
2002, the Compensation Committee consisted of three independent, non-employee Directors, Dr. Meyer*,
Mr. Placenti and Dr. Roubin.

Compensation Philosophy. The major goals of the compensation program are to align compensation
with the attainment of key business objectives and to enable the Company to attract, retain and reward
capable executives who can contribute to the continued success of the Company. Three key goals form the
basis of compensation decisions for all employees of the Company:

1. To attract and retain the most highly qualified management and employee team;

2. To pay competitively compared to similar companies and to provide appropriate reward
opportunities for achieving high levels of performance compared to similar organizations in the
marketplace; and

3. To motivate executives and employees to achieve the Company’s annual and long-term business
goals and encourage behavior toward the fulfillment of those objectives.

As a result of this philosophy, the Company’s executive compensation program consists of base salary,
participation in equity-based incentive plans and standard benefits.

Facrors. Since the Company is in the development stage, the use of traditional performance standards
(such as profit levels and return on equity) is not appropriate in evaluating the performance of the Executive
Officers. In particular, the unique nature of the biotechnology industry, specifically the absence of revenues
and the fact that larger market forces have a greater impact on the Company’s stock performance than actual
Company achievements, makes it difficult to tie performance objectives to standard financial considerations.
The primary factors that were considered in establishing the components of each Executive Officer’s
compensation package for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 are summarized below. The Compensa-
tion Committee may, however, in-its discretion apply entirely different factors, such as different measures of
strategic performance, for future fiscal years.

Base Salary. The Compensation Committee recognizes the importance of maintaining compensation
practices and levels of compensation competitive with similar companies in comparable stages of
development.

Base salary represents the fixed component of the executive compensation program. Determination of
base salary levels is established on an annual review of marketplace competitiveness with similar companies,
and on individual performance. Periodic increases in base salary relate to individual contributions evaluated
against established objectives, relative marketplace competitiveness levels, length of service, and the industry’s
annual competitive pay practice movement.

Stock Plans. Executive Cfficers of the Company are eligible to receive awards under the Company’s
2002 Performance Equity Plan. The primary objective of granting stock options to Executive Officers is to
provide an incentive to employees to make decisions and take actions that maximize long-term stockholder
value. Subject to the terms of the Company’s 2002 Performance Equity Plan, the Compensation Committee
determined the terms and conditions of the stock options granted to Executive Officers, including the exercise
price and vesting schedule applicable to each stock option.

Compensation for the Chief Executive Officer. In addition to the factors describe above for all
Executives, the Compensation Committee considers the degree to which the Company has attained the
strategic objectives identified for a particular year in determining the compensation of the President and Chief
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Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee may also consider the achievement of any other individual
goals that have been established for the President and Chief Executive Officer.

The former President and Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Radlick, who resigned effective as of October 15,
2002, had previously entered into an employment agreement with Lipid Sciences on June 1, 2000, which the
Company assumed in connection with the merger with NZ. The salary of Dr. Radlick for fiscal 2002 was
determined in accordance with his employment agreement. In 2002, Dr. Radlick did not receive a base salary
increase and was not granted any stock options, which is consistent with the underlying market conditions and
was considered appropriate. Dr. Radlick’s employment agreement was superseded by his resignation
agreement with the Company in connection with his resignation from the Company. The terms of his
resignation agreement are described above.

Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m). Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, generally disallows a tax deduction to publicly held companies for compensation in
excess of $1 million paid to the Named Executive Officers. Qualifying performance-based compensation will
not be subject to the deduction limit if certain requirements are met. The Company generally intends to
structure the stock options granted to its Executive Officers in a manner that complies with this statute to
mitigate any disallowance of deductions under Section 162(m). However, the Compensation Committee
reserves the right to use its judgment to authorize compensation payments that may be in excess of the limit
when the Compensation Committee believes such payment is appropriate, after taking into consideration
changing business conditions, the Executive Officer’s performance and the best interests of the Company’s
stockholders.

Summary. The Compensation Committee believes its compensation strategy, principles and practices
result in a compensation program tied to stockholder returns and linked to the achievement of annual and
longer-term financial and operational results of the Company.

Dated: April 9, 2003 Lipid Sciences, Inc.
Compensation Committee Members:

S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D., Chairman*
Frank M. Placenti
Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D.

*Dr. Meyer was a member and Chairman of the Compensation Committee at the time the report was
approved by the Compensation Committee. Subsequent to the approval of the report, Dr. Meyer resigned
from the Compensation Committee immediately prior to his appointment as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on April 14, 2003.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board currently consists of Richard G. Babbitt*, Frank M. Placenti and
Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D., each of whom is independent as defined in the Nasdaq Stock Market’s listing
standards. The Company’s Board has adopted a written charter for the Company’s Audit Committee that is
attached as Appendix A. The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in its oversight of
the Company’s financial reporting process. The management of Lipid Sciences is responsible for the
preparation, presentation and integrity of the Company’s financial statements, the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting principles and the Company’s internal controls and procedures designed to assure
compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. The independent auditors are
responsible for planning and performing an independent audit of the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. The independent auditors are
responsible for expressing an opinion as to the Company’s financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally acceptable in the United States of America.

In the performance of its oversight function, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited
financial statements with management and the independent auditors. The Audit Committee also discussed
with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 61, “Communication with Audit Committees,” as currently in effect. The Audit Committee also
considered whether the provision by the Company’s independent auditors of non-audit services to the
Company is compatible with maintaining the independent auditor’s independence. Finally, the Audit
Committee received written disclosures and the letter from the independent auditors required by Indepen-
dence Standards Board Standard No. 1, “Independence Discussions with Audit Committees,” as currently in
effect, and has discussed the independent auditors’ independence with the independent auditors.

The members of the Audit Committee are not professionally engaged in the practice of auditing or
accounting and are not experts in the fields of accounting or auditing, including in respect of auditor
independence. Members of the Audit Committee rely without independent verification on the information
provided to them and on the representations made by management and the independent auditors. Accordingly,
the Audit Committee’s oversight does not provide an independent basis to determine that management has
maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles or appropriate internal controls and
procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations.
Furthermore, the Audit Committee’s considerations and discussions referred to above do not assure that the
audits of the Company’s financial statements have been carried out in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, that the financial statements are presented in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or that the Company’s auditors
are in fact “independent.”

The Committee has been advised by Lipid Sciences that the total fees billed in fiscal year 2002 by
Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, related to 2002 work were $567,476. Of that
amount, an aggregate of $215,425 was for their audit of our annual financial statements for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2002, for their review of the interim financial statements included in our quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q for the 2002 fiscal year, and for review of registration statements. The fees of Deloitte &
Touche LLP for all other services rendered to our Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002
totaled $352,051, and was primarily for tax related services. Deloitte & Touche LLP was not engaged by Lipid
Sciences during fiscal 2002 to perform any financial information systems and design services. The Audit
Committee believes the non-audit services provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP are compatible with
maintaining their independence.

*Mr. Babbitt replaced S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D., who was a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee at the time the report was approved by the Audit Committee. Subsequent to the approval of the
report, Dr. Meyer resigned from the Audit Committee immediately prior to his appointment as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on April 14, 2003.
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Based upon the reports and discussions described in this report, and subject to the limitations on the role
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee referred to above and in the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in Lipid Science’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the last fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

Dated: March 19, 2003 Lipid Sciences, Inc.
Audit Committee Members:

S. Lewis Meyer, Ph.D., Chairman**
Frank M. Placenti
Gary S. Roubin, M.D., Ph.D.

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Deloitte & Touche LLP audited the Company’s financial statements for its fiscal year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The Board expects that a representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be present at the Annual
Meeting, will be given an opportunity to make a statement at the meeting and will be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audit and non-audit services performed by Deloitte & Touche
LLP, as well as the fees charged for such services. In its review of non-audit service fees, the Audit
Committee considers, among other things, the possible effect of the performance of such services on the
auditor’s independence.

The Company has not yet engaged independent public accountants to audit the Company’s financial
statements for fiscal year 2003. The Audit Committee is in the process of evaluating prospective audit firms.

Change of Independent Accountants

As a part of the merger with NZ, the Company dismissed its independent accountants, Ernst & Young
LLP, on November 15, 2001. Neither the Board of Directors nor Audit Committee specifically approved the
dismissal, but the Board of Directors approved the merger with NZ, whose independent accountants
Deloitte & Touche LLP have continued in that role.

The Company believes there were no disagreements with Ernst & Young LLP within the meaning of
Instruction 4 of Item 304 of Regulation S-K as to any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial
statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure in connection with the audits of pre-merger Lipid
Sciences’ financial statements for the period from inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000 or for any
subsequent interim period, which disagreements if not resolved to its satisfaction would have caused Ernst &
Young LLP to issue an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion. Further, their report on the financial
statements for the period from inception (May 21, 1999) to December 31, 2000 did not contain an adverse
opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting
principles.

During the period from inception (May 21, 1999) and through the present, there have been no reportable
events (as defined in Item 304 of Regulation S-K) with Ernst & Young LLP.

**Dr. Meyer was a member and the Chairman of the Audit Committee at the time the report was
approved by the Audit Committee. Subsequent to the approval of the report, Dr. Meyer resigned from the
Audit Committee immediately prior to his appointment as President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on April 14, 2003.
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The Company has not consulted with any other independent accountants regarding the application of
accounting principles to a specified transaction or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on pre-
merger Lipid Sciences’ financial statements during the period from inception (May 21, 1999) through
November 15, 2001.

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of
the Company’s annual financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 and for the reviews of
the financial statements included in the Company’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for that fiscal year, and for
review of registration statements were $215,425.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees

No services were performed by, or fees incurred to, Deloitte & Touche LLP for professional services
rendered for information technology services relating to financial information systems design and implementa-
tion for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

All Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP for services rendered to the Company, other than
the services described above under “Audit Fees” and “Financial Information Systems Design and Implemen-
tation Fees”, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 were $352,051. Such non-audit related services
included primarily tax consultation, tax preparation and other consultations.

The Audit Committee has determined that the provision by Deloitte & Touche LLP of non-audit services
to us in 2002 is compatible with Deloitte & Touche LLP maintaining their independence.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPHS

The first graph set forth below compares the cumulative total stockholder return for the Common Stock
with the cumulative total return for the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index over
an eighteen-month period, beginning June 30, 2001, and ending December 31, 2002. The indices used in this
performance graph are different from those used in years prior to the merger of NZ and pre-merger Lipid
Sciences. Prior to the merger, the business of NZ was primarily as a real-estate holding and short-term
lending company; whereas we are a development-stage, biotechnology company. Also, prior to the merger,
NZ’s common stock traded on the American Stock Exchange; whereas our Common Stock trades on the
Nasdaq National Market. We believe the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Biotechnology Index
provide a relevant comparison for future reporting by us.

The second graph set forth below compares the cumulative stockholder return for NZ’s common stock with
the cumulative return for the AMEX Market Index and an industry index composed of SIC Code index 6510
companies (Real Estate Operators and Lessors) and SIC Code index 6153 companies (Short-Term Business
Credit Institutions) over approximately a four-year period, beginning on December 31, 1997 and ending
November 29, 2001, the closing date of the merger of NZ and pre-merger Lipid Sciences. The AMEX Market
Index and SIC Code 6510 index were used by NZ in prior years and are included this year for comparative
purposes. The SIC Code 6150 index, which was also used by NZ in prior years, was not included this year since, to
our knowledge, there are no longer any publicly traded companies classified under that SIC Code. The SIC Code
6153 index has been included because we believe it provides a relevant comparison to NZ’s performance.

The total stockholder return assumes (i) the investment of $100 at the beginning of the period in the
Common Stock and each of the applicable indices and (ii) the reinvestment of all dividends.

COMPARE 18-MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG LIPID SCIENCES, INC,,
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX AND NASDAQ BIOTECHNOLOGY INDEX

TOTAL RETURN INDEX
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—+— UPID SCIENCES, INC. - -=- ~NASDAQ BIOTECHNOLOGY INDEX
—a— NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JUNE 30, 2001
6/30/01 9/30/01 | 12/31/701 | 3731702 | 6/30/02 | 9/30/02 | 12/31/02
LIPID SCIENCES, INC. 100.00 165.41 182.59 130.59 109.39 61.18 28.94

NASDAQ BIOTECHNOLOGY INDEX | 100.00 73.26 89.65 76.24 50.31 45.86 49.01

NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX 100.00 69.41 90.40 85.61 67.95 54.49 62.16
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COMPARE 4-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG
LIPID SCIENCES, INC., AMEX MARKET INDEX AND SIC CODE INDICES (6150 AND 6153)
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—&— LIPID SCIENCES, INC. —&— AMEX MARKET INDEX
— &~ - SIC CODE 6153 INDEX - =X~ ~SIC CODE 6510 INDEX
(Short-Term Business Credt Institutions) (Real Estate Operators and Lessors)

ASSUMES $160 INVESTED ON DECEMBER 31, 1997

December 31, November 29,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
LIPID SCIENCES, INC. 100.00 117.95 61.54 36.92 102.77
AMEX MARKET INDEX 100.00 101.74 131.43 137.01 126.60
SIC CODE 6510 INDEX 100.00 62.55 47.21 18.86 33.08
SIC CODE 6153 INDEX 100.00 54.68 45.55 45.43 53.12
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2004 ANNUAL MEETING

Proposals of stockholders of the Company which are intended to be presented at the Company’s 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and included in the Company’s proxy soliciting material must be received by
the Secretary of the Company, in accordance with rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, no later
than December 27, 2003.

Proposals of stockholders of the Company which are intended to be presented at the Company’s 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, but are not intended to be included in the Company’s proxy soliciting
material, must be received by the Secretary of the Company no earlier than February 10, 2004 and no later
than March 11, 2004.

2002 ANNUAL REPORT

The Company’s 2002 Annual Report, including audited financial statements for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, are being forwarded to each person who is a stockholder of record as of
April 7, 2003, together with this proxy statement.

A copy of the Company’s 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K is available without charge to those
stockholders who would like more detailed information concerning the Company. If you desire a copy of that
document, please send a written request to Imvestor Relations, Lipid Sciences, Inc., 7068 Koll Center
Parkway, Suite 401, Pleasanton, California 94566, or telephone: (925) 249-4031.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pleasanton, California
April 25, 2003

YOU ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON. WHETHER OR
NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, YOU ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN AND RETURN
THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE.
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APPENDIX A
LIPID SCIENCES, INC.
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

Organization

There shall be a Committee of the Board of Directors to be known as the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee shall be composed of Directors who are independent of the management of the Corporation and
are free of any relationship that, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, would interfere with their exercise of
independent judgrnent as a Committee member.

Statement of Policy

The Audit Committee shall provide assistance to the Corporation’s Directors in fulfilling their responsi-
bility to the stockholders, potential stockholders, and investment community relating to corporate accounting,
reporting practices of the Corporation, and the quality and integrity of the financial reports of the Corporation.
In so doing, it is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to maintain free and open means of communication
between the Directors, the independent auditors, the internal auditors, and the financial management of the
Corporation.

Responsibilities

In carrying out its responsibilities, the Audit Committee believes its policies and procedures should
remain flexible, in order to best react to changing conditions and to ensure to the Directors and stockholders
that the corporate accounting and reporting practices of the Corporation are in accordance with all
requirements and are of the highest quality.

In carrying out these responsibilities, the Audit Committee will:

o Review and recommend to the Directors the independent auditors to be selected to audit the financial
statements of the Corporation and its divisions and subsidiaries.

= Meet with the independent auditors and financial management of the Corporation to review the scope
of the proposed audit for the current year and the audit procedures to be utilized, and at the conclusion
thereof review such audit, including comments or recommendations of the independent auditors.

o Review with the independent auditors, and the Corporation’s financial and accounting personnel, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting and financial controls of the Corporation, and elicit any
recommendations for the improvement of such internal control procedures or particular areas where
new or more detailed controls or procedures are desirable. Particular emphasis should be given to the
adequacy of such internal controls to expose any payments, transactions, or procedures that might be
deemed illegal or otherwise improper. Further, the Audit Committee periodically should review the
Corporation’s policy statements to determine their adherence to the code of conduct.

« Review the internal audit function of the Corporation including the independence and authority of its
reporting obligations, the proposed audit plans for the coming year, and the coordination of such plans
with the independent auditors.

» Review the financial statements contained in the Annual Report to Stockholders with management and
the independent auditors to determine that the independent auditors are satisfied with the disclosure
and content of the financial statements to be presented to the stockholders. Any changes in accounting
principles should be reviewed.

o Provide sufficient opportunity for the independent auditors to meet with the members of the Audit
Committee without members of management present. Among the items to be discussed in these
meetings are the independent auditor’s evaluation of the Corporation’s financial, accounting, and
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auditing personnel, and the cooperation that the independent auditors received during the course of the
audit.

Review accounting and financial human resources and succession planning within the Corporation.

Submit the minutes of all meetings of the Audit Committee to, or discuss the matters discussed at
each Audit Committee meeting with, the Board of Directors.

Investigate any matter brought to its attention within the scope of its duties, with the power to retain
outside counsel for this purpose if, in its judgment, that is appropriate.

Comply with the appropriate rules and regulations of the Nasdaqg and the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission regarding Audit Committees, including rules and regulations regarding the
standards of independence and financial literacy, as and when such rules and regulations become
effective and as they may from time to time be amended.
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i Technologies are based on a patented process
ctively removes lipids from proteins. We believe
nique process has the potential for for-reaching

ions for human health. It may provide a positive
sgisutic effect on many infectious agents, including the
seisthat cause-AIDS, Hepotitis B-and Hepatitis C, and
cardio- dnd cerebrovascular disease.
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